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THEAAINVESTMENT CASE

The AA has strong fundamentals and a sustainable
business model

A highly trusted commercialbrand
The AA has one of the most widely recognised and trusted brands in the UK.

Market leadership

We are by far the largest Roadside Assistance provider with approximately 40% share
of the UK consumer market. We alsc have strong market positions across our other
products and services.

Opportunity fordigital transformation
Woe are at the forefront of digital development with the potential to transform the services
we deliver and the experience our Members and customers receive.

High barrierstoentry
Our deployment system, people and scale combined with the high start-up costs required
to operate an efficient national roadside service pose significant barriers to entry.

Highrecurring revenue
QOur personal Members are loyal with stable retention rates and average tenure of 12 years.

Highcashgeneration
The majority of our customers pay for our services in advance so that virtually all of our
accounting profits convert to operating cashflow.

Experienced and skilled workforce
Our selection process and continual training for our excellent workforce lead to long
service and high repair rates in Roadside Assistance.

OUR STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

Strengthenthe AA’s Revolutionise ReduceGroup

foundations providing customer experience borrowings and

amodern platform throughinvestment the associated

to become the pre- inthe Membership interest costs

eminent Membership proposition and new

services organisationin technologies

the UK

"

QURSTRATEGIC JOURNEY
Year1(the 2016 financial Year 2 {the 2017 financial  Year 3 {the 2018 financial
year): Strengthening the year): Building year): Reallsing the
foundations momentum forchange transformation

Ourambitionfor the AAistotransformitintothe UK's
pre-eminentMembership services organisation

Executive Chalrman’s statement pt0 »
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ATRUSTEDBRAND

The AA has a long tradition of service and
innovation which is at the core of allwe do and
means that more than 110 years on, we are still
one of the UK’s most trusted brands.

We ensure our services are delivered with our
long-standing values of courtesy, careand
experfise. As we take the AAto the next stage
of its development in the dynamic markets in
which we operate, we will work collaboratively
with our partners to realise the opportunities.

1906 191 1945 1967 2016

STRATEGIC HIGHLIGHTS

The transformation of the

Roadside Assistance Members grew for the firsttime in years

AAis now beginning to reap
rewards. We are building the

We are inthe final stages of the |T transformation

UK’s leading Membership
services organisation by

We have improved the Membership proposition with better products,
rewards, advertising and marketing

strengthening the AA’s
foundations and revolutionising
customer experience to

Successindigital transformation has delivered growth in digital
sales and usage of our breakdown app. The first connected car trial
supports the development of new operating models

provide a platform for growth.

Ourin-house Insurance Underwriter and Financial Services

partnership with the Bank of Ireland are progressing well

We delivered cost savings as part of the programme which will
culminate in savings of at least £40m per year off the 2015 cost base
from the 2019 financial year

AAlreland was sold and £106m of the proceeds were applied to

paying down debt

We reduced the costof debt by a further £10m per annum and
extended its average maturity through a refinancing

Atotaldividend of 9.3p with respectto the 2017 financial year is
recommended including the interim dividend of 3.6p

Ourmarketplace p6 »

Forward-looking statements

This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements
with respect tothe operations, strategy, performance, financial
condition. and growth opportunities of the Group. By their

nature, these statementsinvolve uncertainty and are based on
assumplions and involve nsks, uncertainties and other factors that
could causeactual results and developments to differ materiatly

from those anticipated. The forward-locking statements reflect
knowledge and informaticn available at the date of preparation of
this Annual Report and, other than inaccordance with its kegal and
regulatary obligations, the Company undertakes no obligation to
update these forward-locking statements. Nothing in this Annual
Report should be construed as a profit forecast.



FINANCIALHIGHLIGHTS THEAA’S AREAS OF BUSINESS
Trading Revenue Netdebt Roadside Assistance
£940m £2 .7bn Trading Revenue Trading EBITDA
2016:£925m 2016: £2.8bn £742m £365 m
Trading EBITDA Continuingadjusted basicEPS (£724m) (E361m)
£403m 21
2016: £48m3 2016: Egp Insurance Services

Trading Revenue Trading EBITDA
:;onftiltn I::;r:pt::a ’:I::s Continuing basic EPS £ 1 3 1 m £7 6m
£1 Oom ;'Ogczp (E131m) (E78m)
2016:£9m 020

Driving Services

Cashconversion interestcover Trading Revenue Trading EBITDA
92% 2.6x £67m £20m
2016:101% 2016:2.4x% (€68m) E19m)
Flnanclal review p26 ) Ourperformance p24 >

The following definitions apply throughout the report.
2017 financial year is the year to 31 January 2017

Trading Revenue isrevenue excluding discontinued operations,
business disposed of and exceptional revenue terns,

Trading EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation}exctudes exceptional items and items not allocated to
asegment. In the current period items not allocated to a segment
principally relate to the difference between the cash contributions to
the pension schemes for ongoing service and the calculated annual
service cost and share-based payments {see note 5).

Continuing adjusted basic EPS (earnings per share) adjustsfora
number of one-offs of which the largest are exceptional operating
iterns, itemsnot altocated to aseament and exceplional finance costs
{seenote B).

Cash conversion 1s net cash inflow frem contnuing operating activities
before taxand exceptional items divided by Trading EBITDA.

Interest cover is Trading EBITDA divided by ongoing cash finance
costs (seenote 6).

Net debtinctudes the principal amounts of the Group’s borrowings
less cashand cash equivalents.
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The strength of the AA is inextricably linked with
our brand and its foundations in our market-leading
roadside assistance service inthe UK.

Roadside assistance is provided both through
personal Membership and business partnerships.
We offer other services which enrich Membership,
suchas AATyres and AA Cars.

Insurance Services includes broking of primarily
motorand home insurance. We also offer financiat
services and home emergency services. We launched
ourin-house Insurance Underwriter in January 2016.

Driving Services includes driving schools and
DriveTech which provides driving training.

122 Company statement of
financial position

123 Company statementof
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128 Shareholder informatien
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The AA at a glance

We operate three main divisions:
Roadside Assistance, insurance Services
and Driving Services.

1 Excluding Head Office costs.

Ourperformance p24
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ROADSIDEASSISTANCE

We are the UK’s leading provider of
roadside assistance, with approximately
3,000 patrols attending an average

of around 10,000 breakdowns by

cars, motorbikes, caravans and vans
every day.

s
Trading Revenue Personal Members
£742m 3.3m
(2016: £724m} (2016:3.3m)
Trading EBITDA Business customers
£365m 10.0m
(2016; £361m) (2016:10.2m})

Ourperformance p24)

INSURANCE SERVICES

The AA’s broking business offers
motor, home, travel and other specialist
insurance policies, operating a diverse

Trading Revenue

£131m

{nsurance policies

1.9m

panel of underwriters including our Q- E13Im) (2016:£2.1m)

in-house Underwriter since its launchin Trading EBITDA am;?mgfgw“

January. We also offer home emergency £76m

services. In 2015, we relaunched our ©016: £78m) £70

Financial Services business in partnership (2016: £63)

with the Bank of Ireland. FinanclalServices products
{(2016:33k)

Ourperformance p25 )

DRIVINGSERVICES

We are the UK’s leading provider of TradingRevenue Driving instructors

driving lessons through AA Driving School

and the BSM (British School of Motoring). £67m 2’607

DriveTech is one of the market leaders in (2016: £68m) (2016:2.574)

providing driver education including Trading EBITDA DriveTech Police contracts

Driver Awareness courses which are £20m 11

offered by police forces. (2016: £10m) P

Our performance p25 )
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Highlights of the year

January 2016 Febtuary June

The AA’s In-housemoter Allpatrols using new digital New website launched. AAondon to Brighton chanty

Insurance Underwriter communications devices. cycle - a 6O mileride coinciding

launched. Aprh with National Bike Week.

L

Lex Autolease contract At Glastonbury we attended

wonadding around 2016 annualreport published. 401jobs, ncluding flat

280,000 vehicles, Launched our new batteries, lost keys and

. AAcreditcard. wheel changes.

Intelernatics Europe joint

venture launched. July
AA and Chargemaster form
a partnership to provide agvice,

" supportandaccesstoa
UK-wide network ofefectric
vehicle chargers.
Zubarr Aswat
Clive Heywood

DigitalHero Brand Values Awards Road andHome Call

Kristian Samuet-Camps  Clive Heywood, Centre Customer

Kristian's award was for the Joshua anes Adviser

way he steered our website and Zubair Aswat “I really feltthat the new Natasha Rose

g::ig";?;?gh;:ﬂgga These ?wards were forthe rmx“gp’::ﬁg:ﬁy Nart% sha.was r;tlzor?_niﬁedtfor "lil;:e t::h: e‘rp.y In :hlcl;l:m "

scratch and delivering commitment Clive, 4oshua to deliveratop class service pe ‘rmlng atthehighes our Hembersan

superb results and Zubarr showedin the tomembers.” level; displaying a sound customers throughmy Job.

. rollout andimplementationof Cii - knowledge of our products itis thrilling to be recognised
the latest iPhone technology Ve and services; and ensuring although the thanks you get
to our patrols and technicians, “Wewere determined to the best quality service is fromcustomers is really
They travelled up and down make sureltwas rolled out offered to cur customers. reward enough.”

“From 2amfinishesto the country tirelessly and britllantly, and that patrols MNatasha
4am starts, rebuilding were endlessly patient. were shown howtogetthe
the AN’s website hasbeen ‘They personified our five bestout of the tech.™
arollercoaster Hde. brand values of Courtesy, Joshua
Sometimes stressful, Collaboration, Care,
always exhilarating, Dynamism and Expertise, “Thisneeded tobe doneby
but totally rewarding™ peoplewhounderstocd the

patrols’ daily challenges
outonthercadandthe
beneflts the new technology
would bring.”

Zubair
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August
AAmortgages launched,

Sale of AA Ireland and
£106m of debt paid down.

Launchof home
insurance underwriting,

September
The AAHospitality awards
for hotels and restaurants.

October
Premiere of AA Trustdriver
distraction film Cadence.

November
Successfulrefinancing
toimprove our debt
profile announced.

Connected cartrial proves
ability to pre-empt
breakdowns.

Patrol of the Year John
Snowling and Recovery Patrol
ofthe Year Tony Doran
attended the London to
Brighton veteran carrun.

December
Ahappusage in breakdowns
reached 20%.

100th AA Populus poll analysed
the fuel choices of Members’
nextcar:

Petrol 48%
Diesel 18%
Hybrid %
Electric e
Dan'tknow 22%
January 2017

Tuesday 3rd was one ofthe
busiestdays of the {ast12

months, Attending more than
17,000 call-outs, we were 32%
busier than a typical Tuesday.

September

Employee awards ceremony

We celebrated some of our greatest achievements and
some of our heroes, all of whom have demonstrated our
brand values of Courtesy, Collaboration, Care, Dynamism
and Expertise in the way they have done their jobs.

Max Heldstock handing over
AA Patrol of the Year's number
plate to John Snowling

Patrolofthe Year
2015/16
Max Holdstock (left)

Our outgoing Patrol of the Year,
Max Holdstock, hasbeena
superb representative of the
AA'svalues for the last year.

He has always been the perfect
presence at public eventsup
and down the country,
incluging visiting schoels and
hospitals. He has alsa been
interviewed by awiderange

of media. We thank him

“|'ve had abrilllantyear, and
I've loved every moment
ofrepresentingour
wonderful business”

Max

Patrolofthe Year
2016117
John Snowling (right)

The Patrolof the Year s chosen
for thear skill, ability and
dedication to the AA. Itisa
hard-fought competition
betweenall patrels and we

are delighted torecognise
John Showling as the best

of the best this year.

The Patrol of the Year uses
the numberplate 299 AA
for the year of his reign.

“Pmoverthe moonto have
won. There was stiff
competition - our patrols
reallyarethebestinthe
businessand | stillcan’t quite
believeit.lt’sa huge honour.”
John

Mark Millar, receiving his
award from Olly Kunc

Leadership Award -
Mark Millar (right)

Mark demonstrated
exceplicnzlleadership,
motivation andinsprration to
the people inhis team and the
wider business. By leading
through example, he has set
an incredibly high standard of
integnity and professionalism.

“I’mabsolutely delighted to
berecognisedinthis way.
The AAisfull of fantastic
people,andit’sbeena
privilege to have beengiven
thechanceto have suchan
Impactonmyteam,andthe
wider business.”

Mark

The otheraward winners:

Tony Doran Recovery Patrol

Mark Harris Jaguar Land Rover
Dedicated Technician

AnthonyAldridge Volkswagen
Group Dedicated Technician

Mick Saywell Assist Technician

Fourwinds
Garage Contractor Award

Gallows Wood Service Station
Contractor Award

SadieLeaman Direct Sales
Force Agent

Wes Roberts
Home Services Engineer

Simoh GoodallMctoring
Services Award

ElinHerbert
Driving School Award

LeeNorman Sales & Service
Call Centre Customer Adviser

Simon Fettes Insurance Call
Centre Customer Adviser

tan McKenry Czll Centre
Team Leader

SukritiPrasher
IT & Change Hero

Lesley Atkinson Business
Transformation Hero

Brian Golds Spint of the AA -
in honour of D Kirman

Justin Edwards Spirit of the
AA - inhonour of b1 Kirman

Jean Franklin Support Expert

ssauisng O
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| Our marketplace

Ourperformance p24)

ROADSIDE ASSISTANCE MARKET

Business
model

Market
share

Compatition

Customers

Market
drivers

Total

Roadside Assistance servicesinthe UK,
including the AA's, are provided through
business-to-consumer {personal Members)
and business-ta-business channels
(business customers)

Theroadside assistance market is worth
approximately £2bnperannum.

Consumer

in personat Membership, feesare paid
prncipally for breakdown cover butadditionat
revenue is available from cross-selling (selling
ather services} orup-selling {selling tugher-
value products and services).

The AAisthe clear market leader with

approximately 40% of the consumer segment.

Business-to-business

For business customers, fees are set either
per breakdown or per vehicle and average
income per custorners lower than in
personat Membership.

The AA has approximately 65% of the car
manufacturers segment, over 50% of the
UK’s largest fleet and leasing customersand
around half of the banking and added value
account segment.

In the UK there are a small number of large players with sigrficant market share, Competition s based on quality of service and price.

Our competitorsinclude the RAC and Green Flag.

Barriers to entry are significantand include theinvestment required to build atrusted, highly recognised brand, the creation of a nationwide,
branded fleet of qualified patrols with competitive technical ability, and the sophisticated deployment process to operate effectively.

Personal Membership covers vehicles or

individuals. Vehicle policies cover aither single

ormultiple vehicles; personal policies cover
one ormare individuals including families,
regardiess of the vehicle they are travellingin.

Business customers’ cover is provided by

the respective partners buf with services
provided by the AA. Theseinclude pay-for-use
and insurance-based services,

While spend on roadside assistance is discretionary, our business proved remarkably stable over the economic cycle. Positive momentum in
the UK economy provides a favourable environment for expansionof cur Membership base.

UK votumes are driven primarily by the number of pnvately-owned vehicles, This grew at approximately 1% per annum between 2007 and
2015, Despite suffering significantly duning the financial crisis, new car registrations inthe UK have grown strongly inrecent years with 2.3%

growth in 2016,

Qurperformance p25 )

Drivertraining

Our DriveTech business, which offers training for occupational drivers
andindividuals who have committed driving offences, is delivered under
long-termservice contracts, most often with police forces.

The AA has strong positionsin both fieet and police markets. Inthe
Police market the AA has contracts with 1) of the 45 police forces in
the UK, Inthe fleet market the AA ismarket leader and hasarange of
smaller competitors.

The UK driving services market has high levels of competitton ranging from nahonat and regional networks to independent operators.

Key customers for occupational driver training are companies with
significant logistics eperations in the UK and Europe, as well as police
forces throughout the UK

Occupational driver training is affected by economic confidence as

DRIVINGSERVICES MARKET
Driving schools
Business Branded driving school organisations, such as the AA, tend to operate
model afranchise model whereby franchisees receive a carand support from
the brand inreturnforafee,
Market The AA has approximately 10% of the very fragmented market for
share pupils throughits two franchises, AA Driving Schooland British School
of Motoring.
Competition
Markets remain competitive with cost and professional qualities top of the buying criteria.
Competitorsinclude Red and Bill Ptant driving schioots and TTC driver training.
Customers In driving schools, pupil segments and their needs are complex, varying
: by age, region and buying critena.
Market The driving school market is driven by levels of economic confidence.
drivers Since 2012 demand has been strong due tobetter economic conditions

and a catch-up of people who deferred learning to drive during the
financial crisis,

companies’ fleets grow or contract.
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INSURANCE SERVICES MARKET
Total Insurance Broker Insurance Underwriter Financial services market
The AA acts as aninsurance Insurance brokers, suchas The AA Underwriter sits onthe In partnership with the Bank
Business broker and has, since January the AA, act as an intermediary Ah Broker panel and like cther of Ireland, we provide savings,
model 2016, operated our ownn- between those seeking underwriters decides whether loans, credit cards and
house underwriter, insurance cover andinsurance to provide insurance and under mortgages. Weaimtodosoon
underwriters, earninga what terms. amatched book basis,
commission at the point of sale,
Insurance brokers assume no
underwnting risk.
Market In2016, the AA accounted for The combination ofthe The combination of the AA's
share approximately 2% and 3% of Ad'sbrand and proprietary brand, its history of successinthe
new motor andhome insurance Membership data meanweam financial services market and the
policies respectively. tounderwrite 300,000 policies Bank of Ireland’s service delivery
inthe firstthree years of expertise means that we compete
business. effectwely. However, cur market
share s relatively smatl as thisis
anewbusiness,

Competition The UK insurance markets Insurance brokers compete with Underwriters compete pnmarity Financial service providers
experence high levels of eachotherand directinsurers on price, although brandis also compete on pnce and quality
competition. through arange of channels. a key consideraticn. of product offering.

Along with brand, pricing is a key D'Stnbu.t 'o: f:r?)ugth p(r::ccgw ) QOur competitorsinclude Our competitors include high
consideration for customers, :Snmp:{u s;: i' %’;92 Fth es Saga, Hastings and Esure. streetbanks such as Barclays
particutarly for motor insurance. ountsto up to 0 and HSBC along with affinity

marketinmotorinsurance. In

homeinsurance PCWsare less branc{s S‘UCh asTesco, M&S

dominant, largely because home and Virgin Money,

insurance policies are less

homogeneous andless

expensive than motor,

Qur competitors include

Hastings, Swintonand RIAS.

Customers Approximately 9% of our Cur Insurance Broking business The Underwriter serves Qur customers are largely, but
Roadside Assistance Membership serves both Roadside Members predominantty Roadside notexclusively, AA Membersas
base has motor Insurance with us and non-Members. Assistance Members, We weaim to provide services for
and 5% hashome insurance. believe Members, in many those we know best. Some
Following the launch of ur cases, should be able to obtain products, such asmortgages,
Underwriter, we have expanded competitive insurance cover are exclusively available to
our customer base both for the as aresult of the extensive data AAMembers.

Underwnter and Broker. The we hold.
majority of policies we underwrite

are forMembers who did not

previously have insurance with us,

Market Inthe UK, motor insurance is alegal requirement and market volumes are driven by the number of cars, The market is primarily affected

drivers metorists and overall cost of motoring. by general economic conditions
The residential property market drives the hormneinsurance market as insurance 1s typically taken when inthe UK.
purchasing a property, Mortgage lending, house price momentum and new build volumes are all factors which
drive the market,
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Our business model

Strategic objectives

Aswe deliver our strategy,

we will strengthenthe AA’s
foundations to become the
UK’s pre-eminent Membership
services organisation and
revolutionise customer
experience. In addition, we will
reduce borrowings and the
associated cost of interest,

subscription

AA brand

The AA’s highly trusted brand has been

at the heart of all we do for more than 110
years, It has supported and differentiated
the AA’s Roadside Assistance services
through the generations and enabled us to
expand into insurance and other services,
innovating when dealing with threats

and challenges.

Ourvalues
Courtesy, Care, Expertise,
Collaberation and Dynamism

The values of the AA are interwoven

with the brand. Our traditional values of
Courtesy, Care and Expertise provide

the bedrock on which we are transforming
the AA_However, to modernise, we also
have to operate with Collaboration and
Dynamism. These values enable us to make
the most of what we have inherited and of
the new technologies and methodologies
we are adopting.

Qur strengths

People, Financial Resources,
Innovation, Reliahility, Intellectual
Property and Technology

These strengths of the AA, which derive
from our brand and values, allow us to
remain robust and flexible in the face
ofchange.

Our strategiciourney pid
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Continued
trust
We are confident that our brand,
values, strengths and strategic
priorities will continue to reward Increased
the trustin the AA and enhance shareholder
the expertise at the heartof our value
brand and services. This will
provide the platform from which
we expect to increase value
for shareholders.
Enhanced
expertise
Subscription Sales

AA Members subscribe incase of -
and in advance of - a need for roadside
assistance.

Our brand attracts Members and creates
loyalty. This helps the AA generate high
recurring revenue and strong cash flow,
enabling investment in our service levels
and Membership proposition.

Customers buy insurance policies,

The AA transformed:
The UK’s pre-eminent
Membership services
organisation

financial services and other offerings such
as driving lessons. Qur brand is important
inattracting customers. ltis also key to

building partnerships for the development

of new products.
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Executive Chairman’s
statement

“The transformation is detivering growth in our
Roadside Assistance Membership base and in
motor insurance policies, reversing long-term
historic declines. It has given us a firm platform
for sustainable growth.

We have delivered results in line with expectations,
mitigating the increases in Insurance Premium Tax
{(IPT) and call outs, and paid a progressive dividend.
In addition, the refinancing reduced the cash

cost of debt by £10m per annum, bringing the
annualised reduction since the IPO to more

than £75m.

We are realising the AA’s potential. We are now
capable of building on our technologies, brand and
positioning in our markets to take advantage of the
abundant opportunities that arise from our ability
to fulfil a wider set of consumer and business
needs. We are more than ever convinced of the
potential of the AA as we position it as the UK’s
pre-eminent Membership services organisation.”

Bob Mackenzie
Executive Chairman

OURSTRONGFUNDAMENTALS

Intransforming the AA, we are buildingon the
strong fundamentals of the business:

High recurring revenues and significant
cash generation

A highly regarded and trusted commercial brand

Clear leadershipin the stable roadside
assistance market

High levels of retentionand loyalty among our
personal Members

Strong market positions across our range of cther
products and services

An experienced and dedicated workforce

£940m £403m
1222p 21.3p

92% 9.3p

Ourfinancialreview p26 >
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Resultsin line with expectations

Overall, Trading Revenue increased

1.6% to £940m with 2.5% growth in Roadside
Assistance. Revenue fromInsurance Services
was flat on the prior year while Driving Services
declined.

Theturnaround of paid Memberships from
decline to growth is a significant milestonein
the transformation of the Roadside Assistance
business and the AA Group, as Roadside
represents 790% of Group Trading EBITDA.
Roadside Assistance Trading Revenue grew
2.5% and Trading EBITDA 1.1%, against the
background of major transformation, the
increased burden of Insurance Premium Tax
(IPT)andincreased breakdown incidents.
This strong performance reflects not just the
AA's resilient business modeland dermand for
our services, but also the significant benefits
already evident inthe first two years of the
transformation.

Group Trading EBITDA rose by 0.2% to £403m
with organic revenue grewth offset by costs
associated with increased breakdown incidents,
higher insurance aggregator spend and the
plannedincreasein IT maintenance costs, Asa
result, the Trading EBITDA margin was slightly
lowerthan last year at 42.9% (2016: 43.5%).

Exceptional operating items were £31m,
comprising largely £14m of costs associated
with the business restructuring. Ofthe £10m
provided for duplicate breakdown cover, E7m

is exceptional operating costs and the balance,
whichisrelated to accruedinterest for refunds,
is allocated to exceptional finance costs.

While dealing with this issue has involved a
considerable commitment of management time,
it has enabled us to incorporate fafrer treatment
of our customers and Members into our systems
and processes.

Operational cash flow was strong and cash
conversionfrom continuing operations before
taxand exceptionaliterns was 92%, Net cash
flow was £42m after dividends (2016; outflow
of £136m). This was achieved despite the
additional capital expenditure relating to
thetransformation.

Strategy update

The programme to transformthe AAinto

the UK's pre-eminent Membership services
organisation began following the IPO when

we set out three strategic priorities and detailed
the investment that would be needed. We have
delivered a great deal against these priorities,
which remain unchanged:

>Strengthen the AA’s foundations to modernise
the platform to become the pre-eminent
Membership services organisationinthe UK

>Revolutionise customer experience through
investrment in the Membership proposition
and new technologies

> Reduce Group borrowings and the associated
interest costs

Our strategic journey and highlights of the
actions we have taken during the yearare set
out on the following pages.

Cultureand organisation

We fully recognise that the AA’s transformation
is dependentonthe AA’s tearns of people,
working on the phones, at their laptops or
atthe roadside.

A new Membership propaosition can only be
realised by people who understand what it is
and how to deliver it to our Members. That has
meant a great deal of change but, importantly,
also preservation of the best of our112 years of
culture. Alot of work has been done to achieve
the necessary change and to create a culture
whichembracesit. While this has been under
way, we have not only continued to provide
our Members and customers with exemplary
service but improved and modernised it.

Our brand has supported and differentiated

the AA’s service levels across all our products.
This brand is tied to our values. At the core of
everything we do are our traditional values of
courtesy, care and expertise. To modernizse,
however, we need to operate ina dynamic way,
to innovate and move rapidly in a changing
market. We also need to cotlaborate to ensure
we have access to the best expertise, advice or
partnerships. This full set of values enables us to
make the most of what we have inherited as well
as the new technologies and methodologies
needed inmodern markets,

I offer my thanks to the AA teams for their hard
work during the year, ancther one of huge
disruption as we did so much totransform the
business. Every achievement is the result of
change and we know that transformationis
challenging and that every single person has
been affected one way or another. We have
every reason to be proud of what we have
achieved and to be excited about what the
future holds.

TheBoard

Ithank John Leach, our Seniorindependent
Director, and the Board forits continued support
ofthe AA over the year, Shareholderscanrest
assured that the AA has considerable breadth of
experience and depth of expertise onthe Board.

Corporate responsiblility

The AA has operatedin a highly responsible
and ethical way since its beginnings. lthas also
had a strong public position as the voice of its
Members. The work of its Charitable Trust has
extended the AA brand and ensured very
favourable perceptions of what we do.

However, we have now incorporated the
responsible, sustainable and ethical ways

of operating into our business by integrating
them more formally into our governance, risk
management, health and safety practices, and
the activities related to our people. Ouraimis
to continuously improve our performance on
every front.

RS IR
PROGRESSION OF THETRANSFORMATION OFTHE AA
Having established the Yeart Year 2 Year 3
transformation strategy at the time of Strengtheningthe Buildin Realising the
the IPO, we have now completed TWo foundations g transformation
years of transformation, momentum

forchange

L _ _ ]

Ourstrategicjourney pi4 »
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Executive Chairman’s
statement continued

Some of the carporate responsibitity highlights
ofthe year have been:

> Early development of a more strategic
approachto sustainability which willengage
the views of a range of stakeholders and result
in amote formal strategy

> Theintroduction of a new programme focusing
on safety and supported by new technology
to help manage safety in our business

»Amore environmentally focused approach
to company car management

?» A new approachto recruitment, using our
culture as a core part of the process, and
greater support for managementin the
development of people and culture

» Anew code of conduct for suppliers, focused
onthe ethicaldelivery of service

As a Membership organisation, our position and
role go beyond the commercial drivers of our
Roadside Assistance business. One of the
ways in which we benefit our Members and the
wider cornmunity is by gauging drivers’ views
through Europe's biggest motoring opinion
panel, the AA Populus Driver Poll. This polling
helps us to promote crucial safety and
environmental issues.

We are contributing to the debate on Driver
Distraction and smart motorways without hard
shoulders. | am also very proud of the projects
the AA Charitable Trust funds, such as Drive
Motorway, a motorway safety course aimed

at nervous drivers and the radical new anti-text-
driving advertisement now being promoted

by the Government’s Think! campaign.

Theseinitiatives are coveredin our Corporate
Responsibility report.

Penslons

As at 31 January 2017, the net Liabilities of the
Group’s defined benefit pensicn schemeas
under IAS 19 were £395m (2016: £296m).
This increase on last year is principally dueto
the recent volatility of corporate bond yields,
which we are required to use as the discount
rate orthese liabilities. The deficitis, however,
areduction from the £622m reported at 31July
2016, the result of anincrease in corporate bond
yieldsand changes to actuarial assumptions,

This includes the UK scheme for which

the |AS 19 deficit valuation was £325m
(2016: £238m}as at 31 January 2017,
Thetriennial review valuation for this scheme
is being carried out as at 31 March 2016.
Preliminary indications suggest the reduction
in long-term gilt yields since 2013 will cause
the deficit to increase from £202mas at
31March 2013.

tn light of the anticipated increasein cost of

the UK pension scheme we have undertaken
araview of the options for mitigating current

and future liabilities, as previously stated.

We are proposing to retain adefined benefit
arrangement allowing all members ofthe
current scheme to accrue future service benefits
ina single modified Career Average Revalued
Earnings defined benefit section {CARE) of the
scheme. This willinvolve transferring employees
from the final salary section of our scheme

into CARE.

0On 20 March 2017, we cornmenced a
consultation process with members of

our defined benefit schemes affected by

the proposed changes, and we have engaged
with the AA recognised union, the Independent
Democratic Union (IDU). The proposed scheme
changes are designed to:

> Mitigate any potential increase in pension costs
tothe business

> Reduce our exposure to pension risks

YRemain competitive within ourindustry

>Create a more consistent pension offering
across our employees

These changes, Ifimplemented, willbe taken
intoaccountinagreeing the deficit reduction
planwith the pension Trustees. The deficit
reduction planis expected to be finalised before
the end of June 2017,

Dividend

Inview of the AA’s business model, whichis
characterised by strong cash generatien, our
confidence inthe transformation plans and
theinterest cost savings facilitated by the
refinancing, the Board is recommending the
payment of total dividends of 9.3 pence per
shareinrespect of the 2017 financial year.

This includes the interim dividend of 3.6 pence
per share which was paid on 28 October 2016,
The payment of the final dividend of 5.7 pence
per share, subject to approval atthe AGMon

8 June, willbe paid on 13 June to shareholders
on theregister on 12 May with the ex-dividend
date of 11 May.,

Itremains our intention to pursue a progressive
dividend policy.
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Ourvaluesaswedisplay
theminourbuildings

QurEmployee
Award winners

Qutlook
We have made a positive start to the 2018
financial year.

The new IT systems and improved productivity
will ultimately enable us to meet our cost savings
targetto cutat least £40m per annum offthe
2015 cost base from the 2019 financial year.

We expect to benefit from continued investment
in our digital platform, the customer relationship
management systems (CRM}, marketing,
advertisingand product development, with

a parhicular focus on our new connected car
product, Car Genie.

With the final tranche of transformation
investment of approximately £20m and
approximately £45m of maintenance capital
expenditure expectedinthe 2018 financial year,
a greater proportion of free cash flow will be
available for the creation of shareholder value
inciuding the repayment of debt.

We continually review the impact of IPT and
otherregulatory change on our Membership
base.|PTis an inequitable tax ontheinsurance
and roadside assistance industries becauseitis
not subject to the offsetting reliefs which most
businesses can claim from VAT. We estimate
thatirrecoverable VAT costs the AA £25mto
£30m per annum.

A strengthened and modernised AA will
be capable of realising a wider range of
consumer and business opportunitiesin
our markets. We willbuild on ourbrand,
technologies and leading market positions
to be the UK’s pre-eminent Membership
services organisation.

Bob Mackenzie
Executive Chairman

GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW

“This was my third year as SID and
one in which | have supported
Bob Mackenzie in his role of
Executive Chairman, providing
advice and additional oversight
on governance matters and the
effectiveness of the Board.”

JohnLeach
Senior Independent Director (SID)

The 2017 financial year has been a dynamic time when we have continued
to advance our corporate governance and reporting standards as well

as support the transformation of the AA. | am confident that a strong
governance framework aligns with a successful transformation.

This was my third year as SID, during which | have supported Bob
Mackenzie in his role of Executive Chairman, providing advice and
additional oversight on governance matters and the effectiveness of
the Board. A key part of this role is ensuring that proper consideration

is given to the balance of risk and reward when major decisions about
our business are taken, including the sale of AA Ireland and the issuance
of the new AS bonds.

The roles and responsibilities of the Board members are clearly defined,
as recommended by the Financial Reporting Council’s UK Corporate
Governance Code, and are described inthis annual report. A clear
separation exists between the Beard’s focus on strategic and financial
review, value setting and determining our approachtorisk and the
operational activities of the Executive Committee.

During the year, | oversaw our second internal Board performance
evaluation which built on the actions resulting from the first evaluation
inthe 2016 financial year. These ranged from setting additionaltime to
consider routine and special Board matters, progressing constructive
debate and promaoting opportunities to signal Board values to the
business. Skills matrices were implemented this year and the
knowledge gained from this will be invaluable.

Ourfirst external Board evaluation s planned for October and will mark
another significant milestone in our evolving governance since our IPO.
We have appointed Condign Board Consulting and we look forward to
working with them,

Qur relationships with our shareholders is central to successful
governance, As SID, | act as a key point of contact for shareholders

to discuss any matters of concern. | will meet with major shareholders

and continue to offer an open invitation for shareholders to meet me.

We have invited the governance officers of our top shareholders to discuss
governance in more depth and Andrew Miller (Chairman of the Audit
Committee}and Mark Millar (Company Secretary) will also attend this
meeting in the coming months.

While | encourage shareholders toattend the Annual General Meeting on
8 lune 2017, should shareholders wish to discuss any matters at another
time, please contact me through the Company Secretary, Mark Millar,

JohnLeach
Senior Independent Director {SID}
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OURSTRATEGIC PRIORITIES

Strengthenthe AA's
foundations to modernise
our platform to become
the pre-eminent
Membership services
organisationinthe UK

Revolutionise customer
experience through
investment inthe
Membership proposition
and new technologies

Reduce Group
borrowings

and the associated
interest costs

The strategic journey

We are now entering the final stage of the
three-year programme to transform the
AA into the UK's pre-eminent Membership
services organisation.

We expect to begin to realise the benefits
inthe 2018 financial year.

The AA's sustainable revenue growth is expected
to lead to increased free cash flow, givingus
options for the allocation of capital, including

the repayment of debt, which will create value
for shareholders.

THETRANSFORMATION PROGRESSION

Year1
(the 2016 financial year)

Strengthening
the foundations

Year2
(the 2017 financiat year)

Building momentum
forchange

We invested in the fundamentals
neededto modernise our [T
systems, recharge our brand,
reinforce the excellence of our
service delivery and improve

the Membership proposition.

We began to build our digital
platformand connected
car positioning.

We relaunched our Financial

Services businessand established

our Insurance Underwriter.
We significantly reduced the cost

ofthe annualinterest on borrowings

through arefinancing.
We paid our first dividend.

The benefits of our investment became evident during this
year. We have reversed years of decline in paid Membership,
with growth accelerating in the second half of the year.

This is the result of our modernised digital platforms, the
new highly effective marketing approach, and the enriched
Membership proposition.

The new business modelsin Financial Services and
Insurance Underwriting are performing well, with the
latter driving growth in motor insurance broker policies
for the first time since 2008.

Qur new IT infrastructure and the investment in new
technology for the patrols has made our operations much
more efficient and we continue to take out cost. We are
encouraged by our connected car technology trialand its
potential, particularly as a tool to pre-empt breakdowns.

We applied £106m of the proceeds of the sale of the Irish
business to the repayment of debt and further reduced
the cost of borrowing through a refinancing.

The strategic achievements of the 2017 financial year
are covered more fully on the following pages.
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Year3

(the 2018 financial year}

Realising the
transformation

With a stronger, more efficient
and modernised platform for our
trusted brand, our leading market
positions and excellent service
levels, we expectto:

Achieve growthbased onour
leading position and the latent
demand in cur market - we expect
to continue to grow Membership,
leverage our new channels and
strengthen our business-to-
business positioning

Expand our technological
capabitity — we are revolutionising
the customer’s experience, driving
sales, achieving higher service
levels and reducing costs; andin
addition devetoping our positioning
to take full advantage of connected
cartechnology

Build on ourbrand beyond
Roadside Assistance - our new
businesses, including ourin-house
Underwriter and Financial Services
partnership, fulfila wider set of
consumer and business needs

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Capital expenditure

When we set out the plan for the transformation, we announced
thatthe capital investment required forthe IT element of
thetransformation was £128m over three years. Thisis now
substanbally complete with the final tranche of approximately
E£20mto be invested inthe 2018 financial year, We expect
maintenance capital expenditure in the order of £45min the
2012 financial year and beyond.

Qperatingcosts

Based on the success of thebrand advertising during the past
two years, we expectagain toinvest approximately £10min
brand marketing. In addition, we continue to expectto invest
in product develoepment which will significantly enhance the
Membership proposition.

Incremental IT operational mantenance costs, mainly fees and
licences, reached £7rm per year, with an anticipated annuatrun
rate of £8min the 2018 financial year.

The new IT has increased our efficiency and we expect to reduce
costs from the 2019 financial year, saving at least £40m per vear
offthe 2015 cost base. Cumulative savings to date are £20m
including £12m in the 2017 financial year. These came from higher
productmity threughout the organisationincluding efficiencies
inour call centres and back office. The cost to achieve these total
savings is expected to be £45m overthree years, of whichwe
have now invested £36m,
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Year 2 Building momentum for change

Growing our
position in
Roadside
Assistance

'm
turnin

INtom
Dad!

(Exceptthat | doitall on the app)

Paul became anew Member
and has already used the
breakdown apptofind
cheap petrol, get his rewards
at Moto service stations,

and evento changea tyre.
Not quite what his dad had.

1

Reversing the
long-standing decline in
Membership numbers

We have met our goal of reversing the decline
in paid personal Membership numbers and
we look forward to continued growth.

This arises fromthe transformation of our
Membership proposition and our commercial
model. Through our investmentin new T
systems, brand, invigorated marketing, a more
rational approach to pricing and improved
rewards for Members, we have retained more
existing Members and won new Members.



Ourtargeted marketing,
withits focus on outdgor
advertising, almost trebled
the number of himes an adult
saw our adverts

2

Advertising and marketing
campaigns reaping rewards

We refreshed our 2016 advertising campaign
with a new emphasis on outdoor and radio
advertising, inadditionto TV, andits
effectivenessis evident. We estimate that, on
average, each adult has been reached 60 times,
compared with 22 times in the previous year.
Thisis one of thereasons behind a 5% increase
in utilisation of the service. While thisincreases
our costs, it also underpins retention by
reinforcing the value we provide.

Sales and marketing communication has
become better pitched to the individual as
aresult of the marketing element of the CRM
which has been operational since April,

New Members are no longer deluged with
offers but these are now carefully tailored to be
relevant and are proving much more attractive,

Our new digrtal sales channel is highly effective
and driving double-digit growth in new business
andan increase In average salesvalue asit helps
Members select theright level of cover.

Curimproved pricing model ensures our
products are maore rationally tiered so that
Members are now maore likely to have the cover
they need, Restricted underlying price increases
{net of IPT) have helped retention.

Rewards for Members, including discounts with
Mitchells & Butlers and MOTO service stations,
are gaining usage. Redemptions of the Mitchells
& Butlers benefit trebled, drivenin part by the
app which identifies where those benefits are
inrelation to a Member’s current location,
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3

Channels for
Membership growth

The continued growth in the UK car parc and
in total driven mileage underpinsthe value of
our products and services which touch many
pointsofa Member’s life.

Many of our products and services are geared
teinitiating customer relationships and are

complementary to our membership proposition.

We are differentiating the AA and creating
cross-sell opportunities through the
development of products and services such as:

AA Driving Schooland BSM: as the largest
driving schoolin the UK, we areimproving our
franchise offering and contact with pupils.

Carloans: we provide financing through our
new Financial Services partnership with Bank
of Ireland - and now mortgages too.

AA Cars:we now have 2,300 dealers on AA
Cars with a significant proporticn sigred up for
the AA Dealer Promise, our code of conduct
which offers arbitration by the AA in disputes.

Motor insurance: Membership may resuttin
more competitive pricing - and this also applies
to home insurance,

a4

Strengthening our business-
to-business positioning

Our leading positionsin our business-to-
business Roadside Assistance markets -
manufacturing, fleet and leasing and banks'
Added Value Accounts - lends scale to our
operations. The strength of our relationships
with our manufacturer partners and our share
of about $5% of that market, combined with
our strong position in ARC (the pan-European
organisation of breakdown clubs), provides
us with aplatform for innovation across
theindustry.

We renewed or extended contracts with
MclLaren, Hyundai, Lotus, MG, Alphabet,
Venson, Hertz, South West Ambulance Trust,
G45S and Barclaycard {Buying Group).

We have once again reported record satisfaction
with our service for VW Group. The scale and
expertise of our dedicated technicians and
patrol force and the high standards of service we
deliver have resulted in a customer satisfaction
rate of more than 95%.

Qur new contract with Lex Autolease, the

UK’s biggest leasing company, commenced

in January 2018, This contract added
approximately 280,000 vehicles and 50 patrols
to our own fleet. This helps our Roadside
business, as scale is criticalto maintaining high
service standards while optimising costs. This
brings our overall share of the UK's 50 largest
fleet and leasing companies to more than 60%.

I've
done
It!

Sallywascaneofmorethan
100,000 people that we,
at the AA Driving School
and the Brtish Scheol of
Motonng (BSM), taught

to drive during the year
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Year 2 Building momentum for change

Expanding
our
technology
capability

Improving our patrols’
efficiency with new
technology

The breakdown app

speeds up and simplifies
communication betweenthe
patrol and the Member — and
itshows the Member where
the patrotis in relation to hig
own position. Itis now used
in22% of breakdowns

1

IT systems and processes

Our ITinvestment can be broadly separated
intoinfrastructure, AA Help (our Roadside
Assistance deployment system), customer
relationship management (CRM), and our digital
platform. The complexity of our requirements
means that these systems have to inter-connect,
We are now at the stagewhere we are beginning
to benefit from the investment we have made in
these systems.

T supportsystems

We have successfully installed new IT
infrastructure and applications to support

our back-office functions and call centres.

This isgenerating savings as we reduce manual
reconciliations andin-house maintenance,

and become leaner and more efficient.

AA Help 2 and the patrols’ communication
The new version of AA Help, our bespoke
operational deployment system, was rolled out
in 2016. This improves the interface for our call
centres and patrols, enhancing information flow
among our employees and patrol deployment.

Access toiPhones and tablets for our patrots has
significantlyimproved therr efficiency as they
now have easy access toinformation ahead of
and during a job. This also saves time spent on
administration as we increasingly reduce
reliance on paper records of jobs done.

CRM

The marketing element went live ahead of plan,
allowing us to segment and market to customers
ina more sophisticated, personalised and
relevant way. The system reduces the quantity,
while increasing the effectiveness, of
communication.

The integrated sales platform will, once all
Members’ datais loaded, enable a 360-degree
view of a customer, their data and products.
This will enhance customers’ experience,

our ability to matchtheir needsto our range

of products and allow usto communicate with
greater relevance. itisalso expectedtoreduce
handling time, and therefore costs, forcall
centres and increase the number of products
per customer from the current level.

Insurer-hosted pricing

This allows our in-house Underwriter to tailor
prices using enhanced data and it enables more
dynamic and frequent price changes. In time,
other members of the insurer panel willalso

be able to adopt it and we expectit to improve
perforrance In our broking business.

Help
IS IN
nand
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Now
lam in
control

Theconnestedcar
technology providesa
health check of the car’s
systemsandinupto
onethird of cases can
pre-empt a breakdown

2

Realising the potential
of digitalisation

Qur digital investmentis improving the
attractivenessand efficiency of the AA's
products and processes by making them
more immediate, intuitive and relevant.

The new commercial website, launchedin
May 2016, enhances our commercial online
processesincluding enabling usto update
information and prices more rapidly. Since its
launch, we have achieved double digit year-
on-year new business volume growth.

MyAA

Launched in early 2016, My AA will be fully
functional when the CRMis rolled out across
our various productlines, It gives our Members
access to their accounts ona new digital
platform, enabling them to manage their own
informatton and giving us a single profile of
acustomer across allour products. Thisisa
critical step leading to modernised self-service,
which will deliver savings.

Theapp

The breakdown app has now been downloaded
by more than one million Members. But more
importantly, it 1s now used in 22% of breakdowns
thus reducing the number of calls being handled
by cali centres and improving customer
experence. The app provides a significant and
differentiating benefit to Members as it includes
information not available to non-members.

3

Development of our
connected carposition

The AAis developingits connected car
technology with our partners, Intelematics
Europe and Trakm8, Intelematics Europe is

our joint venture with Intelematics, the leading
telematics provider, and European roadside
assistance clubs and Trakm8 is the telematics
partner we have used for our own fleet and with
our fleet custorners,

We have successfully trialled a retro-fit
telematics product and are now planning to
launch our new connected car product, Car
Genie, in spring 2017, We are encouraged by
the trial that established that up to one third of
breakdowns could be avoided asthe AA could
be notified ofthe faults and plan repairs before
the breakdown occurred.

This technology gives the AA the capability to
improve its service at the same time asreducing
costs through better prognostics, diagnostics,
accuracy of deployment and speed of repair.
Thereis also potential for its use ininsurance for
pricing risk. From the customer’s perspective,

it offers additional benefits from the monitoring
of safety, security, logistics and driving costs.

CarGenie, our new
connected car product

The AAls developing
connected cartechnology
with its partners Intelematics
Europeand Trakm8
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Year 2 Building momentum for change

Building on
our brand

1

Insurance Underwriter
widening thereach of
AAinsurance

The Insurance Underwriter was launched on
30 January 2016 with a highty experienced
team, state-of-the-art IT systems, a strong brand
and a competitive pricing modet. In the first
year of business, we have underwritten 115,000
motor policies, expanding cur market as the
majority of custormers are either new to the AA
or have not been insured by us for more than
ten years. We recently added home insurance
underwriting as the proprietary data we haveis
relevant to both segments,

While the financial benefits are yet to become
fully apparent, we are encouraged by ourfirst
year and continue to expect that we can build the
business over the next few years, supported by
a significant level of reinsurance to mitigate risk.

Our Underwriter's ability to price competitively
is also benefiting our broking business as
volumes of newbusinessincrease.

First class
customer

care,
thanks.

2

AA-branded Financial
Services partnership
growing and strengthening

The relaunch of AA-branded Financial Services
through our long-term partnership with Bank
of Ireland (BOI UK} 15 going welland the
relationship is continuing to grow and
strengthen. Our customer offering combines
BOIUK's proven product development
capability withthe strength of the AA’s
brandand cur Membership base.

The AA's Financial Services propositions focus
on credit cards, unsecured personal loans,
savings and mortgages and has already gained
around 100,000 customers.

We are confident that we have the platform
to rebuild our position ina market which
was previously highly successful for the AA.

3

Growing our presence
inHome Services

The introduction of new operating systems

and products into Home Services has prepared
the ground for the many opportunities we

see inthe market. We are ideally placed to
disrupt this highly fragmented and mature
market, challenging the dominant competitors
with our brand and service levels.

Through our own highly trained workforce
and partnerships with boiler manufacturers,
we are capable of profitable and sustainable
growth, Qurunique and radical boiler cover
service that saves customers money through
switching energy tariffs is an example of the
value we can provide,
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In-house Insurance
Underwriter has brought
new customers into our
insurance business

Reducing
borrowing
costs

Reducing Group borrowings
and associated interest costs

it remains a key strategic priority to reduce
Group borrowings and the associated cost

of servicing that debt. The AAis highly cash
generative and converts on average 100% of
EBITDA to operating cash flow. We have very
low working capital requirements and low levels
of maintenance capital expenditure.

Inthe lasttwo years, transformation capital
expenditure has been significant. Higher levels
of maintenance capital expenditure were also
required hefore the transformationis fully
realised. We now expect transformation capital
requirements to reduce considerably, with
approximately £20m to be investedinthe 2018
financial year.

Inthe 2019 financial year, we expect no further
significant transformation capital expenditure
and for underlying maintenance capital
expenditure to reach a normalised level.

We expect touse our free cash flow to
accelerate deleveraging.

During the year we undertook two major
transactions which helped reduce the cost
of borrowings:

AnewMOTforMembers’
mertgages launched during
the first full year of our
AA-branded financial
services partnership

with Bank of Ireland

Sale of AA Ireland and repayment of debt
On 11 August 2016, we sold AA ireland.

It was aninsurance broker-led business
which differed significantly fromthe AA's
UK operations, allowing limited scope for
synergies and cross-sell.

Net proceeds from the disposalof AAfreland
were £130m and allowed £106m of the Senior
Term Facility to be repaid on 31 August 2016,
Under the terms of our borrowings, we have held
back £24m from the net proceeds in ring-fenced
available cash to be used for potential future
acquisitions, Any amounts notcommitted toan
acquisition within 12 months from the AA Ireland
completion date must be usedto repay either
Class A notes or the Senior Term Facility.

Extensionof maturities and reduction of cash
interest payments throughrefinancing
Aligned with our strategy toreduce Group
borrowings and associated interest costs, the
refinancing in December not only successfully
ehabled annual savings to cashinterest costs
of £10m perannum, but also extended the
maturities of a substantial proportion of

our debt.

We raised £700m of new Class A5 fixed-rate
notes duein 2022, priced at 2.9%, exchanging
£300m of our Class Al notes {due in 2018 and
at a fixed rate of 4.7%) and £195m of the

A4 notes (due 2019 and at arate of 3.8%).
Inaddition, under a Tender Offer we accepted
£165m of Class B2 notes {due 2022 and at

a fixed-rate of 5,5%). As a result, a meaningful
portionofthe AA's Class A liabilities have been
extended from 2018 and 201910 2022 and the
aggregate principal of its subordinated Class
B2 note liabilities reduced by £185 million,
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Key performance
indicators

Our key performance indicators (KPIsreflect the AA's strong fundamental
characteristics (listed in the Executive Chairman’s statement) and provide
the basis of the transformation which we will deliver through our strategic

priorities which are explained in the Strategic Journey. The KPIs below
reflect boththose fundamental characteristics and our progress against
the strategic priorities. The performance underlying these KPlIs is
explainedin Our Performance and the Financial Review.

ACHIEVE STRONG FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE LEADING TO THE DELIVERY OF SUSTAINABLE SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

Keystrength KpPt Definition Data Executivedirectors’
Strategic objective Remurnieration
High recurring Trading The key measure of segmental performance £403m Annualcash
revenue and cash EBITDA is considered to be Trading EBITDA, being earnings bonus 70%
flow generation beforeinterest, tax, depreciationand amortisation +0.2% basedon Trading
arising from strong and excluding exceptional iterns, items not atlocated EBITDA
Trading EBITDA to a segment, discontinued operations and R o
ng businesses held for sale. Inthe current penod, EI;T'IaInII'_Ig
items net allocated to a business segment 30% subject
principalty relate to the difference between the cash to Trading
contributions to the pension schemes for ongoing EBITDA underpin.
service and the calculated annual service cost and
share-based payments.
Highcashflow Cash Net cash inflow from continuing operating 92% -
generation conversion activities before tax and exceptional items 9
divided by Trading EBITDA, -9ppt
Reduceborrowings | Leverage Ratio of net debt to Trading EBITDA for 6.7x Individual
continuing operations for the tast 12 months +4.3% objective
{seepage 28). . ;or Eanh bonus
or CFO.
Reduce borrowings | Interest Trading EBITDA divided by fotalongoing cash 2.6x Individuat
andassoclated cover finance costs (see note 6). +8.3% objective
Interest costs hd for cash bonus
for CFD,
CREATE SHAREHOLDER VALUE
Keystrength KPI Deflinttion Data Executive directors’
Strategic oblective Remuneration
Shareholdervalue Total Total shareholder returnrepresentsthe change | +3% Long Term
Shareholder | inclosing value of ashare held from the IPO Incentive
Return (%) to 31January 2017 plus the value of any Plans share
dividends paid during that period. This has performance
been measured using the share price oninitial condition.

admission of £2.50.
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N L L ]
STRENGTHEN THE AAAS THE PRE-EMINENT MEMBERSHIP SERVICES ORGANISATION IN THEUK AND REVOLUTIONISE
CUSTOMEREXPERIENCE
Keystrength L Definition Data Executive directors’
Strategic oblective Remuneration
Market leader Paid Number of personal Members excluding 3.3m Individual criteria
inRoadside persenal free Memberships at the period end. 0.1% of bonus of
Assistance Members +0.1 Executive
{millions) Chairman,
Business Number of business customers at the 10.0m -
customers period end.
(millions) 2.3%
Average income per personal Member £1 Individual criteria
aig;ie excluding free Memberships. 538 ofbonus of
+1.3% Executive
Chairman,
Average income per business customer. £20 -
+11,1%
Strong market Insurance Total policies sold inthe last 12 months 1.9m -
positions in policies excluding business customers within
othersegments {miltions) Home Services. -9.4%
Franchised Number of driving schoolinstructors at the 2’607 -
driving periodend.
instructors +1.3%
Scaleandbarriers Patrols Number of employeesin the UK that 2877 -
toentry attended breakdowns. i 1 %
Breakdowns | Number of breakdowns attended. 3.6m -
attended +5.1
(millions) 1%
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Our performance

'ROADSIDE ASSISTANCE

Roadside Assistance reached animportant milestone with the reversal of the long term decline of paid personal Members. Trading Revenue grew 2.5%

and Trading EBITDA rose 1.1%.

Trad_'mg Rsyenue ﬁxc'h.l ding Iraqu ng E?llTDA eft‘:’l;.ldmg Trading EBITDA margin
£/42m 365m 49,24
(E724m) (E361m) (49.9%)
3.6m 3.3m £158 10.0m £20
(3.5m) (3.3m) (£156}) (10.2m) (£18)
Breakdowns Pad personal Average income per Business Average income
attended Members paid Member Customers per business
{excludingfree {excluding free customer
Memberships} Membership)
Headlines Financial performance

Y Paid personal Members up 0.1% to 3,335k with retentionincreased to
B82% and new business volumes up 14%

YIncome per perscnal Member rose 1.3%to £158 per Member driven
by improved ancillary sales

> Retained business contracts with Myundal, Lotus and McLaren
among others

Y Income per business customer up 11.1% to £20 per customer driven
by increased breakdowns attended

» Awarded Which? Recommended Provider status for both consumerand
AA-provided manufacturer breakdown cover for the Tith year inarow

Overview

Roadside Assistance performance is driven by our highly valued persenal
Member base. However, business custorners provide close to half the jobs
for the patrol force, supporting the scale of our operations, whichis critical
to our success,

Roadside Assistance zlso includes additional services such as vehicle
inspections, AA Cars, AA Tyres, connected car and publishing. Collectively
these businesses generate approximately £6m of Trading EBITDA.

Roadside Assistance Trading Revenue grew 2.5% to £742m, driven by the
increase in average income for both paid personal Members and business
customers, We have turned around the long term dectine of paid personal
Members, reaching an important milestone in the return to growth since
May.

Average income per paid personal Member rose 1.3% to £158 (2016:

4.0% rise) driven by improved sales of ancillary products. With more
parts sold by patrels, ancillary revenue rose 17% on the prior year. The 27%
rise in battery sales volumes followed the adoption of the new testing
equipment and payment processes, enabling higher service levels.

The combination of enhancements to our product offering, more rational
pricing, our higher profile through advertising, more highly valued
custorner rewards and our improved online capabilities has driven

both new sales and retention.

Revenue from new Members rose due to a 14% increase in new business
volurnes, driven particularly by our improved online capabilities. Our
retention rate rose to 82% (2016: 81%). Improverments to the Membership
propasition mean we are receiving fewer calls from Members requesting
areview of their cover. Qur Stay AA team have overcome some operational
issues at the start of the year and continue toretain more of those whocall
and at lower discounts.

We also grew revenue inthe business-to-business segment, largely due
to the 11% increase in revenue per customer. Thisis partly driven by the
benefit of the rise in breakdownincidents under pay-for-use contracts and
offsets a decline in business customers hetd with our banking partners.
Trading EBITDA increased by £4m to £365m with revenue growth

partly offset by increased breakdown incidents. Savings generated by
efficiencies inthe patrol force and call centres limited the costimpact
from higher breakdowns to £6m. Trading EBITDA rmargin decreased
from49.9%t049.2%.

Financlal review p26 »
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INSURANCE SERVICES

Trading Revenue was stable with lower core Insurance and Horne Services
revenueoffset by growth in Financial Services . Trading EBITDA declined due
toincreased aggregator spend and a lower contribution from Home Services.

DRIVING SERVICES

Dnving Services reported a reduction in Trading Revenue with an increased
number of driving instructor franchises offset by fewer speed awareness
courses delivered. Trading EBITDA rose, driven by efficiency savings.

Trading Revenue Trading EBITDA Trading EBITDA margin Trading Revenue Trading EBITDA Trading EBITDA margin
13Im £76m 58.0x £67m £20m  29.9«
(E131m) {E78m) (59.5%) (E68m) {E£19m) (27.9%)

1.9m £70 100k 2,607

(2.1m) (E63) (33k) {2,574)
Policynumbers Averageincome  FipancialServices Driving
includes Home per palicy praducts instructors

Services
Headlines Headlines

> Total policy numbers down 9% but experienced the first motor insurance
policy growth since 2008, driven in part by the in-house Underwriter

> Driving Scheol franchisee numbersincrease due to improvemnents in
franchise offering

>Financial Services revenue increased as our partnership with the Bank
of Ireland continues to build positive momentum

>Qurcore products of motor and home insurance achieved the
top five-star rating from Defaglo again

Overview

We arranged 1.9m policies last year for motor and home insurance
andHome Services which provides emergency boiler and heating

system repairs.

We launched our in-house Insurance Underwriterin January 2016
to participate on the AA’'s motor insurance paneland, from August,
onthe AA’s homeinsurance panel

Our Financial Services partnership with the Bank of Ireland builds

onalonghistory of AA financial services.

Financlal performance

Trading Revenue was flat at £131m with lower core insurance and
Home Services revenue offset by growth in Financial Services.
This performance does not, however, demonstrate the headway
we have madein this division.

Motor insurance achieved growth in policies for the first time since 2008,
benefitting in part from new sales threugh our in-house Underwriter,
which performed ahead of expectations. Inits first year of business,

we underwrote 115,000 motor insurance policies.

The 9% drop in total insurance policies was driven by the planned decline
in travelinsurance which has lower average premiums than the rest of our
portfolio. As result, total average income per policy rose from £63 to £70.

Financial Services revenue increased as our partnership continues to build
positive momentum utilising the inherent strength of the AA brand and
marketing expertise of the AA.

Trading EBITDA declined 2.6% to £76m due to higher marketing spend
oninsurance aggregators and a lower contribution from Home Services
as we focus on future profitability over volume. These factors, along with
the ramp-up of the Financial Services revenue, resultedina lower
Trading EBITDA margin of 58.0% (2016: 59.5%).

Financialreview p26 )

>Decline in number of speed awareness courses delivered by DriveTech

> Profitability protected through efficiency savings

Overview

This division comprises Driving Schools and DriveTech. Through the
AAand BSM brands the AA is the largest driving schoolinthe UK and
DriveTech is the market leader in providing speed awareness courses
for police forces in the UK and fleet training services.

Financlal performance

Driving Services Trading Revenue declined by £1mto £67m as the higher
number of Driving Schoolinstructors partially offset a lower number of
police speed awareness courses delivered by DriveTech.

The increase in Driving School revenue was in line withthe 1% rise in
the number of franchised instructors, a reversalof the recent decline.
Improvements to our franchise proposition and the strength of the AA
and BSM brands with learner drivers has helped this performance.

In DriveTech, revenue was affected by a decline in the number of speed
awareness courses delivered, as police forces face funding constraints.

Despite the lower revenue, Driving Services Trading EBITDA rose
£imto £20m driven by efficiency savings.

Financlalreview p26 )

s5aUISNg IND

oUBULIOME INO

QoUBLLIaADEY

SIUAWANEIG |BIDURULS



26 AA pl¢ Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Financial review

“The year ending 31 January 2017
was the second full year of the
transformation of the AA and
the turnaround we are seeing
is indicative of the resilience
of the business and of the
effectiveness of our actions.”

MartinClarke
Chief Financial Officer

REVENUE
2017 2016
Em Em
Roadside Assistance 742 724
Insurance Services )] 13
Dnving Services 67 68
tnsurance Underwriting - 2
Trading Revenue 940 925
Revenue from business disposed of - 10
Excephonal revenue provision N -
Group revenue 933 935

Trading Revenue grew 1.6% 1o £940m, compared with £925m
lastyear. Theincrease in revenue reflects arobust performance by
Roadside Assistance, which grew revenue by £18m or 2.5% through
increased average income per personal Member and higher business-
to-business revenue.

Revenue for the Group’s other segments was broadly flat on the prior year.
In Insurance Services, lower revenue from Home Services and motor
insurance was offset by increased Financial Services revenue as our
partnership with the Bank of Ireland continues to build positive
momentum, Driving Services' revenue marginally declined due to a fali
inthe number of speed awareness courses delivered in the year through
our DriveTech business. Insurance Underwriting revenue has declined

as the income from the launch of our newin-house Insurance
Underwriter was offset by an asseciated change of accounting treatment.
The broker commission received on these policies. along with costs
incurred, willnow be recognised over the life of the policy along

with the underwriter prermum.

Group revenue also included £ 7m relating to a provision for dupficate
breakdown cover. In addition, £3m was charged to exceptional finance
costs bringing the total exceptional charge to £10m. See note 21for
further information.

TRADINGEBITDA
2017 2016
£m £m
Roadside Assistance 365 361
Insurance Services 76 78
Driving Services 20 19
Insurance Underwriting ) -
Head Office costs 57 (56)
Group Trading EBITPA 403 402
Trading EBITDA margin (%) 42.9 43.5

Trading EB!TDA was £403m, slighily ahead of the prior year result. Growth
in Roadside Assistance was partly offset by a 5% increasein breakdown
incidentsin the year with a net £6mrise in associated costs. Insurance
Services Trading EBITDA was affected by higher marketing spendon
nsurance aggregators and a lower contribution from Home Services as
we focus on future profitability in preference to volurne. Therisein Head
Office costs reflects the impact ofincreased IT maintenance costs offset
by efficiency savings.

Weachieved cost savings of £12minthe year, bringing the curmnulative
savings to £20m. The Trading EBITDA margin reduced from 43.5%
to 42.9%.
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R M
OPERATING PROFIT

2017 2016

£m £m

Group Trading EBITDA 403 402
ltems not allocated to a segment {20) (18)
Amortisation and depreciation (67} (51
Exceptional operating items including impairment (32) (36)

Operating profit from continuing operations 284 297

The £13m fallin operating profitis driven primarily by theincrease in
amortisation and depreciation.

The E2mincrease in items not allocated to a segment isdriven bya £7m
increase inthe share-based payments expense due to the first full year
charge for grants made in the prior year under the long term incentive
schemes for management. This was partially offset by a ESmdecreasein
the difference between the cash contributions to the pension scheme (set
as part of the 2013 triennial valuation}and the calculated annuat service
cost{as perlAS19).

Depreciation and amortisationincreased by £16m to £67m reflecting
increased IT transformation capital expenditure and the roll out of and
use of the first phases of the IT transformation programme.

Exceptional operating items including impairment were £32m, largely
comprising £14m of costs associated with the business restructuring
and a £7m charge for duplicate breakdown cover,

S .

FINANCECOSTS

201 2016

£m £m

Interest on external borrowings 147 159
Finance charges payable under finance leases 8 7
Totalongoing cash finance costs 155 166
Ongoing amortisation of debt issue fees 5 4
Net finance expense on defined benefit
pension schemes 1w 12
Totat ongoing non-cash finance costs 15 16
Double-running interest on external borrowings - 19
Debt repayment premium and penalties 2 62
Transfer from cash flow hedge reserve for
extinguishment of cash flow hedge 6 8
Debt issue fees immediately written off following
repayment of borrowings 4 18
Duplicate breakdown cover-interestonrefunds 3 -
Exceptional finance costs 15 107
Totalfinance costs 185 289

Total finance costs fell £104m, of which £60m was due to lower debt
repayment prerium and penalties and £31m due to lower interest
onexternalborrowings.,

The repayment of E106m of our Senior Term Facility in August 2016
and the refinancing undertaken in December 2016 will reduce our
annual interest on external borrowings by approximately £5m and
£10mrespectively.

Taxation

The tax charge for the year of £26m ismade up of a current tax charge
of £20rm and a deferred tax charge of E6m. The deferred tax charge
includes a £2m charge due to thereduction in future corporation tax
rates substantively enacted during the year. The effective tax rate was
22.0%(2016:23.5%).

Profitand earnings pershare

Profit after fax from continuing operations increased to £74m (2016; £1m
toss) driven by the reduction infinance costs incurred inthe year. Asa
result, basic earnings per share rose by 12.4p, fromaloss of 0.2p t0 12.2p,

Adjusted basic earnings per share were 21.3p (2016: 21.8p) with flat
adjusted profit after tax marginally offset by an increased number of
ordinary shares.

Profit after tax from discontinued operations related tothe Irish business

and was £80m, whichincluded £7m operating profit, a tax charge of £4m
and £77m from the profit andisposal.

CASHFLOW AND LIGUIDITY

2017 2016

£m £m

Trading EBITDA 403 402
Working capital 8) 12
Otheritems (24) (8}
Cash flow from continuing operating actities before
exceptionalitems and taxation 3N 406
Discontinued operations 0 14
Excephional items and tax paid (36) (39
Acquisitions and disposals 99 8}
Cash flow from other investing actnities 52) B83)
Cashinflow fromissue of share capital - 199
Debtrefinancing activities (102) (382)
Interest on borrowings {(143) (178)
Cash flow from other financing activities {105) (85}
Netincreasein cash and cash equivatents 42 (136)
Cashconversion (%) 92 o]}

The unfavourable movement in working capital of £8m resulted in cash
flow from continuing operating activities before exceptional items and
tax decreasing from £408mto £371m. Otheritems included the pension
charge not allocated to a segment and working capitalexceptional
charges. Cash conversion remained healthy at 92% (2016: 101%).

Despite the continuing elevated levels of [T capital expenditure, the

AA generated a net cash inflow for the year of £42m (2016: £136m cash
outflow). This was a result of the receipt of proceeds from the disposal
of our Irish business in August 2016 combined with lower cash outflows
associated with debt refinancing activities and interest on borrowings.
The cash balance has therefore increased to £21Im (2016: £166m), held
in AAA money market funds for easy access and high liquidity. The £150m
working capital facility remains undrawn other than the £10m ancillary
facility used to issue letters of credit to certain corporate insurance
providers. We do not currently envisage needing to draw on the working
capital facility for the foreseeable future,
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Financial review
continued

We are required to hold segregated funds as *restricted cash” inorder Net debtand dividends
to satisfy regulatory requirements governing our regulated busir
including the Insurance Underwriting business. These restricted cash NETDEBT
- inci 2017 2016
balances haye decnjeased to £23m (2016: E34m)principally due to the Yearended 31 January i e
sale of the Irish business. - —
Senior Term Facility 348 454
Capitalmanagement Class Anotes 1,930 1,725
- - . — - Less: AAIntermediate Co Limited group cash and
The Group considers its capitaltobe a combination of net debt andequity.  cash equivatents {136) 04)
As at 31 January 2017, net debt was £2.7bn while the equity market Net Senior Secured Debt! 2142 5085
capitalisation was £1.5bn. Class B2 noles 70 735
The Directors seek to achieve an appropriate balance betweenthehigher  finance lease obligations &7 &1
return that is possible with borrowings and the advarnitages and security of
) " WBS debt? 2,779 2.881
equity funding. We aim to reduce both the amount of net debt and the cost S:t R ABAS } Z 1 and cash equivalents? ' 75 72
of servicingit over time, ¢ AA plc Groupcash and cash equivalents
i . X 3 i Totalnetdebt 2,704 2,809
As a highly leveraged public company, ourintention remains to repay debt
through trading cash flows to reduce overall gross borrowings. Thisis a .
key medium term focus for the business while maintaining our competitive A& plcTr a‘j“fg EB'TDj“ . 403 402
advantage through investment in technology. The other strategic AAIntermediate Trading EBITDA a4 Ar?
objectives are of equally high priority but require lower levels of cash
to deliver. Given the continued strong cash generation of the business Net debtratic® 6.7x 7.0x
over many years, we do not have to trade these objectives off against Class B2 leverage ratio® 8.7x 6.9
each other. Senior leverage ratic’ 5-2x 5.0x
The capital structure at 31 January 2017 is summarised below:
Class Afree cashfiow: debt service® 3.3x 3.6x
CAPITAL STRUCTURE Class Bfrea cash flow: debt service? 2.3x 2.4x
Expectad Interest rate Principal
maturity date % £m 1 Principal amountsofthe Senior Term Facility and Class A nates less A4 Intarmediate Ca Limited
Senior Term Facility 31 January 2019 5.00 348 groupcashandcash ':‘“”ab“‘s' - " "
2 WBS debtrepresents the borrowings and cash batances within the WBS structure headed by
Class Atnotes 3iuly 2018 4.72 75 AAIntermediate CoLimited. Thisincludes the principal amounts of the Senor Term Facility,
Class A2 notes 31ty 2025 5.27 500 Class Anotes, Class B notes andfinance leasesiass AA intermediate Co Limited group cash
Class A3 notes 31uly 2020 425 500 :":“":““'““*"ts' . . -
otal cashand cash. lents for the Group the valuereportedas
Class A4 notes 31July 2019 3.78 55 Intermediate Co Limited group cashand cash equivalents.
Ctass A5 notes 31Japyary 2022 2.88 70D 4 AAintermediate Co Limited group Trading EBITDA including o inued op as
Class B2 notes 31July 2022 5.50 570 required by the debt documents.
Totalborrowings 4.63 2,848 5 Ratipof Total Net Debt to AA pic Trading EBITOA for the (ast 12 months.
Finance lease obligations 67 6 Ratio of Net WBS debt2ta AAIntermediate Trading EBITDAforthe last12 months,
. 7 Ratioof Net Senior Secured Debt! to AA Intermediate Trading EBITDA forthe last 12 months,
Cash and cashequivalents @an) 3
8 Ratioof last 12 months free cash fiow to proforma debt service relating to the Senjor Term
Totalnet debt 2,704 " pqcityand ClassAnctes
Equity {vaiued at close on 31 January 2017} 1,486 9 Ratooflast!2 months free cashilowto proforma debt service
Total capital 4190 |norderto comply withthe requirements of the Class A notes, we are

The weighted average interest rate for all borrowings of 4.63% has
been calculated using the effective interest rate and carrying values on
31January 2017,

Excluding the remaining Class Aland Class A4 notes, which are nearing
maturity, we do not envisage making materiat early repayment of the other
bonds because of the associated penalties. The substantial T investment
is modernising the business and will also substantially reduce the fevel of
IT spend in subsequent years, Once this is complete, we expect torevertto
more normalised levels of capital expenditure. This, together with very low
working capital requirements, will significantly improve net cash flow.

We therefore expect tobe able to make further repayments to our Senior
Term Facility over its remaining life before refinancing any residue at or
before maturity.

required to maintain the Class A free cash flow to debt service ratio in
excess of 1.35x, The Class B2 notes require us to maintain the Class B2
free cash flow to debt service ratioin excess of x.

The Class A and Class B2 notes therefore place restrictions on the Group’s
ability to upstream cash from the key trading companies to pay external
dividends and finance activities unconstrained by the restrictions
embedded inthe financing documents.

The Class A notes only permit the release of cash providing the senior
leverage ratio after paymentis less than 5.5x and providing there is
sufficient excess cash flow to cover the payment.

The Class B2 note restrictions generally only permit the release of cash
providing the fixed charge cover ratio after payment is more than 2:1
and providing that the aggregate payments do not exceed 50% of the
accumulated consolidated net income.
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KEY CASHRELEASEMETRICS
2017 2016
Netseniorleverage (AA Intermediate Co Limited group)’ 5.2x 5.0x
Excess cash flow? £194m £165m
Fixed charge coverratic? 3.0x 2.8x
Consobdated netincome* £214m £197m

Note that the above table relates to the financial actwvibes of the AA Intermediate Ca Limited
group and therefare may differ shightly from those of the AA pic Group.

1 Ratioofnet Senior Secured Debt to Trading EBITDA of AA Intermediate Co Limited group
for the last 12 months. This excludes AA pic Group cash and cash equivalents

2 Cumulativefree cashflow, since t February 20!3, reduced by dividends paid by the AA
Intermediate Co Limited group and adjusted for items required by the financing documents,

3 Retio offixed finance chargesto Trading EBITDA.

4 Cumulative profit after tax, since 1May 2013, aPjusted foritems required by the firancing
documents and reduced by dividends paid by the AA Intermediate Co Limited group.,

Penslons

As at 31 January 2017, the Group's defined benefit pension schemes net
liabilities under 1AS 19 were £395m, anincrease of £99m since 31 Janvary
2016. Thisincrease s largely due to the reduction in the corporate bond
yields, which we are required to use as the discount rate for calculating
these liabilities. The deficit is, however, a reduction from the £622m
reported at 3t July 2016, a result of anincrease in corporate bond yields
since that date as well as changes to actuarial assumptions.

Atriennial valuation of the UK pension scheme was carried out at
31March 2016 and whilst the final results are not yet confirmed, the
assumptions used for the year end IAS 19 pension valuation have been
updated to reflect the assumptions adopted by the Trustees dunng the
triennial valuation. Inthe meantime, the asset-backed funding scheme
deficit reduction contributions will continue to be paid. These
contributions were £13min the 2017 financial year and willincrease
annually by the rate of inflation. During the 2017 financial year there was
an additional one-off contribution of £6m, bringing totat deficit reduction
contributions for the UK pension schemeto £19m.

Viability statement

The Board has assessed the prospects of the Company in the context

of the current financial position of the Group and the Principal Risks
described on pages 32 to 35. This assessment was consideredinthe
context of the Group's strategic planning over a period of three years from
February 2077 The Directors considered anumber of potential downside
scenanos to the Group’s plan. These related to the Principal Risks ona
scale of the potential impact based on the probability of occurrence.

The ability of the Group to refinance its debt on the various expected
maturity dates (as disclosed in note 20)is a key assumption within this
assessment. Following the refinancing in December 2016, the Group has
significantly reduced the amount of borrowings due within the next three
years, however, the Group will have to refinance £175m of Class Al notes
(due July 2018), £55m of Class Ad notes (due July 2019 and £348m of
the Senior Term Facility (due January 2019) over this period. The Directors
continueto believe that, given the high biquidity of the sterling bond
markets, the recent strong take-up of the new Class AS notesissuedin
December 2016 and the strong cash flows of the business, the likelihood
of aninability to refinance is very low. In addition, the Directors would
expectto refinance these borrowings inadvance of the due date so

that the Group continues to have access to a number of refinancing
opportunities including bond issues, bank borrowings and repayment
from extsting cash resources. If the Class A notes or the Senior Term
Facility are not repaid within 12 months of their due date, then the WBS
group will be restricted inits ability to pay dividends until those borrowings
arerefinanced.

As a highly leveraged business, the Group 15 subject to loan covenants
as well as the requirement to pay liabilities when they fall due. The plan
and downside scenarios were therefore assessed in this context and
the business remained comfortably able to make payments and comply
with covenants over the forecast period.

Finally, the Board considered what level of stress would cause the
business viability to be put into question by means of areverse stress test.
This indicated that the viability of the business would be threatened by an
unexpected cash outflow of c£240m during each year of the three year
plan, as this would bring the Group close to its debt covenants. Any usage
of free cash flow on deleveraging over this three year penod will reduce
this headroom. The Directors felt it untikely that an unexpected outflow
of this magnitude would occur.

Having considered all these elements of the assessment carefully,

the Board has a reasonable expectation that the business will continue
in operation and meet its liabilities as they fali due for at least as long as
the strategic planning time horizon.

Martin Clarke
Chief Financial Officer
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Risk management

Effective risk management AA Risk Management Framework
is key to the delivery of the giskgegﬁters o <Pl

. : . ur Risk Management Framework Policy
AA strateglc ObJeCtNeS' requires all areas of the business to maintain

ariskregister whichis to be reviewedat

least quarterly. Each senior member of the
Management team has his/her own setof
“Top Risks” which are reviewed each month,
Risks from this “bottom up” risk identification
exercise are linked to the principalrisks
identified by the AA plc Board which are
documentedin this Annual Report & Accounts
on pages 32 to 35. Each risk register ‘owner’
is required to formally self-certify the
completeness and correctness of their risk
register(s) ona quarterly basis. This helps
underpin the Risk Management Framewaork.

Riskassessment

Eachidentified risk is assessed and scored

for probability andimpact, both inherently

(1.e. without controls) and residually (i.e. with
controls), A target nsk scoreis also set, Ifthe
residual risk scoreis higher than the target score,
thenappropriate management action is taken

to ensure ourrisk exposure is at the desired
targetlevel.

Incidentsand near misses

Animportant part of the Risk Management
Framework is the identification and reporting
of incidents and near misses which helpinform
our assessment of nsk and helps highlight
areas for controlimproverment actions, The AA
encourages and fosters a culture of openand
honestincident and near miss reporting.

Key riskindicators/tolerances

The Risk Management Framework is also
supported by key risk indicator management
information. This is used to monitor the

position against our desired risk exposure

and tomonitor trends and changing factors
enabling us to take early corrective action.
Where applicable, tolerance levels have been
set for risks. Management information reporting
provides regular updates to ensure that therisk
exposure remains within the desired tolerance
level, oris brought to the attention of the relevant
management for correclive actions to be agreed
and monitored to completion,

Control verification

The effectiveness of primary control{s) for
key risks are verified by the operationand
reporting of managernent “snap checks™

(control effectiveness tests).

Remedialactions

Management actions are documented,
implemented and reported to the appropriate
risk forum and tracked to resolution, if any

of the following issues arise:

> Risk exposure greater than desired target;

»Anincident or near miss occurs that indicates
a control deficiency or previously
undocumented risk exposure;

»Adverse key risk indicator / tolerance reporting;

Y Adverse 'snap check’ results;

2 Deficiencies arising from audit, compliance
and other reviews.

Principalrisks

The Directors have carried out arobust
assessment of the principal risks facing the
Group, including those that would threaten

its business model, future performance,
solvency orliquidity. Inputs to the assessment
include the strategic objectives of the AA,
internal and external factors, and the risks
identified by management. These principal
risks have been monitored and updated by the
Risk Committee during the year. These risks are
detailed below together with the key mitigating
actions f controls, a summary of changes during
the year and the primary key performance
indicators {KPis).

Riskappetite

The risk appetite for the AA is documented

and approved by the Board. The AA’s Risk
Appetite Framework policy defines the amount
of risk the organisation is willing totake in
achievingits strategic objectives.

The AA brand and the positive perception

and promotion of the AA brand are key tothe
continuing success of the AA. The Group
therefore seeks to mitigate, control or avoid risks
which may have a negativeimpact onthe brand.

Many of the AA’s activities relate to successfully
managing logistics - roadside repair and
recovery, arranging suitable insurance and
financial products. Our customers trust us to
source / provide products and services which
deliver desirable custorner outcomes.

The AA relies on a number of business partners
and believes they should be fairly treated and
that the AA should ensure that these partners
provide services and products of a suitable
standard to both the AA and AA Members,

With our heritage as a Membership organisation,
we have a strong sense of customer fairness
and therefore seek to avoid potential conduct
risk, unethical behaviours and unfair customer
oulcomes,
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Risk Model

The AAuses abullseye risk modelto guide
the business inthe identification of risks to the
organisation. This considers core, transitional,
strategic and horizon/emerqing risks

»Corerisks Therisks that are a daily part of
aur business activities (business as usual
nisks). They may be constant or may be
evolving overtime,

> Transhtional risks The risks that are present
as a result of initiating and making changes.

) Strategicrisks Any risk thatmay
adversely impact uponthe delivery of
astrategic objective,

>*Horizon' {or emerging) risks New/potential
threats or opportunities that we needto
prepare for, (These are also considered
as part of the strategy and three year
planning process.)

The AAwiltaccept a considered and balanced
exposure torisks in order to acquire, grow or
defend market share.

The AA has a zero appetite for systemic
nen-compliance with Legal and Regulatory
requirements.

We are exposed to movementsin the market
value of assets (particularly asset vatuesin the
Pension Fund) and interest rates on a proportion
of our debt. We do not take market risks for
reward and use appropriate risk management
techniguesto reduce the effects of market risk
on the Group including interest rate hedging.

The AA seeks to obtain the best available return
on its cash commensurate with taking very little
risk and minimising credit risk exposure toany
one particularinstitution and by maintaininga
balanced investment portfolio.

The AA seeks to ensure that sufficient liquidity
is always available to meet the immediate
requirements of the Group.

Appropriate and effective business risk
reporting has been putinplace totrack the
position against risk appetite. These reporting
arrangements are regularly reviewed for
adequacy and effectiveness.

Threelinesofdefence

The Company practisesthe “three lines of
defence” model in embedding risk management
capability across the organisation. The model
distinguishes between functions that own and
manage risks, functions overseeing risks and
functicns providing independent assurance.
All three lines of defence have specific tasks
intheinternal control governance framework.
inthis model, risk management and controlis
the firstline, cversight challenge is the second
and independent assurance is the third.

Controlassurancemap

Qur control assurance map takes information
fromthe risk and control output of the first line
of defence to highlight the most significant risks
and to indicate any areas where controls are not
operating effectively or there have beenrisk
incidents. The map also contains the principal
risks identified by the Board. Onto this we map
the second line - Compliance and Risk
Monitoring - and third line — Internal Audit -
assurance activity forthe current year, prior
year and year ahead to provide a view on the
coverage of these assignments as wellasthe
ratings of those assignments that have been
completed, This 1s designed to help ensure the
assurance plans cover the appropriate areas.
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premium on our
roadside services

3 Market leaderin

we will not grow customers and therefore
inthe long-term, sustainably grow
profits. We need to improve, innovate,
demeonstrate and deliver a superior
propositionand ensureour pricing is
competitive relative to this position.

We may be unable to developand grow

Risk management
continued
Principal risk Related strategicoblectives  Description Mitigation
1.Outstanding >Market ieaderin The AA's brand and its continued success, We will continue to protect the ability of our Patrols to
s.e ice Roadside Assistance and in particular the loyalty of our provide excellent service through providing them with
er bl customers, rely on delivering outstanding good connectivity to state of the art scheduling systems,
toe ar_e:r]a ne service that is superior to the rest of the investing inin-van technology and equipment, and
ou‘t‘;?:-r.'n:i:; sarvice market. Historie inadequate investment providing excellent training and support.
intechnolagy, systems and processes Ongoing menitoring of complaints, press reports and
would place this objective at increasing social media through structured processes, including
tisk 'thls ISsuewas not addre5§ed with Compliance and Risk oversight, helps inform our service
sustgmed improvements to deliver the performance and offerings.
services our Members expect.
2. Roadside market >Market leaderin Competitors that provide roadside Weare improving our roadside Membership proposition
sl;areand margin Roadsrde Assistance services at a lower price or have a different by strengthening ourroadside products and engaging
We are unable to »Scaleandbarnerstoentry | Businessmodeltogether withchanges more Members in additional benefits,
maintain our market in car technotogy, threaten our roadside Wehave put in place processes for significantly more
share and an ability market share. [f we charge.aprice premium | etfective advertising campaigns and are starting to use
tocommand a price thatis above what our service can sustain, | oy CRM systems toimprove our communications

with Members, which includes engaging Members in
their existing services and benefits to drive loyalty.

We have built a pricing team with significant expertise
tomonitor market pricing levels,

We continue to pursue new opportunities that

:;::lr:::;ngthe Roadside Assistance new profitable business productsandlines | complement our core brand.

Weareunable to »Strong market positions that complementthe C"'5t°""§" eXperience | proposed new preducts.and changes to existing products

growthe business inother segments and which demonstrate standards and are put through our product development process and

inamanner that 3Shareholder value values that underlie our core brand. are reviewed by the Product Outcomes Forum, (which

complements and N X meets 10 times a year}and includes Executive and senior

sustains the brand »High cash flow generation attendees from the vanous business areas together with
Compliance and Risk oversight.

4.Insurance >Strong market positions The further growth of price comgparison We are using our strengthsinthe brand, channels and

business inother segments sites may continue to transfer value from datato mitigate this risk.

Insurancebroking ourinsurance broking business. Insurer hasted pricing enables our in-house underwriter

business: Aggregators to make more dynamic and frequent price changes. In

and price comparison time, other members of our broking panel will also use this

sites will further functionality which should improve our competitiveness.

damagetheinsurance

brokermodel

5.1 »Strong market positions There are risks of higher than expected Best practice is deployed to manage claims frequency,

. “s“'a"‘i: in other segments claims frequency, higher average cost development and costs. The solvency structure plus
Upderwrlt g 3 Shareholder value per ¢laim and catastrophic claims., excess of (0ss reinsurance isusedto help protect us
:‘A?i';?;;?:; against costly individual claims.
claims costs
6. Regulato »Market leaderin The changing regulatory environment The AAhas azero appetite for systemic non-compliance
e;lv;?mm erlrty Roadside Assistance could cause currently compliant services with Legal and Regulatory requirements.

Achangm »Strong market positions to become non-compliant, with material Close engagement with regulatory objectivesis coupled
changing in other segments implications to customer offerings, pricing with good governance and strong manitoring processes
;%Lil:c?:\%zn tray and profitability. toensure that we continue to focus on delivering products

. - and services that resultin good customer outcomes.
adversely affect Failure to comply with regulatory X . "
our activities obligaticns could result in substantialfines. Regular dialogue 1s maintained with the FCA and other

Changes in Government legislation or
taxation could mpact the business model,

regulatory bodies.

Our Requlatory and Legal Change Committeetracks
forthcoming changes and advises the business on
changesrequired.

Products are reviewed regularly to reaffirm they are fit
for purpose.
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Change intheyear

We have updated and rolled out cur operational deployment system,
AA Help, to our Patrols, providing improved deployment and control,
aswellas continuing to investin new vans and in-van technology.

Our AA breakdown app has now been downloaded by more than
one million personal Members and is being actively used in 22%
of breakdowns.

Qur connected car technology trials have proved our ability to
predict some breakdowns and this should enable usin the future
tofurther improve the service we offer our members.

The long term decline in paid personal Members has been stabilised.

The majority of our readside Membership products now include
unlimited call outs {subject to fair usage) as well as other
enhancements. Our Members are now using new added value
benefits developed over the last two years, which go beyond the
core breakdown services and which further enhance their
Membership expenence, atarun rate of Im per year.

Recentincreases in IPT present a cost to the business and 4 choice
to either take a profit or market share hit. For our consumer roadside
business, as the market leader, the effect of IPT nises would be
equivalentto a straight tax on our margins if we did not pass the
increaseon.

The Financial Services business through our arrangement with
the Bank of Ireland continues to provide a range of new products.

QOur new insurance underwriter is widening the reach of AA
Insurance. The success of the underwriter has also contributed
to thefirstincrease in motor policy numbers within our broking
business since 2008,

Our new in house underwriter which was launchedin January 2016,
(amember of our Broking panel) has grown its Motor bock and
launched its Home book.

Pricing transparency at renewalts required by the FCA from
1April2017. The AA is preparing for this.

As weimplement the transformation programme, 1ssues may be
identtfied which relate to historic past practices that may fall short of
putting customers at the heart of our business. One issue we found
relates to duplicate breakdown cover. We contacted the FCA and we
have agreed remediation plans for this issue with them, The extent
ofthis matter became clear threugh the improved data and process
understanding we are gaining through the implementation of our
new Customer Relationship Management (*CRM”) systems and
ourimproved cutture and conduct focus.

Key: Impact, Likelthcod and Trend

° Improved since last year

Q Sameas lastyear

° Deteriorating position

Impact, ikellhoodand trend

Delivering outstanding service is fundamental
to our future and our brand. The impact of failure
to deliver the best service In the market would
be very high. The actions we have taken inthe
lasttwo years and have planned for the future
continue to substantially reduce the probability
of this nsk crystallising.

Long-term the AAwill find it challenging to grow
profit sustainably if its Membership is declining.
Therefore, the impact of Membership growthis
criticalin the long-term.

The AA has stabilised a multi-year declining
trend in membership numbers in the last
12 menths.,

Risesin IPT present headwinds to building
additional momentum in the short-term but the
businessis focused on realising a sustainably
growing Membership.

Theimmediate impactis low as thisis more
along termmatter.

Inthelong term without our effective control
framework whichis in place, our products
would become uncompsetitive, less relevant
to the market place and fail to keep pace with
Member and customer needs.

Early indications are that the steps we have taken
to grow the business are generating value.

The competitive threat from aggregators
remains unchanged, however the success of
ourin-house insurerand the adoption of insurer
hosted pricing gives usa better process to
respond tothis threat.

The occurrence of very large one-off claims is
expected to be rare but can be more commeon than
predicted and sowe have reinsurance processes
in place which cap our maximum exposure per
claim. The occurrence of smaller claims is built
into our pricing modeils and s carefully monitored

The regulatory environment is expected to
continue to be dynamic with a continuing
programme of regulatory initiatives. These
additional requirements may drive further
commeditisation into the market at the expense
of superior service differentiation.

Continued increases in IPT could make

insurance productsincluding Roadside
Assistance less affordable for our customers.

Primary KPls
{seepages22and23)
>Patrols
>Breakdownsattended

>Paid personal Members

>Business customer
numbers

>Patrols
JBreakdownsattended
>Averageincome

> Pald personal Members
>Insurance policies

>Franchised Driving
Instructors

>Trading EBITDA
>Total Shareholder Return

»Insurance policies
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Risk management

continued

Principalrisk

7.Business
transformation

We areunable

to successfully
complete the
essential business
transformation

8.IT transformation

Weareunableto
successfully deliver
the essential IT
transformation
recuired

9.Debt

The AAis ahighly
leveraged company
with a substantial
pension fund,
currently in deficit

10. Information
Security/Cyber
Crime/ Databreach
Thereisanincreasing
threat of cyber-
attackson
organisations

Related strategic objectives

>Market leaderin
Roadside Assistance

> Strong pasition in
othersegments

>Marketleader in
Roadside Assistance

>Strong market position
inother segments

>High recurring revenue
and cash flow generation
arising from strong
Trading EBITDA

>High cash flow generation

>Reduce borrowings and
associated interest costs

>Marketleaderin
Roadside Assistance

»Strong market positionin
othersegments

Description

We must continue totransformthe AAto
achieve the required efficient customer
centric services and to developthe
business.

There is still much to do and the required
acceleration of improvements to process,
embedded ways of working and culture,
inherently involves risksina customer
facing service environment.

Anessential programme of renewal and
enhancement of our 1T estatesisin progress
to address the risks to our brand and our
competitive capabilty. The work is extensive
and involves a continuing complex
programme of work. Given the scale

and complexity, the programme involves
inherent risks to the tirely delivery of
thisimplementation.

The Company is unable to repay of refinance
its debt atanacceptable price.

The Company has a large pension scheme,
currently in deficit, whose assets and
obligations are subject to future vanation
from investment returns, langevity and
othersimilar factors.

Criticalinformation is not available where
and when itis needed, The integrity of
criticat information is corrupted or the
confidentiality of commaercially sensitive,
private or custorner information s
compromised by inappropriate disclosure,
A serious data breach ocours.

Further information on financial risk management objectives and policies,
including market, creditand liquidity risks isincluded in note 28 of the
financial statements, Details on the Group’s strategic objectives are

included on pages14to 2.

Mitigation

There is an ongeing cost efficiency and process
improvement programeme in ptace with progress tracked
at reqular Management Business Reviews.

A rigorous approachis taken in implementing changes
to achieve satisfactory control withongoing monitoring
and reporting.

As we continue with our transformation mitiatives they
may occasionally highlight processes that are not
carnpatible with the values of the AA. Where thisis the
case, steps are taken to ensure the way we undertake
business s fit for purpose going forward to achieve our
objectives and deliver appropriate customer outcomes.

We have a talent management modelin place, where skill
gaps are identified and development and/or recruitment
interventions are actioned.

Proven methodology with specialist IT development
skills is in place to manage this risk. The programme is
being led by executives with a proven track record in
[T transformation.

The programmeis subject to considerable scrutiny
by the executive management team and regular
progress reports are reviewed by both the Risk
Committee and the Board.

We have strong recurring cash flows which support the
current capital structure, and whichwillenableus to
reduce leverage over time in line with our stated sirategy.

The UK pension scheme 1s supported by acompany
covenant and the assets and obligations of the scheme
are keptunder review.

The AA hasan ongoing programme of security
improvements to try and maintain a suitable level

of security for the increasingly sophisticated world-wide
cyberthreats. Controls include information security
awareness training, preventative and detective security,
a specialist information security team, and information
security requirements beingincluded n third party
arrangements,

The AA benchmarks its secunty controls againstthe
Center for Protection of Nahona! Infrastructure (CPNH
and associated Critical Security Controls{CSC).
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Changae Intheyear

The transformation programme has enabled usto implement
synergies and efficiencies in our systems, support functions and
management structure. The recruitment, training and employee
assessment processes have all beenimproved to help ensure we
maximise employee performance.

The IT transformation programme has continued to make progress.

We have substantially reorganised our IT department, outsourcing
anumber of functions to achieve a more efficientand cost
effective service.

Sales through our digital channel grew significantly and our new
CRM (Customer Relationship Management) systemwill enable us
to undertake better targeted marketing campaigns, Replacement
of our main customer sales and service systems is progressing.

The proceeds from the sale of our Irish business enabled us to make
a reduction to our group debt of £106m. The Company also
completed a further debt restructuring this year taking advantage
of the low Interest rate environment to reduce near term debt. This
significantly reduced the amount of debt due within 30 months of
31January 2017 from £1,179m to £578m and reduced the average
cost of debtfrom 4.97% to 4.63%. This refinancing is in line with the
Al’s strategy to reduce the cost of its borrowings and resulted in
annualised interest savings of approximately £10 million. Whilst

the Company remains highly leveraged, this further restructunng
improves the ability of the Company to manage unforeseen
financialshocks.

The triennial valuation of the UK pension fund as at 31 March 2016 is
stillin discussion with the pension trustees and will be finalised by
June 2017. Since 31 July 2016, the |AS 19 valuation of the UK Pension
Scheme deficit has fallen from £547m to £325m at 31 January 2017
inline with the increase in corporate bond rates in the second half of
the year,

While the AA has continued toimprove information security

controls during the 2017 financial year we stitl consider this risk

to be increasing due to the ongoing number of high profile cyber-
attacks onorganisations.

The move tothe new CRM system will reduce the nsk of data breach
when fully implemented.

As previously reported we consider this o be an emergingfevolving
riskand will continue to take additional steps to improve our controls
taking guidance from external specialists.

Key: Impact, Likelihood and Trend
° Improved since last year

o Same as last year

° Deterwrating position

Impact, likelihood and trend

Failure to successfully transform the business
would have a significantimpact on ourlong
term growth.

If changes are poorly implemented, it would
have a significant negative impacton customer
service and employee relations, ncluding the
patrol force which plays such a significant part
indelivering the high standard of customer
service.

To prevent fallure, strong management and
oversight have been putin place to manage
thisrisk.

New [T systems are key to the successful
ongoing developrment of the AA. The adverse
impact of a material delay to the implementation
ofthe programme would be high.

Ifthis nsk materialised, the Group's
bondhelders would appoint an administrative
receiver to run the business for cash until all
secured debt s repaid. However, the AA
continuesto be a high cash generating
organisation and the likelihood is therefore
very low, and, asinthe previous financial year,
this risk has reduced following the most recent
debtrestructuring.

With the potential continuing volatility n the
markets and global economic uncertainty the
likelihood of the sk of Increasing pension
deficitsis seen as high.

As for any company the impact of this risk
crystallising could be substantial. The external
environment appears to be increasingly

hostile to all businesses with cyber-attacks on
cermpanies continuing to be more sophisticated
and more frequent.

Pritnary KPis
(seepages22and 23)

>Leverage
»Cashconversion
Yinterestcover

> Trading EBITDA
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The AA’s commitment to
corporate responsibility

“Patrols spread our culture
of courtesy, care, expertise,
collaboration and dynamism
to our Members.”

EdmundV King OBE
AA president

Transforming our corporateresponsibility

Concernsof drivers

As president, | lead our campaigns oh road
safety and environmentalissues, as well as
heading up our Charitable Trust which feeds into
ouraction on corporate social responsibility.

We've gone through a huge transformation
this year, and continue to strengthen how we
operate in a more sustainable and ethical way,
including through our approach to governance,
risk management, our people, and health and
safety. We've embedded this deeply in our
culture, business values and behaviours.
Some of the main highlights bave been:

Early development of a more formal approach
tosustainabliity

»The introduction of a new programme focusing
on safety, supported by new technology that
helps manage safety in our business.

> Amore eavironmentally focused approach
to company car management.

>Anew approach to recruitment, using our
culture as a core part of the process, and
greater support for management in the
development of people and culture,

> A new code of conduct for suppliers, focused
on the ethical delivery of service.

Part of our role at the AAis to help address the
current concerns of dnvers and to guide them
toa future where they can fully benefit from the
new technology on the horizon. The carisin

a state of transformation. There is much talk of
connected cars, driverless cars, electriccars
and/or on-demand cars. Despite alithe buzz
waords, the concerns of drivers are still pretty
muchthe same, with congestion, road
conditions, costs and casualties still the

main issues.

We gauge their views through the biggest
dedicated motoring opinion panelin Europe,

the AA Populus Driver Poll, which produces
monthly state of the dnving nationreports from
20-30,000 drivers. This polling helps usto
address crucial safety and environmental issues.

The partnership we launched with Chargemaster,
the biggest name in electric vehicle (EV) charging,
will help our custorners get to grips with some of
their anxieties shown in our polls over electric
cars, Hopefully, my “Living with an Electric
Vehicle” blog willalso help,

The AA app can save Members ten minutes if
they break down and they can track their patrol.
ltalse helps Members to find the cheapest
parking or fuel.

0ur10,000 driver trial of connected car
technology helps us and our ¢customersto
understand some of the future trends. Interms
of road safety, our campaign to get double the
number of lay-bys on “Smart™ motorways
without hard shoulders has led to a Government
review of the situation.

The AA Charitable Trust uses innovative ways to
influence driver behaviour over issues suchas
the use of mobile phones at the wheeland cyclef
motorcycle safety. We are also funding Drive
Motorway — a motorway safety course aimed

at nervous drivers or those afraid of using
“smart” motorways without hard shouiders.

Qur patrols are our roadside ambassadors who
often feedback to us what is happening on the
frontline, whether it is plagues of potholes,
cones and congestion or great campaign ideas.
They embody our culture of courtesy, care,
expertise, collaboration and dynamism,

Despite allthe talk about driverless cars, the
majority of our members still enjoy drivingand
weaim to do what we canto enhance that
pleasure. We will continue to look out for our
Members because anything can happen.

EdmundV King OBE

AA president

AA Charitable Trust director
Visiting professor of transport,
Newcastle University
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Sustainability and corporate
responsibility programme

For the first ime in the AA’s history, a policy on
sustainability and corporate responsibility has
been introduced. This sets out the fundamental
way we operate to ensure that Membersand
staff are kept safe and treated fairly, that the
environment is protected as far as possible and
that we support local and global communities,

During the 2018 financial year, we will develop
aformal strategy, secking engagement witha
range of stakeholdersto ensure it supportsthe
operation, meets our investor and shareholder
expectations and demonstrates to our Members
and the wider public that sustainability and
corporate responsibility are embedded in
everythingwe do.

Asevidence of the AA's commitment to
sustainability, we are a member (Rated Supplier
number : 101639} of the CIPS Sustainability
Index which is an independent, cross-sector
financial, social and environmental supplier
audit run by the Chartered Institute of
Procurement and Supply. Our rating inthe

2016 calendar year has shown good
improvement in the three key sustainability
categoriesrelating to the provision of roadside
services. The sustainability index also allows
abenchmark comparison against simitar
companies and we are achieving above average
scoresinallthree categories,

Safety

Qurpeople

We continue to maintain our record of zero
fatalities and the number of major injuries we
report to the Health and Safety Executive (HSE)
remains lower than the national rate for
industries operating in a similar environment.

Following a change in reporting procedures to
encourage a focus on safety with our patrols,
we have seen anincrease both in near misses
being reported but alsg accident numbers.,
We have taken this seriously, carrying out
investigations to establish the root cause of
thisincrease so we cani take targeted action.
We have developed a detailed safety planto
ensure delivery of the actions and to enable
us to measure our success.

Atthe heart of the plan is the commitment to
develop a safety culture in which empowerment
andaccountability are centralat all levelsand
our people are able to take any actions to
improve them.

Great progress has been made during the year
and, as a result, we have seen our performance
improve and accident numbers decrease inthe
latter part of the year. The key achuevements that
have driven this improvement are:

Qur mission forhealth, safety and

Environment {HS&E)

1. Keepour customersand staff safe and play our
partin looking after the environment

2 Achieve proactive management of HS&E nisks,
preventing 1ssues before they occur

3. Berecognised as anindustry leader n HS&E

> Safety campalgn: We launched the “Take
Care” campaign which embeds one of the
Group's core values, that of Care, into
everything we do. Initial roll out has been
to the AA's Roadside Assistance operation and
we plantoroll out best practice across the rest
of the business next year, This campaign has
been fully supported by the Independent
Democratic Union, the only recognised
unionwithinthe AA.

>Communications: improvements in safety
communications were delivered, ensuring that
how we engage with our workforce is effective
and drives change.

> Training: We have changed the way in which
we engage with patrels in regard to their safety
through training. We have redeveloped
induction training to ensure that we embed
the corevalues and safety culture, driving
empowerment and ownership from day one.

>Engagement: Following the recentinvestment
in technology, we are now engaging with our
patrols onhealth and safety issuesin more
modern ways. Werecently achieved a 75%
engagement levelinan online survey regarding
tools and equipment.

Reportingincidents

We have transformed how incidents are
reported by staff and investigated by managers
with the provision of statistical analysis to enable
improvements to be identified, The systemis
fully automated and allows access to real-time
data cn accident and incident performance,

NB:The AA reporting year is January to December
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The AA’s commitment to
corporate responsibility
continued

o accepttheuseof
82 /o speedcameras
o rated the condibon of
35 /o local roads aspoor -
compared with 23% last
year
o thinkmotarways are
79 /o more dangerous than
fouryearsago
B
Cadence
Aradical short film funded
by the AA Trust as part of our
dnver distraction campaign.

www.theaaplc.com/
the-aa-s-business/videos

Our Members and other road users

Driverdistraction

We continue to influence Government policy,
putting forward our Members’ views as
expressed to us viathe AA Populus Driver Poll,
the largest dedicated driving panelin Europe,
We have been running these menthly polls
since 2008 and the December 2016 survey
was the 100th.

High survey response rates, on average more
than 20,000, have helped us understand
Members' views and take actions across a
diverse range of topics, including safety for older
drivers, drink drive limits, low emission zones,
potholes, road conditions and congestion.

Two of our recent high-profile campaigns

came about as a direct result of feedback given
through the AA Populus Driver Poll. These were:

“Smart” motorway designandsafety

Almost 80% of our members told us that they
felt motorways were more dangerous when the
hard shoulder was used asarunning lane. As
aresult, we have been vigorously campaigning
for the number and size of emergency refuge
areas on “Smart” moterways to be doubled.
We gave written and verbal evidence tothe
Transport Select Committee and have met the
Transport Secretary, Road Safety Minister and
CEO of Highways England to push for areview,
which Is now currently under way.

The AA Trustis promoting a major driver
distraction campaign which focuses on the
dangers of using hand-held mobile phones
atthe wheel.

The campaign kicked off with the premiere of
aradicalshort film “Cadence”, made by graduate
film makers with Edmund King as executive
producer. This film and the associated news
story that two million passengers would do
nothing if their driver used a hand-held phone
while at the wheel, was successfully promoted
across nationat media and has had hundreds of
thousands of views online and via social media.

We are proud that Cadence is being promoted
by the Government's Think! nationalroad safety
campaign, and is available on the Department
for Transport's resource centre for use by
schools and colleges.

The Trust is also working on a hard-hitting
advertisement indicating that while most people
think that drinking and drivingis unacceptable,
texting and driving doesn't carry the same social
stigma. With the support of the Road Safety
Minister, plans are in place for this advertisement
to be widely distributed to cinemas and ensocial
media, supported by the Think! campaign.

41%

thinkdnver
behaviouris the biggest
road safety issue

19%

think mobile shane
use was the
second brggest
road safety issue

The environment

Throughout the year, we have continued to
review how we operate our business to deliver
a high quality service to our Members inaway
that minimises ourimpact onthe environment.
There have been several key achievernents for
us during the year:

Operational vehicles Recognising that
operational vehicles have the most significant
environmentalimpactin terms of emissions, all
of our replacement light commercial vehicles
this year are to the Euro 6 standard and fitted
with start/stop technology.

{mplementation ofthe AA Fleet intelligence

app, inconjunction with our partner Trackm8,
means managers now have access to improved
dashboards to assist in management of their
team’s performance. It aiso gives individuals
real-time information on their driving behaviours.

Company car We recenitly refreshed the
company car policy and introduced capping

of COzlevels on company cars supplied from
QOctoher 2016, limiting the vehicles available to
those with a COzlevels of 130g/kg or less from
the existing maximum of168g/kg.

Building energy use Our programme of energy
monitoring and savings initiatives has continued
and we have made some significant reductions
throughout our offices, We have also ensured
that the transformation within our offices,
including floor plate consolidation, installation
of new staff amenities and break-out areas

has been done with energy reductionasa

key priority.
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We have made significantimprovements in our
main offices during the year, compared with our
performance inthe 2016 financial year:

> Green house gas{GHG) emissionsin our main
offices have been reduced by 16,2%.

> Gas usage has beenreduced by 9.8%.

> Electricity usage has reduced by 7.7%.

Greenhouse Gas Footprint

Our greenhouse gas (GHG) footprint coversall
of our activities that are significant to the impact
we have on the environment. The majority of our
GHG emissions, B2%, are generated through
our fleet of operational vehicles and this area
saw anincreasein absolute emissions of 5%
compared with the last financial year. This which
was expected as it wasinline with the 5%
increase in workload during this peried. This
increase was offset, however by the reduction
In emissions from our overall property portfolio
whichwas 19% less than the last financial year.
Asaresult, we have seen our absolute market-
based emissions decrease by 1% relative to the
previous reporting year.

1CO0.e tCO.e % changeto
Source ofermissions {2017) (2018) 2016
Scope Temisslons*
{direct combustion of fuelsin stationary and mobile sources,
and fugitive emissions) 45178 43,740 +3%

Scope 2emisslons, market-based**

{emissions from generation of purchased emissions in owned

or controlled equipment & operations, using a supplier-specific

emmission factor) 5480 1577 -28%

Scope 2emissions, location-based
(emissions from generation of purchased emissions in owned
or controlled equipment and operations, using a regional

emission factor) 4,887 6,514 -25%

Total emissions (market-based) 50,658 51,317 1%
Out of scope emissions
{emissions from the biofuel content inforecourt diesel and petrol) 996 1,390 -28%

Fleetintensity measurement (tCO.e/job)
(emisstons from operational fleet divided by the number of

operational jobs completed) 001122 0010 8 +H%

Prope:ty intensity measurement{tCO,e/1?)
{market-based emissions from energy usein UK corporate portfolio

(electricity and natural gas consumption), divided by floorarea) 0.0119  0,01385 -24%

* Scopel- Alldirect GHG emissions
**Scope 2 - Indirect GHG emissions from consumption of purchased electncity, heat or steam and reported
for location {country-specific emission factors) and market {energy supplier-specific emissien factors)

tCO,e
Emissions (Market % ofTotal

Category Source Based) Emissions
Operationat fleet Scopet 41,624 82%
Company cars Scopel 1,526 3%
Property Scope 1&2 7508 15%

* Scapel - Alldirect GHG emissions
* Scope 2 -Indirect GHG emissions from consumption of purchased electricity, heat or steam and are reported for
market (energy supplier-specific emission factors).

Methodology

We have reported all emissions sources required under the Companies Act 2006. The calculations have been
completed accordingte the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard, using emissiens factors
from the Department for Business Energy and Industrial Strategy and the International Energy Agency.

The reporting penod for the GHG data s aligned wath the 2017 financial year. Dueto the short tme betweenthe end
of the financial year and the report publication, <1% of consumption data has been estimated follawing the GHG
Protocol calculation guidelines.

The Operational Control Approach hzs beentaken to define the boundaries of the GHG inventory.

) Emissions from AA The Driving Scheol Agency Limited are considered outside of scope, as it operates as  franchise
and AA plc does not have equity rights or control over the franchisees.

¥ Any joint ventures where the AA is not a majorty sharehotder are excluded as fulloperational contralis
not exercised.

AA Ireland was sald dunng the reporting year with all emissions inctuded upto the disposal date, 11 August 2016.
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The AA’s commitment to
corporate responsibitity
continued
2,877
Totalnumber
of patrols
Ourpeople

Our people are at the heart of whatwe do -

they deliver the high quality, trusted service

to our Members and are essential to our brand
reputation, Qurfocus this year has been fo
support the business-wide transformation
programmes and provide the support,
development and change management required
to enable our teams to work to the best of their
abilities, achieve joby satisfaction and deliver
business plans and objectives.

Attracting talent and developing
ouremployer brand

Making sure we attract the right talent, andreally
show people what a great organisation the AA

is to work for, has been an important activity

this year. A shifl in focus to direct recruitment
sourcing, rather than using intermediaries, has
ledto an increase in volume to our candidate
poolof over 300%. Our resourcing team
delivered over 2,000 candidate offers during
the year,

Some of the key highlights we have delivered
this year:

>We have rebuilt ourrecruitment website, in
line with the refreshed AA brand and values.
Qur new website brings our staffto the fore,
highlighting the role they play, the brilliant
iobthey do, and the diversity of career
opportunities we offer.

¥The AA's apprenticeship schemeis now live
inour Oldbury contact centre. We have
partnered with an external learning company,
Learn Direct, to support our new two-year
scheme. Current numbers on this programme
are 30, with more planned in Oldbury and
across other sites throughout 2017,

> The AA has been designated a Disabitity
Confident emplayer, having signed up tothe
seven commitments which actively encourage
and enable peopte with disabilities to work
forthe AA.

>The AAwas one of the first organisations to
receive a Gold Award fromthe Armed Forces
Covenant Employer Recognition Scheme
(ERS). It recognises businesses thatare
supporters of the Armed Forces Covenant,
a promise that those who serve or have served
inthe Armed Farces, or their families, are
treated fairly.

YWe recommitted our support to the armed
forces community at a series of events at AA
offices during Armed Forces Week where
AAreservists and ex-farces personnel worked
with the Mnistry of Defence 1o explain the work
of reservists.

7,449

2,346

Totalhumber of people
answering the phanes
to custorners

Total number
of employees

5,297

Maie employees

2,152

Female employees
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Investingin our people

This year has been a year of change for many of
our teams, therefore, it has beenimportantto
provide support, developrnent opportunities
and seme formallearning. Some ofthe
highlights have been;

>Learning and development The newteam
have introduced an interactive induction guide,
which allows new recruits to view videos and
source useful information before they start with
us. Providing this information to pecple early
onintheir AA journeyis a key part of cementing
our retationship with thern.

>Developing our people We have worked
with the operational management teams to
establish what makes a great front-line
employee in our contact centres — analysing
how we should develop people to maximise
their performance through competence and
alignthose competencies to our values. This
has been builtinto our attraction, recrutment,
training and assessment programmes.

> Learning managementsystem In the later
part of 2016, we developed a comprehensive
learning management systern, which willbe
launched during 2017. This online solution
will offer a range of training and learning
interventions, and enable us to record
and report ontraining comnpletion
and competence.

> Performance management During 2016 we
identified behaviours, aligned to our values,
with the view to embed theseinto our
performance management processes and
framework. Ahead of launching the new
performance management process for the
2018 financial year, we are rolling out the new
behaviour descriptions to allow our teams
to become familiar with them and consider
what they really mean for them.

>Recognising outstanding contributions
The AA employee award ceremony was held
in September, attended by 400 employees
and their guests, Atotal of 21awards were
made, ranging from Patrol of the Yeartoour
most outstanding call centre advisers.

>Ownershipinthe AA We feelitisreally
important that our teams directly benefit from
the hard work and dedication they give to the
organisation and our brand, so we offeran
annual Employee Share Incentive Plan (ESIP),
inwhich they receive a free matching share for
every share purchased. We were pleased to
seeinthe 2017 financial year that 36% of our
people have participated.

Qur people profile

Itis critical to the future success of our business
that we have the right people, with the night skills
inthe right roles to enable usto deliverthe
service our members expect and deserve.

Synergies and efficiencies Inmanagement
structures, systems and support functions have
enabled stream-lined organisation structures
and a reductienin headcount, as the
transformation programme continues.

We recognise the benefits of diversity
throughout the AA and atways look to ensure
that we have an appropriate balance of skills
and experience at Board level and throughout.
More information can be found in our
Governance Report on pages 4310 78.

We strive to engage all our stakeholders with
fairness, dignity and respect and endorse the
UN Declaration of Human Rights — we donot
tolerate child labour or forced labour, and
respect freedom of association and the rights
of employees to be represented by trade unions
orworks councils.

The AAis a fairemployer and does not
discriminate on the basis of gender, religion,
age, disability or ethnicity, This policy applies
throughout the AA and is communicated to all
employees during theirinduction training and
throughout their employment withus. Itis our
policy that people with disabilities should have
fulland fair consideration for all vacancies.
Where employees become disabled during our
employment, we endeavour to retain and adjust
their environment where possible to allow them
to maximise their potential,

Engaging with our people

Itisimportant to usthat we have a culture of
openness with our teams and that we engage
with them, particularty during this time of
transformation. We have regular dialogue with
our people through various channels, including
staff and management-level focus groups and
listening sessions, Communication internally is
through our internal intranet and emails, one
toone /team meetings, and conferences.

Whistleblowing Policy

We are committed to conducting our

business with honesty and integrity. The AA’s
whistleblowing policy encourages employeesto
raise concernsinternally that can be investigated
in a timely and effective manner. We regularly
briefour employees on our whistleblowing
policy and communication channels opento
them. During the year, six cases were escalated
for review by HR and the ERCC. Common
themesinclude staff behaviour, management
discrimination and performance managerment.

‘We formally engage and consult with the AA’s
recognised union, the IDU, and have anelected
Management Forum which provides a platform
for management-levet employees’ view to be
heard, as well as meeting our legal obligation
for Information and Consuttation.

Speakup

2017 seesthe introduction
of ‘Speak Up” sessions to
all management across
the business.

Oursuppliers

Supplier Code of Conduct

The Procurement team has gone throughiits
own transformation within the last 12 months
under anew Head of Procurement. The focus
ofthe team has expanded to incorporate the
management and collaboration of our suppliers
in line with the new Supplier Code of Conduct
which sets out the standards required of an

AA supplier of choice. The code covers:

> Ethical dealings (including the Modern Slavery
Act 2015)

» Environmental responsibility

»Health and safety standards

»Employment standards

> Proprietary information

Allkey and new suppliers are required to agree
to ourterms of working before any business
isawarded.

Facillties Award

The AAare proudto be recognised by the British
Institute of Facilties Management for their
collaborative relationship with CBRE, our main
supplierof facilities management. In October the
AAand CBRE jointly received the coveted award
of "Tearn of the Year”. The judging panel were
impressed with how the AA and the CBRE had
worked together to reduce running costs,
introduce and implement an energy efficiency
prograrmme and improve CSR activities linked
to sustainability, community engagement,

staff wellbeing, and recycling. Examples of the
benefits of thisjoint working are:

>The Energy Saving Opportunity Scheme
identified savings of circa £250,000.

>The 16.2% year on year reduction of tCO,e
from ourmain offices.

»Well-being and training events, such as
Green Week promoting environmentat
improvements, energy awareness,
tyre checks.
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The AA’s commitment to
Corporate Responsibility
continued

Staffinour Home Emergency
Services teamat Oldbury raised
funds of over £7k for Birmingham
Children's Hospital through this
charity inthe 2016 financial year
by various activiites.

Our community
(Charity work)

Driving for Care Leavers AA Charitable Trust
for Road Safety and the Enwvironment (Charity
no. 12519)

The AA Trust helps teenagers leaving careto
learn to drive, Following last year’s pilot, twelve
pupils from Bristol, Medway, Newcastle, and
Westminster are taking partinthe second
programme. To date three have passed their
tests and others are almost ready to take theirs.

The driving lessons give the care leavers a

form of independence that many in such
circumstances would struggle to achieve.

One of the pupils who has passed his test

has an apprenticeship with a car manufacturer
and being able to drive will help him immensely*
to make the most of this opportunity. We are
now looking at ways of providing assistance

in preparing for the theory test. The scheme

is supported by the Chitdren's Commissioner,
Anne Longfield OBE and monitored by

Bristol University. As well as delivering national
support to those that need our help, we alse
make sure we supportlocalcormmunities

and initiatives. Some highlights from this

year include:

Patrolvisits AA's biggest fan Alien Childs

made a‘home start’ visit to the AA’s biggest fan,
eight-year-old Alfie, in October. The visit was
arranged when Alfie’s mother made contact to
say that her son, who has autism, was desperate
to help an AA patrolon ajob.

Staffat our Cheadle office
have been helping theirlocal
football club Cheadle FCin
carrying outwork toimprove
their grounds.

Waesupportthe AR
Bangers forBen The AA provided breakdown Charitable Trust through
funding and staff as wellas

support and European Breakdown Cover for the
participants in the annualcharity rally. Benis the
automotive industry’s charity which partners
withthe industry to provide support for life to its
peopte and their families. AA patrols ensured
thatthe bangers cleared the Alps and reached
the finish line intact with the additional benefit
that two of our team took part in the event which
raised £65,000 for the charity.

Children’s magicaltaxi tour The AA supported
the London cabbies ‘Children’s Magical Taxi
Tour’ trip from London to Disneyland Parisin
September, They were part of athree-milelong
convoy of London taxi cabs, ambulance staff
and French police escorts all helping to give
terminally ill children a magicat weekend.

The children were able to explore the AA
recovery truck before setting off for their
weekend at Disneytand.

Newcastle college Members of our matoring
and homeinsurance team at Newcastle, with
the important addition of Patrol Man Pete, took
22 disabled young adults from Newcastle
Coliege ona Treasure Trailin South Shields.
AAvolunteers then visited the college the
following day and gave AA goody bagstoits

special needs department. We have encouraged

the reiationship to continue through the regular

sate of fresh fruit and vegetables by the students

toour Newcastle staff.

encouraging our own pecple
topromote other charities in
theindustry {(Ben)orinthe
wider communities,
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Introduction

*Our governance struciure and
corporate values are crificalin
underpinning the success of the
AN’s transformation.”

Bob Mackenzle
Executive Chairman

Dear Shareholder

This report describes the governance structure
that is firmly established at the AA to ensure that
we are effective, efficientand focused on
delivering long-term value for our shareholtlers.
It also sets out the key activities and
achievemenits of the AA pic Board and its
Committees during the 2017 financial year,

our third year as a publiccompany.

The AAhas a notable heritage as aninnovative,
dynamic and responsible business and itis our
duty to protect and enhance this reputation,
We firmly believe that the adoption of a strang
carporate governance structure, alongside clear
corporate values, underpins the continued
successof the AA and our brand. Wehave
aligned dependable procedures and processes
with the operation of our business to ensure
that issues can be raised, captured and dealt
with swiftly.

This has been another important year for the AA
as the pace and scale of transformative change
have gathered momentum. With the business
focused on detivering the second phase of the
transformation programme and delivering cost
savings through improved productivity and
efficiency, the Board has been responsible for
maintaining a broader overview of all we do,
including strategic opportunities such asthe
sale of AA Ireland and the refinancing.

The Board and Executive Committee strongly
recognise the dependency of business success
on corporate culture. We acknowledge that it is
our continuing responsibility to ensure thatthe
values, attitudes and behaviours we require of
all A& employeesare constantly reinforced
through leadership, our business standards
and communications.

We are proud of our results and look forward to
delivering the final stages of the transformation
programme. We are corfident that the AA will
be strengthened and revolutionised and the
benefits will deliver further increased value to
our Members, customers and shareholders.

| thank you all for your support during this stage
ofthe A&'s journay,

Overview
During the 2017 financial year, our key corporate
governance undertakings have beenas follows:

1. Arefinancing projectaligned withour
strategic objective to reduce the costof

our debt, extend the payment profile and
improve our credit profile, resulting in further

annualinterest savings of up to £10m.

The sale of AA freland which compieted
onthe 11 August 2016 and resulted inde-
leveraging through a £108m pay down on
Group borrowings. A further £24m of the
proceeds will be used to repay debt if it is not
used for acquisitions during the 12-month
period to 10 August 2Q17.

Succession planning for splitting the
combined roles of the Executive Chairman
and the development of skills rmatrices at
Board and Executive Committees and the
senior management team to enable proactive
and forward-looking succession planning
throughout the business. This is discussed

in more detailin the Nomination Committee
Report on pages 55-57.

4. Safeguarding the AA during the business
transformation by ensuring effective risk
management and internal control systems
are inplace. Also, ensuring that ourresilience
against potential threats which could cause
commergial and reputational damage is
robust, such as cyber security, data
protection and currency fluctuations.

2

b

3.

o

Implementing actions from the first Board
effectiveness evaluation, undertaking our
second internal evaluation and planning for
our first external assessment in the 2018
financial year. This is discussed in more detail
inthe Nomination Commitiee Reporton
pages 55-57,

Continuing to evolve a robust governance
framewuork for the regulated business
Automobile Assaciation Insurance Services
Limited (AAISL), including the establishment
of aculture and conduct committee.

o

7. Developing arobust governance framework
for our new insurer, Automobile Association

Underwnting Insurance Company Limited.

0

Continuing to strengthen our investor
relations through roadshows and active
engagement with our key shareholders, as
discussed inthe Relations with Shareholders
section onpage 74.
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Combinedroles Compliance withthe UK Corporate

We acknowledge theimplicationsof combining  Governance Code 8

the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive This report describes how we govern our Py

Officer, yet the Board's opinion and confidence businessand surnmmarises the work conducted 2

areuynwavering inthatitis in the bestinterests by the AA plc Board and its Committees during 3

of the Group that | remainin the role of Executive  the 2017 financial year. it confirms our core 3

Chairman until the business transformation achievements and sets out the activities planned 3

is delivered. for theimmediate financial year, as well

We willinitiate the process to appoeinta new as acknowledging our longer-term plans.

CEQIn the 2018 financial year. Once the We are pleased toreport that, except forthe

transformation is complete and an effective combined roles of Chairman and Chief Executive

handover implemented, | will take up therole Officer, the AA Groupisin fullcompliance with

of Nen-Executive Chairman, thereby enabling the Code. Our compliance with the required “« initiati

the AA to fully comply with the Financial regulatory and statutory standards for We have embraqed initiatives

Reporting Councit's UK Corporate Governance  a premium listed company is reflected arising from our first Board

Code (the Code), which can be found at throughout this governance report. effectiveness review du ring

www.frc.org.uk. A successionplanis in place ,,

and 1s discussed in the Nomination Committee the year.

Reporton pages 55-57. —— -

As previously reported and as recommended JohnLeach

inthe Code, while | continue to perform Senior Independent Director

the combined role we have acted toensure Bob Mackenzie P

that there are clear written divisions of Executive Chairman

responsibilities between the combinedroles 27 March 2017

and have enhanced the role of John Leach,

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director,

toinclude additional responsibility for oversight

on Board governance and process. John Leach

and the Non-Executive Directors act toensure "

that all decisions are taken with fullapproval JohnLeach 8

of the Board. Descriptions of the roles and Senior Independent a,

responsibilities of the Board are setout on Director ﬁ

page 52. 27 March 2017 g

We are confident that the Board has the '3

o

appropriate balance of skills, experience and
independence required to ensure the continued
long-term growth and value of the business.
This position has been confirmed during the
year, both through the development of detailed
skills matrices and the board effectiveness
evaluation process.
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Leadership

Our Board

Bob Mackenzie (64) Executive Chairman

Martin Clarke (61) Chief Financial Gfficer John Leach (68} Seniar Independernt

Appointment: Bob joined the AAin June 2014 as part
of the MB! team,

Responsibilities: As Executive Chairman, Bob assumes
responsibiities for running the Board, dnving the
strategy of the AA and oversight on governance
miatters. Bob sits on the Nomination Commiittee.

Career and experience: Bob qualified as a Chartered
Accountant with KPMG in 1978 and has extensive
experience of leading consumer services businesses
and delivering highly successful business
transformation programmes. Previously, Bob held
positions as Chairman and CEC of National Car Parks
and Green Flag, as well as CEO of Sea Containers Ltd
and Chairman of PHS Group ple and a number of other
senior executive board positions within consumer
services companias. Bob stepped down as Chairman
of Northgate plc in September 2015,

Suzi Williams (49) Non-Executive Director

Appointment: Suzijcined the AA in October 2015
as a Non-Executive Director.

Responsibilifies: As Non-Executive Director, Suzi
provides objectiveinsightand critical debate to Board
discussions on strategic, financial and governance
matters. Suziisamember of the Risk, Nomination
and Remuneration Committees.

Career and experience: Suzihas extensive
experience with consumer-facing companies and
brands. A Procter & Gamble trained brand marketer
and businessteader, Suzihas spent the last 20 years
delivering commercial transformation and growth
for household names like the BEBC, Orange and
Capital Radia Group {where she was Cotrmerciat
Development Director at Global Radio Group from
2004 10 2006). In September 2015, atter aten-year
tenure, she stepped down from her role as Group
Marketing and Brand Director at BT plc.

Appointment; Martinjoinedthe Adin June 2014 Non-Executive Director

as part ofthe MBl team,

Responsibilities: As CFO, Martin has ultimate
respansibility for financial planning and overseeing
risk management, treasury and internal controls.
Additionally, he focuses on investor relations and
improving the capital structure of 44 pic,

Appointment: John Leach joined the AAin June 2014
as a Non-Executive Director. He was appointed as
Senior independent Directoron 13 November 20i4.

Respaonsibilities; As Semor Independent Director,
John provides objective insight and critical debate to
Board discussions on strategic and financial matters
and supports the Executive Chairman with addihionat
oversight on governance matters. lohnis Chair of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Risk
and Audit Committees.

Career and experience: lohn has served on public
company boards as either Chairman, CEQ or CFOfor
the past 36 years, He has considerable experience
intunaround situations intheindustrialand service
sections sitting on the boards of, among others,
Brent Walker{including William Hilk and Pubmaster),
Myson Group and Luminar. Most recently, Johnwas
CEOQ of Hermes UK Focus Funds and a supervisory
Board member of Dometic AB. john began his career
asan Articled Clerkand subsequently as a Partnerin
afirm of chartered accountants. He s aFellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants and a Fellow of
the Association of Corporate Treasuters.

Careerand experience: Martin hasover 30 yearsof
private equity experience. principally intherole of
Partner and GlobalHead of Consumer for Permira
which hejoined in 2002, Pnor to Permira, Martin
worked at Cinven and Silverfleet, the private equity
arm of Prudential plc. He has led anumber of major
transactions and has sat on the boards of several
major companies including New Look, Gala Ceral
and Gataxy Entertainment Group, which is isted
oh theHong Kong Stack Exchange.

Keytocommittees

N Nominaton Committee

Rl RskCommttes
A AuditCommittee
R Remuneration Committee

The age of the Board and Executive Committee memberisgiven
atthe hmathe reportis published {April 2017)

Mark Mitlar (47) General Counseland
Company Secretary

Appointment: Mark joined the AAin September 2014,

Responsibilties: As Company Secretary, Markis
responsible for corporate governance matters,
working closely with the Chairman, SIO and Board
of Directors and attends ail Board and committee
meelings. Mark leads legaland requlatory aspects
ofthe AA's business and transactions, suchas the
financial restructunng prejects and the sale of
AAlreland.

During 2016, Markwas awarded the first AA
Leadership Award.

Careerand experience: A qualified solicitor, Mark was
formerty Company Secretary at Domino's Pizza Group
pke and Future plc and has 14 years of experience in the
role, Mark also has a wealth of commercial and legal
expertise, including ten years as a City solictor, latterly
with Allers & Overy.
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Andrew Blowers (56) Non-Executive Director

Simon Breakwetl (52) Non-Executive Director

Andrew Miller (50) Non-Executive Director

Appointment: Andrew joined the AAin September
2014 as a Non-Executive Director,

Responsibilities: As Non-Executive Director, Andrew
provides objectiveinsightand critical debate to Board
discussions on strategic, financial and governance
matters. Andrew s Chair of the Risk Committee and
amember of the Auditand Nomination Committees.

Career and experience: Andrew has significant
experience in insurance and financial services.

He established and sold several successfutmnsurance
operations during his 25-year careerin the iInsurance
industry, the last being the iInnovative online insurer
Swiftcover. and he was previously an Executive
Drrector of Churchill Insurance. He has previously
advised several private equity operations, the
Consumers’ Association and the Financial
Ombudsman Service in relation to various insurance
matters. Andrew was awarded an OBEin 2009,
Andrew is a Non-Executive Director of Telecom

Plus plc.

Appointment: Simon joined the AA n September 2014
as a Non-Executive Director.

Responsibilibes: As Non-Executive Director,
Simon provides objectiveinsight and cntical
debate to Board discussions on strategic, financial
and governance matters. Simon is Chair of the
Remuneration Committee andamember of the
Nomination Comrmittee.

Careerand experence: Stmon has significant digital
and travel experience. Heis currently a Venture
Partnerat TCV, one of the leading global mid cap
funds, and1s Chairman of Business Data 4 Travel.
Simon s also co-founder of Trover.com and an
adviser to Hipmunk,com,

He was a founder of Expedia, a start-up within
Microsoft, and ranthe North American operations.

As President of Expedia International Inc, Simon
started up andled the growth of the business inthe
Europe, Middle East, and Africa regions, including

both the Hotels.com and Expedia brands. Simon joined
Expedia as a main board Director in 1996 and served
for ten years. More recently, Simon was responsible for
establishing the European operations for Uber.com.

Appointment: Andrew joined the AAin June 2014
as aMon-Executive Director.

Responsibilthes: As Non-Executive Director, Andrew
providesobjective insight and cntical debate to Board
discussions on strategic, financial and governance
matters. Andrew i1s Chair of the Audit Committee and
amember of the Risk and Remuneration Committees.

Careerand experience: Andrew is an Operational
Managing Dyrector with Terra Firma. He has extensive
experience of successful digital transformationin
consumer-facing industnes, most recently working
with Founders’ Forum supporting multinational
business on digital transformation. As CEQ of the
Guardian Media Group from 2010 to 2015, Andrew
reshapedthe Guardian's portfolio of businesses to
support its transformation into one of the world’s
leading digital organisations. From 2002 to 2014,

he camed out a similar transformationas CFOand
non-executive director of Trader Media Group, which
included Autatrader, in its transihon from magazines
to awhaolly digital company.

Prior to his role with Autotrader, Andrew worked

in finance and transformation roles across several
organfsations including Pepsico Europe, Procter

& Gamble, Bass Plc and a start-up company. He ls
amember of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Scotland, qualifying in 1991, and training with
Price Waterhouse after completing his law degree
at Edinburgh University.

Composition of the Board

The skills and experience of our Board members is broad and has been
gained over many years from different environments, such as private
equity, entrepreneurial start-ups, strategic consulting and consumer
services. All of their careers have involved the delivery of substantial
changethrough operational, financial, strategic or marketinginitiatives.
The Boardis united in its energy and commitment to delivering the
objectives of the AA transformation project and building long-term

value for shareholders.

During the 2017 financial year, skills matrices were implemented and
the data was reviewed by our Human Resources Director and SID to
identify areas of focus to broaden the skills, knowledge and experience
of Board members. The output of this will shape the training plan for
Board membersin the coming year. The development of matrices

has confirmed that the Board is strongly skilled to deliver the strategic
objectives and transformation programeme and there are no combined
weaknesses identifying a need for anadditional Board member at

this stage. The skills and compositionof the Board are kept under

constant review.

Together, the Board members combine to create a composition that
is strongly and appropriately aligned with the AA’s values, strategic
abjectives and corporate responsibilities. We firmly believe that each
Board member’s experience, gained through previous roles and any
current external roles, strengthens the composition of the Board

and creates invaluable insight and diversity of thought, and thus

has strengthened governance.

ssaUIsNg IND

aduBLIcLRd IND

JURUIBACD)

SjUBWIRYRYS (BIdURLS



AR plc Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Leadership

Executive Committee

Bob Mackenzie (64) Executive
Chairman

MartinClarke (61)
Chief Financial Officer

Janet Connor (52) Director,
Insurance & Regulatory Conduct

Mike Lloyd (39)
CEOfor AAJSL

Appointment date: June 2014

Responsibilities: As Executive
Chairman, Bob assumes responsibilities
for running the Board, driving the
strategy of the AA and oversighton
govemnance matters. Bob sits onthe
Nominabon Committee.

Careerand experience: Beb qualified
as aChartered Accountant with KPMG
in1978 and has extensive experience of
leading consumer services businesses
and delivering highly successful
business transformation programmes.
Previously, Bob held positions as
Chairman and CEQ of Nationat Car Parks
and Green Flag, as wellas CEO of Sea
Containers Ltdand Chairman of PHS
Group plc and a number of other senior
executive board positions within
consumer services companies.

Bob stepped down as chaiman of
Northgate plcin September 2015.

Appointment date: June 2014

Responsibilities: As CFO, Martin has
ultimate responsibility for financial
planring and overseeing risk
management, treasury and internal
centrols, Additionally, he focuses
oninvestor relalionsand improving
the capital structure of AA plc.

Careerand experience: Martin has over
30 years of private equity experience,
principally in the role of Partner and
Global Head of Consumer for Permira
which hejoined in2002. Priorto
Permira, Martin worked at Cinven

and Silverfleet, the private equity

arm of Prudential plc, He hasled a
number of major transactions and has
sat on the boards of several major
companies including New Look,

Gata Coraland Galaxy Entertainment
Group, whichis isted on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

Appointment date: August 2014

Responsibilities: InMarch 2017, Janet
handed overtherole of CEO of AAISLto
Mike Lloyd & take up the role of Director,
Insurance & Regulatory Conduct. Inthis
role, Janet retains accountability for the
Insurer and assumes respansibility for
the regulatory change agenda atthe AA.

Careerand experience: lanetis a Fellow
of the Institute of Directors and has
pursued a successfulcareerin
consumer financial services across retail
banking andinsurance. Pricr tojoining
the AA, Janet held MD roles in general
insurance and latterly she was managing
director of RSA plc’s brand, More Than.
Previcus to this, Janet ran Ageas-owned
over-50s insurer RIAS from 2006 to
2011, From Aptil 2017, Janet will sit as
aNon-Executive Director of Vanquis
Bank — Provident Group.

Olly Kunc(38) Kirsty Lloyd-Jukes (33} GeraintHayter(43)
Operations Director Membership Services Director Birectorof IT
Appointment date: August 2014 Appointment date: June 2014 Appcintment date: Apnl 2015

Responsibilities: Olly joined the AAas
Managing Director of Home Services
In August 2014 and in September 2014
was appoeinted Managing Director of
Roadside Operations. He has since
expanded Operations to bring together
all customer-facing actvities and facus
on custorner outcomes, and now holds
responsibility for the operations of the
AAincluding patrols, deployment, call
centres and techrical development and
retains oversightover Home Services,

Career and experience; Olly joined the
AA after six years at British Gas where
he laterly served as Managing Director
of Central Heating Installabions. He has
previously heldroles at Barclays, British
Airways and L.E.K. Consulting.

Responsibilities: Kirsty became
Membership Services Directorin
November 2014 to support the AA’s
strategy of providing meore value to
Roadside Members and revitalising the
Membership proposition. in this role
Kirsty has responsibility forthe AA
Driving Schooland BSM, AA Media
{Publishing, Hotel Inspections, Route
Planner), Motoring Services (Used Cars,
Inspection, Signs, Service and Repair)
and Cennected Cars, Kirsty is also the
Group Strategy Director.

Careerand experience: Kirsty joined the
AAas Strategy & Innovations Director
inJune 2034 and was part of the team
that spearheaded the AA plc's IPO.
Praviously, she spentseven yearsat
Oliver Wyman warking with abroad
range of organisations on strategy,
commercial and general management.

Responsibilities: Geraintis responsible
for delivering alllT services to the Group
and iswaorking on transforming the [T
organisationfor the future, He has over
20 years of experience working in [T
atlarge corporate organisations.

Careerand experience: Priorto joining
the AA, Geraint worked at TUI Travel for
4 years, where he was the Director ofIT
for the UK business and was responsible
for delivering the IT elements of a major
transformation programme. Priar to
this, Geraint worked at 3M for 16 years;
having joined asa Graduate Trainee,
Geraint’s last position was IT Director
for the UK and Ireland Business.

Appointment date: September 2014

Responsibilities: Mikeis responsible
for the consumer Readside Assistance,
Business Services, Insurance Broking
and Financial Services businesses as
well as the marketing, digital and public
affairs functions for the AA. In March
2017, Mike became CEO of AAISL

{the AA’sregulated insurance

broking business).

Career and experience: Mike was
previously a Partner at Oliver Wyman,
leading their consumer services work
inthe UK,

Mark Millar (47)
General Counseland Company
Secretary

Appointment date: September 2014,

Responsibilities: As General Counsel,
Markis responsible forlegaland
regulatory aspects of the AA's business
and transactions, suchas the PO,
financial restructuring projects and

the sale of AA Ireland,

During 2016, Mark was awarded
the first AA Leadership Award.

Career and experience: A qualified
solicitor, Mark was formerly Company
Secretary at Domino’s Pizza Group plc
and Future plc and has 14 years

of experience inthe role. Mark atso
has a wealth of commercial and legal
expertise, including ten years as a City
solicitor, latterly with Allen & Overy.
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Edmund King (58) AA President

Boarddiversity

Appointment date: January 2008

Responsibilities: Edmundis responsible
for public affairs, public relations,
campaigns and the AA Charitable Trust.

Careerand experience: Edmund has
abackground inresearch, media, cvil
service, commerce and extensive
transport carnpaigns. He has worked
in the waine trade in Burgundy and for
aradio stationin LA. He haswntten
severalreports ontransportand often
appears as g transport commentator
onradioandtelevision.Heisalsca
Visiting Professor of Transport at
Newcastie University. He tweets
under @AApresident,

Edmund was awarded an OBE for
services to road safety in 2018,

Helen Hancock(4E6)
Human Resources Director

Appuointment date: May 2012

Respansibilities: Helenis responsible
for delivering the people agenda for
the Group andits funchions, ensuring
appropriate leadership and support
15 provided for each element of the
HR strategy. Helenis anattendee
onboth the AAISL and AA pic
Remuneration Committees.

Careerand experience; Helen has over
20 years' experience working in HR
inmedium and large corporate
organisations. Prier tojoining the AA
almost five years ago, Helenworked at

British American Tobacco for eight years

where she held the role of Head of HR
for the Southampton site and Servor
Business Partner roles for the Globat
Product function and Group Research
& Development. Prior to thus, Helen
worked at Alldays Convenience Stores
Limited {subsequently acquired by
The Co-0Op) and B&Q plc with various
HRremits,

The AA’s recruitment policy is to appoint the best candidate to each

role, while having regard to the composition of the Board in terms of age,
background, ethnicity, gender and knowledge. We recognise that diversity
in its broadest sense canenhance the overall effectiveness of the Board

by bringing different voices and opinions to the table.

We monitar and seek fo ensure a good balance of male and female
employees throughout our Group and we continue to build a supportive
and flexible culture that enables us to develop and retain women in
senior positions.

The Board is mindful of Lord Davies’ extended target for Women on
Boards which has called for FTSE 250 boards to have at least 33% female
representation by 2020, The Board also supports the recormmendations
of the Sir John Parker Review toincrease ethnic diversity on boards.

As we continue to build a pipeline of diverse and talented individuals,
we are mindful of achieving these future targets white remaining focused
on appointing the best candidate to eachrole.

More information on our diversity policy can be found in our Nomination
Committee Report on pages 55-57.

Genderdiversity

Given the nature of our business, a higher maleto femnale ratiois expected
atthe AllEmployees level.

Gender pay

The AA supports the Gender Pay Regulations (GPR), which will come into
force from April 2017 and we have tested our information systems to
confirm that the appropriate data is accessible in order to meet the
snapshot requirements at that time. Itis our current intention that we

will publish this data alongside the 2018 Annual Report and Accounts,
intine with the GPR guidelines.

Details of the Executive Directors’ service contracts are set outin the
Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 65-73.
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Leadership

Our Governance structure

GOVERNANCESTRUCTURE
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Structure

Mattersreserved for the Board

The governance structure of the AA Group has evolved since our IPO

in 2014 to provide additional oversight on transformation projects
andinvestment decisions, to meetrevised statutory and regulatory
requirements and to ensure that ourregulated businesses have similarly
rabust governance standards. This governance structureis critical to
ensuring that all our business decisions, operations and activities are
carefully scrutinised and controlled so as to safeguard the long-term
health and reputation of the AA Group.

Our governance structure aims to enable appropriate, effective decision
making with clear accountabilities. It sets out how the business is
managed and operated at all levels and across all business areas. [t aims to
ensure that the risk profile reflects the strategic objectives of the business,
with the ultimate aim of protecting the business from reputational or
operational damage. This structure dovetails with the governance
arrangements ofthe regulated subsidiaries in the Group.

Akey principle of the structure is the delegation of operational
management to the Executive Committee with a matrix of authorities
setting out how thisis further delegated through the organisation.

The Executive Committee gives strategic focus and 1sresponsible for
managing the operational and financial performance of the Group by
coordinating the work of the specialist business areas, This enables the
efficient and effective day-to-day operation of the Group’s businesses.

The Board is kept up to date with developments in the business, including
the work of the leadership teams, through the Executive Chairmanand
Chief Financial Officer’s regular reports, which are discussedin detail at
each Board meeting. Sufficient time is given both before and atthe end
of each Board meeting for the Executive Chairman to meet privately with
the Senior Independent Director and Non-Executive Directors to discuss
any matters.

AA Developments Limited {AADL), a subsidiary of the Company,
is the entity responsible for the provision of our core Roadside
Assistance delivery,

Regulated activities

Anumber ofthe Group’s businesses include regulated activities and the
Group has several regulated subsidiaries. The main such subsidianes are;
the (1) Automobile Association Insurance Services Limited (AAISL), which
runs ourinsurance broking business and which has a board including
three Independent non-executive directors and the (i) AA Underwriting
insurance Company Limited (AAUICL), which is our Insurance Underwriter
and, which has a board including three independent non-executive
directors andis chaired by Andrew Blowers, The Board works closely

with the AAISL and AAUICL boards to ensure that appropriate governance
is followed inrespect of all regulated Group activities.

The role of the Board

The Board is responsible for the stewardship of the Cormpany, protecting
the AA heritage and creating sustainable value for our shareholders.

It carries out this role through a range of activities which require strong
vision, leadership, entrustment and oversight.

The Board embodies the standards and behaviours of the AA that
underpin the delivery of long-term success, and it ensures that the
procedures and processes arein place toensure that these valuesare
wellunderstood and observed. The AA's values, as determined by the
Board, are Courtesy, Care, Collaboration, Expertise and Dynamism.

The Board sets the strategy of the Group and provides guidance and
oversight to the business operations that assume responsibility for
implementing the resulting strategic actions. lt agrees the riskappetite
and tolerances of the Group and ensures that the risk management
structure is aligned and effective. The Board oversees the financial
performance of the Group and is also responsible for corperate
governance and setting the tone from the top.

A number of key decisions and matters are reserved for the Board’s
approvaland are not delegated to management.

Theseinclude:

>Mattersrelatingto the Group's strategy

>Monitoring current trading against previously reported trading

» Approval of major acquisitions, disposals and capital expenditure

>Matters relating to financing and refinancing

> Approval of financial results and overseeing the Group's system
ofinternal control

> An annuzl Board effectiveness evaluation

>Setting the Group’s risk appetite and the Risk Management Framework

Matters requiring Board and committee approval are submitted to the
Board, together with supporting documentation, as part of the Board
or Committee papers. At each Board meeting, the Board packincludes
updates from the Executive Chairman and Chief Financial Officer and
contains financial results and other functional updates. There are
presentations on the Company’s operations and regular discussions
on strategy, marketing, shareholder matiers, employee engagement,
health and safety, corporate responsibility and governance matters.

A Schedule of Matters reserved forthe Board's decisionand clear Terms
of Reference for its principal committees, along with the roles of individual
Board Members, can be found on the Company's Investor Relations
website at www.theaaplc.com/investors/corporate-goverance/board-
and-committee-terms-cf-reference.

Therole of the Committees

The Board delegates certain responsibilities to its principalcommittees
toassistitin carrying out its functions of ensuring independent oversight.
Our principal Board Committees’ constitutions include independent
Non-Executive Directors and play akey role in supporting the Board.

A detailed report on the activities undertaken by each Committee in

the 2017 financial year is given by the relevant Chair laterin this report.

The Board delegates the implementation of strategy and day-to-day
management of the Group’s operations to the executive committees.
The Board delegates oversight of its announcernent obligations under
the Market Abuse Regulations to the Disclosure Committee, which was
established during the year.

Nomination Committee p5S »
Risk Committee p58 )
AuditCommittee p60 >
Remuneration Committee p65 »
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Governance
continued

CLEAR DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

Inorder for the Board to operate effectively and fulfil its aspirations, it is essential that clear roles and responsibilities are defined and followedg.
We recognise that clarity in this areais particularly important, given Bob Mackenzie’s dual role of Executive Chairman. John Leach’s role as
Senior independent Director {SID) has been broadened accordingly to provide additional oversight on governance matters,

The Board meets the Code requirement for more than half of the members to be independent.

Role
wi nt rship an ring effectiveness > Ensuring the Board Js alerted to forthcoming complex,
Executive Chairman >i!:f &e‘?—'&g n?r?g gihelgi:ﬁdsmp andensuring col ntenh?'nus orsensitive 1ssLies affecting theg GroTJg
Bob Mackenzie »Meeting with major shareholders on both strategic > Implementing the decisions of the Board and
and governance matters its Cormmitfeas
>Ensuring effactive communications by the Group > Leading the Group’s strategic development, direction
withits shareholders and objectives
>Ensuring Directors receive accurate, timely and clear >Reviewing the Group's organisationat structure
information and ensuring that agendas emphasise and recommending changes asappropriate
strategicissues >Identifying and executing new business opportunities
> Taking the lead in providing a properly constructed, > Identifying and executing acquisitions and dhsposals
full, formal and tallored induction programme for and leading geographic diversification initiatves
new Directors >Managing the Group's risk profile Including the health
> En§uﬁr]g the Group ct_:mpiies w!th its regulatot;y soard and safety performance of the Group
obligations and ensuring good (inks between the Boa . - .
and the independent boards of the regulated subsidiaries :;i?g‘:\i?:ﬁ;:;;;ﬁ:::::: t';::?::;;t:::;) ;::;?nrzmme
Role
> Acting asa soundil ril utive Chairman ¥ Being available to shareholders ifthey request contact
Seniorindependent and agtrzsstesciJ il:'lte rpfet;?:r:fd fg’rthheeciﬁ‘r: Directors bothggeneraliy and when the normal zhagnels
Director > Providing additional governance oversight, given of E.xecutive thain'nan or Chief Financial Officer
John Leach the dual role of the Executive Charman are inappropriate
>Meeting regularly with the independent Non-Executive >Chairing the Nomination Committee
Directors to facilitate their effective contribution > Leading and participating inthe Board evaluation process
> Holding an annual meeting without the Executive
Chairman present to evaluate hig performance
Role
}Recommending to the Board an annual budget and ) Maintaining relationships with the Group’s banks
Chief Financial Officer financial plan o’ ? and managging the inve;ment and Eankﬁ\é portfolio
Martin Clarke >Examining all trade, investrments and major capital >Managing the Group's risk profile including the
expenditure proposed by Group companies health and safety performance of the Group
>Overseeing risk managernent, treasury and >Irplementing the decisicns of the Board
internal ¢controis and its Committees
> Ensuring effective communication with shareholders »Building and maintaining effective leadershipteams
and key stakeholders and updating institutionalinvestors > Ensuring the Board is alerted to forthcoming complex,
onthe business strategy and performance contentious or sensitive issues affecting the Group
»Recommending to the Board appropriate changes >ldentifying and executing hew business opportunities
fo the capitalstructure and debt [evels
Rola
Non-Executive Directors »Making a Strategic and creative contribution to the Board »Overseeing risk management and internal controls

Andrew Blowers, Simon
Breakwell, Andrew Miller,

> Bringing independence, impartiality, experience, special
knowledge and a different perspective to the Board
> Providing guidance on matters of concern and

YProtecting shareholder and stakeholder interests

> Scrutinising the perfarmance of the Executive Committee
in meeting agreed goals and objectives and monitoring
the reporting of performance

Suzi Williams strategy development

Role

2 Developing, implemeniting and sustaining high standards ) Coordinating the induction of new directors
Company Secretary of corporate governance »Ensuring compliance with statutory and
Mark Mitlar > Supporting the Executive Chalrman and other Board regulatory requirements

Members as necessary

> Advising the Board on legislation, regulation and
corporate goverhance developments which impact
the Group, and maintaining the Group's Corporate
Gaovernance Manuals

> Communicating with shareholders and keeping
the Board informed of shareholder opinions

»Reviewing and monitering the Group’s
Remuneration Policy

3 Ensuring the Group complies with its regulatory
obligations and ensuring good links between the Board
and the independent boards of the regulated subsidiaries
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CALENDAR OF GOVERNANCEMEETINGS IN FINANCIAL YEAR 2017

Feb Mar Apr May Jun  Jul  Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Anadditional Audit Committee

S$cheduled Board meet ™ e o o washeldinApril 2016 andan

rd meetings hd . additional Nomination Committee
Board calls L ] ® L ] ® rmeeting was held inJanuary 2017.
Strategy Workshops Atwo-day strategy session was held

G away from the Head Officeon 6 and

AGM . 7 December 2018.
Nomination Committee ® L ]
Audit Committee [ ] ® ® ®
Risk Committee ® [ ] [ e
Remuneration Commitiee ® o [ ] [ ] ® [ ] Key:

Special meetings

BOARDATTENDANCE

The Board held ten scheduled meetings and calls during the year and individual attendance 1s set out in the table below. All Board members attended
the AGM. Committee attendance is set outin the individual reports,

Name of Director Date appointed A B % Dﬂ:tieglt'lltr!‘s;
Bob Mackenzle Executive Chairman 26 Jun2014 10 10 100%
Martin Clarke Chief Financial Officer 26 Jun 2014 10 10 100%
JohnLeach Seniorindependent Director (from 13 Nov 2014) 26 Jun2014 10 10 100%
Andrew Blowers Non-Executive Director 25 Sep 2014 10 10 100%
Simon Breakwell Non-Executive Director 17 Sep2014 1010 100%
Andrew Miller Non-Executive Director 26 Jun2014 g 10 80%
Suzl Willlams Non-Executive Director 10ct2015 10 10 100%

Notes
A= Numberof meetings andcalls the Director attended.

B = Maximum number of meetings and calls the Director could have attended,
1 Andrew Miller was unable toattend the Board call inOctober and the Board meeting in January ctue to prior commitments but read the papers and pravided commentsin advance

Where appropriate, members of the AA senior management team were invited to give presentations at Board meetings.

Strateglc progress

Progress against strategy is discussed at each scheduled Board meeting to closely monitor strategy implementation by the Group. The two-day
strategy session held away from Head Office on 6 and 7 December 2016 provided the opportunity for more relaxed, free-flowing discussion around
abroad range of strategic issues. They provided a unique and specific opportunity to develop strategy, address currentissues and seek te improve
the performance of the business. The sessions focused on the plans for the next three years of development for the business. The Non-Executive
Directors were able to share their expertise and provide independent oversight to the direction of the business. Discussions focused not only on

the business plan but also on the individuals leading and implementing that plan. These, and other teams that support them, are key to the delivery
of the Board’s objectives.
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Governance
continued

KEY BUSINESS AT MEETINGS DURING THE 2017 FINANCIAL YEAR

In addition to the key operational, financial, CSR and health and safety reports presented at each meeting, the following were considered by the Board
during the year:

Febrniary 2016 Board call

Update on sale of AA lreland

Approve appaintment of new
AAISL Non-Executive Director

Update onIT transformation

June 2016 AGMLondon

Second AGMheldin Lordon

> Approval of 2016 accounts
>Allresolutions passed

Review draft ofthe
2016 Annuai Report

April 2016 Board meeting London

Approve preliminary results
staternent

July 2016 Board call

UpdateonIT transformation

Strategic review:
> Approval of completion
of Irish disposal

Receive dividend proposal

Approve Annual Report

FY17Budget

Strategic review:
>Insurance model
>Irishdisposalupdate
»Pensions planning

Receive reports from Risk,
Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees

Investor relations report

Review responsibility of the
Executive Chairman and SID

September 2016 Board
meeting London

Approve Terms of Reference
for regulated entity, AAISL Board
and committees

Strategic review:

> Health and safety
>Project updates
»Pensions update

Approve interim results, dividend
policy and interim dividend payment

Duplicate Cover update

April 2016 Board call

June 2016 Board meeting London

Review and approve Ql results

Strategic review:
>»Approval of Irish disposal
>Health and safety

Progress check on [T transformation

Investor relations update -
feedback on prelimninary results

Financial strategy and
three-year planning

Govermance updates from Risk,
Audit and Nomination Committees

October 2016 Board call

Feedback frominterimresults

Indication of refinancing process

Boardreview and
successionplanning

Review independence of
Non-Executive Directors

Budget planning

November 2016 Board call

Strategic review:

> Approvalof refinancing
»Connected car

»Home Services

Governance updates from Risk,
Audit and Nomination Committees

C5R update

December 2016 Board and strategy
meetings

Strategic focus and development of
three-year plans for business areas

>Commercial growth areas
»Business and T transformation
»Business readiness

January 2077 Board meeting
Oldbury

Evaluate feedback from
strategy workshop

Board performance
evaluation update

Update from Remuneration
Committee

Strategic review:
»FY18 Budget approval
>Three-vear plan approval

PLANNING AHEAD

Looking forward tothe 2018 financial year,
the Board and its Committees will focus on:
»The final stages of our transformation
programme
>Developing and delivering our three-year plan
»Splitting theroles of Chairman and
Chief Executive
»Peveloping succession plans deep
into the Group
>implementation of strategic priorities
»Cngoing development of our
governance structure
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Effectiveness

Nomination Committee
Report

“During the second year of the
AA’s transformation, we have
focused on strengthening
processes to ensure the Board
is well informed, vocaland
engaged. We continue to review
and monitor the effectiveness of
the Board and lead the process
for future appointments to ensure
thatthere is an appropriate
balance of skills, experience,
knowledge and diversity.”

JohnLeach
Nomination Committee Chairman

Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased to present the report of the Nomination Committee (the
Committee) for the financial year ended 31 January 2017. The Committee
supports the Board in reviewing its structure and composition, evaluating
its performance, overseeing succession planning for the Board and its
Executive Committees and monitoring Board diversity.

A core focus of the Committee during the 2017 financial year has been

to identify and imptement step changes to raisethe efficiency, and thus
the value, of the Board’s work. As part of this process, the Committee
considered the results from the first internal Board effectiveness review
and agreed a number of key areas to address during the year. The results
of this review are detailed later in this report, along with the areas that will
be addressed in the coming year.

The succession planning process for splitting the current combined CEQ
and Chairman roles will be a paramount activity of the Committee and s
set outin detail below. The Board effectiveness review, development of
skills matrices and an established talent management programme have
assisted with the process of understanding the position and prospects
ofthe Board and aided the succession planning process. This report
considers this work and the procedures in place forthe future
appointment of any new director.

The report also sets out other principal activities of the Committee during
the year and our action plan for the 2018 financial year,

MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE DURING THE YEAR

The membership of the Committee, together with appointment dates and
attendance at meetings, is set out below:

%of

possible

Date appointed meetings

Name of member toCommittee A B attended

JohnLeach (Chairmanfrom13 Nov 2014) 26Jun2014 2 2 100%

Andrew Blowers 13Nov2C14 2 2 100%

Simon Breakwell 13Nov2014 1 2 50%

BobMackenzie 26Jun2014 2 2 100%

SuziWilliams 010ct2015 2 2 100%
Notes

A= Numberof meetings the member attended.
B = Maximum numberof meetings the member could have attended.,
* Simon Breakwell missed one Committee meeting dueto famuly lliness.

The Chief Financial Officer, Human Rescurces Birector, Company
Secretary and Chair of the Audit Committee, Andrew Miller, were invited
to attend meetings during the year.
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Nomination Committee Report
continued

Nomination Committee responsibllities and activity during the year

The Nomination Committee undertook the following activities during the
2017 financialyear:

>Reviewed the balance of skill, experience, independence, diversity and
knowledge on the Board

» Completed the second internal Board evaluation

> Undertook a tender process and appointed an external consultancy
{Condign Baard Consulting Limited}to carry out an external Board
evaluationin the 2018 financial year

> Produced a skills matrix of Board members to aid future succession
planning and talent management

»Considered gender and other diversity at Board level and through the
management strugture

» Appraised the performance of the Chairman, aprocess conducted by
the Senior Independent Director and Non-Executive Directors

>Reviewed verbal feedback from AAISL onits first board evaluation

> Reviewed succession planning for the Board, including commencemnent
of planning for anew CEQ

> Assessed the future talent pipeline within the Group and senior
management succession planning

The Board recognises that the process ofimproving its effectiveness
requires continuous attention, particularly in respect of actions such as
ensuring the correct Board balance, succession planning and Board focus.

The Board undertook a rigorous and formalinternal evaluation of its own
performance and that of its Committees and Ditectors during the year,
The Board believes that an external evaluation every three years will bring
new insightintoits processes and performance. Inthe coming year, the
Board's first external evaluation will take place. The Board has begun

the process of planning for that external evaluation and has appointed
Condign Board Consulting Limited to undertake the review.

The 2017 Board evaluation focused on the following areas of its role
and performance:

» Accountability, governance, dynamics, process and culture

» Composition of the Board and its Committees and their balance and
diversity of skills, experience, independence and knowledge, including
censideration of gender diversity

> Reviewed the training and development process for Directors

> Reviewed the time commitments of the Non-Executive Directors

» Reviewed the skills and independence of each of the independent Non-
Executive Directors and subsequent recommendation that each of them
be elected or re-elected at the Company’s AGM 1o be held on 8 June 2017

>Updated the Terms of Reference of the Committee, acknowledging the
establishment of a Nomination Committee for AAISL

The full Terms of Reference of the Namination Committee can be found
at httpr/fwww.theaaplc.com/investors/corporate-govemance/board-
and-committee-terms-of-reference.

Board evaluation

The Board recognises the need to mantairn its development and
continually strengthen Board processes. Thisinvolves a continuous
process of;

> Reflecting on past performance and implementation of previous
recommendations or actions

»Consideration of future training, skills and diversity requirernents

> ldentification and implementation of new recommendations or actions
to improve performance

Yeart Year2 Year3

Internal evaluation Internal evaluation External evaluation
Actions from Year1
Appoint consultancy

to assist with Year 3

» How the Board and its Committees work as individual units as well
as their interaction with each other and with management

»The performance of individual Directors

> Other factors relevant to the Board's effectiveness such as management
of meetings and the quality of information provided by managerment

»How to imprave the strategy and budgeting processes

The 2016 and 2017 internal Board evaluations included detailed
questionnaires and interviews by the Senior Independent Director
and Company Secretary. The results of the Board evaluation were
reviewed by the Nomination Committee at the March 2017 meeting.
The Board received the feedback and was given the opportunity

to discuss the results.

The scores of the 2017 internal evaluation were positive in most areas.
The Board acts as a strong team with a good mix of skills and experience.
The Non-Executive Directors bring independent challenge and the
Group also benefits from their experience and skitls through a successful
mentoring programme with the senior management team.

Improverments had been made to the actions resulting from the 2016
Board evaluation including the improvement of Board commitiee
effectiveriess; praise was givento the Company Secretary for facilitating
this success.

The key points for action identified for the forthcoming year are
suceession planning, diversity and increasing the number of board
meetings to increase time focused on strategic issues. Steps have been
taken to address each of these points.
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From the feedback of the internal Board evaluation the following action
points were identified and have been or are being progressed:

>More timely access to financial information

> Develop aformalised process for executive succession planning

>»Develop a mentoring programme to support the senior management
team, especially during the transformation programmes

>Increase diversity of skills and experience at Board level,
includinggender

» Encourage open discussions and challenges to decisions at meetings

> Improve the effectiveness of Board and committee processes

> Ensure meeting packs are received with plenty of time for consideration

> Strengthen relationships with brokers, banks, external auditors and
otherkey advisers

These key findings have beenimplernented in the current financial year
and progress will be considered as part of the next performance
evaluation and reported innext year's Annual Report.

Review of the effectiveness of the Executive Chairman

The effectiveness of the Executive Chairman was considered as part of
the Board evaluation process. The feedback provided in the questionnaire
was followed by 1-2-1 meetings where responses were discussed with the
Senior Independent Director and Company Secretary. The results ofthe
review were unanimously positive. The review confirmed that the Board

is satisfied that the Executive Chairmaniis fulfilling his duties and wish him
to continue in the combined role in the coming year.

Succession planning including for the Executlve Chairman after the
2017 financlal year

Succession planning has been a key focus for the Committee during the
current year. It was previously published that the Board's intention was
for Bob Mackenzie's combined role of Executive Chairman and CEQ

to be splitin the 2018 financial year. Given that the transformation is
stillunderway, the Board wishes for Bob Mackenzie to continue inthe
combined rote for the 2018 financial year but willadvance the process
for succession planning this year.

The Committee has started a formalised process of defining the split roles
and listing the necessary skills and experience required for the new roles.
In the coming year, it will start considering potential successors for the
roles to ensure the handover is managed smoothly. The Committee

is seeking to ensure that the appointed individual satisfies the criteria

for the role in order to promote the success of the business and lead
future strategy.

At each meeting, the Committee has considered succession planning
inits wider sense, identifying talent and setting training plans to prepare
individuals for future roles. This included succession planning for other
Directors and the senior managernent team.

The Committee will continue to ensure that there are sufficient succession
plans in place for all executive positions throughout the Group.

Diversity

The Committee recognises the importance of diversity at Board level
and throughoutthe Group and is committed to ensuring that this remains
a central feature of the Board and our senicr management team. Inthe
interests of the business and cur shareholders, the Committee continues
to ensure that the business benefits from arepresentative Board and
waorkforce with a diverse range of skills, experience and knowledge.

We are committed to increasing the representation of women on the
Board and aim to develop a clear plan to achieve Lord Davies’ extended
target for Women on Boards of 33% fermale membership by 2020,

Al aspects of diversity, including ethnic representation, are considered
ateach level of the recruitment process and the AA supports the
recommendations of Sir John Parker’s review increasing ethnic diversity
at Board level, developing candidates for Board positions and enhancing
transparency and disclosure. These changes can only be achieved by
either an additionalappointment to the Board or replacement when
ancther Director steps down, neither of which was necessary or occurred
during the past year, but the Board will actively consider this during the
coming year.

To achieve these targets, the Committee is working closely with the
Human Resources Director to develop clearrecruitment plans which
recognise the need to increase the diversity of the Board, while being
mindful that appointments are made on merit.

In the context of the wider workforce, our employment policies and
practices reflect a culture where decisions are based onindividual ability
and potentialin relation to the business needs. We are committed to
ensuring that individuals are treated fairly and in a non-discriminatory way
throughout the recruitment process and at all stages of their employment.

At the AA we recagnise the additional challenges faced by disabled people
in gaining employment and we are members of the Disability Confident
scheme, We have regular discussions with all disabled employees to
consider changes we can make to ensure their ongoing career
development,

The Committee’s plan for the 2018 financial year includes:

» Implement actions frorm the 2017 Beard performance evaluation,
particularly around succession planning and diversity.

» Begin selection processin connection with the separation of the
Executive Chairman’s tworoles

»Continue succession planning for the Board and key roles across
the business

»Planning for external independent Board evaluation in 2018

»Develop diversity action plan - to ideally meet Lord Davies’ target
of 33% women on the Board by 2020 and the recommendations
on ethnic diversity made by Sir John Parker in his 2016 review

» Continue to operate the successful mentoring programme with the
senior management team

» Develop and deliver training and induction programme for the Board
and senior management

»Consider the skills, availability and performance of each Board member
and reflect those results in recommendations on the election and
re-election of Directors at the Annual General Meeting.

JohnLeach
Nomination Committee Chairman
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Accountability

Risk Committee
Report

“The achievement of our strategic
objectives, fair customer
ottcomes and the long term
sustainable growth of our
business requires an embedded
and effective risk management
culture and process.”

Andrew Blowers
Chairman of the Risk Committee

Dear Shareholder,

|am pleased to present the report of the Risk Committee {the Committee}
for the financial year ended 31 January 2017.

Effective risk management s a core part of AA governance and culture.
Overthe last year, the Committee has ensured that the Risk Management
Framework and our agreed risk appetite continue to be appropnate for
the AA as the transformation initiatives are rolled out. The Committee
plays a key oversight role for the Board and this report is presented to
demonstrate our approach to risk control and accountability. It sets

out the activities and initiatives that we have undertaken duiing the

2017 financial year and aur plans for the forthcoming year.

MEMBERSHIPAND ATTENDANCE DURING THEYEAR

The Committee meets at least quarterly and comprises four independent
Non-Executive Directors. The current members are set out below,
together with their appointment dates and attendance at meetings.

%af

possible

Date appointed meetings

Name of member toCommittee A B attended

Andrew Blowers (Chairman) 13Nov2014 4 4 00%

JohnLeach 1BNov2014 4 4 100%

Andrew Mitler 25Feb2015 4 4 100%

SuziWilllams O0ct2015 4 4 100%
Notes

A= Number of meetings the member attended.
B=Maximum number of meetings the member could have attended.

Supporting the Committee s an Executive Risk and Compliance
Committee (ERCC)which meets ten times a year, Thisis an executive
bady, made up of seniar executives and functional experts. lts roleis to
implement the Risk Management Framework and report to the Committee
on theeffectiveness of the management of risk, new and evolving risks
and the effectiveness of the risk management culture and processes.
There isalso an Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (ARCC} for

the regulated Insurance broking subsidiary, Automobile Association
{nsurance Services Limited, and an ARCC for the insurer, AA Underwriting
Insurance Company Limited, which also report to the Committeein
respect of their work,

The Committee works closely with the ERCC, ARCCs, Head of Compliance
and Group Risk Manager and invites executive members of the Groupto
attend or present, as appropriate,

Risk Committee roles and responsibilities

Overall responsibility for overseeing the management of risks, compliance
with our Risk Management Framework and the agreed risk appetite of

the Group lies with the Board. These respansibilities are delegated to the
Executive Directors of the Board for the day-to-day management of risks
and the process is monitored by the Committee (working alongside the
Audit Committee) each of whom reports to the Board.

The Committee is concerned with the business of the entire Group and
its authority extends to all relevant matters relating to the Company and
its business units and subsidiaries. The Committee advises the Board

on the Group's overall risk appetite, folerance and strategy, and oversees
and advises the Board onthe current risk exposures of the Group and
future risk strategy.

Full Terms of Reference of the Committee can be found at hitp:/fiwww.
theaaplc.comfinvestors/corporate-governance/board-and-committee-
terms-of-reference
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Risk Management Framework

>Risk management process Key Performance Indicators

For risk management to work effectively inthe AA, the following
arerequired;

> An effective risk culture in place with risk management embedded in
thebusiness

»The timely identification, reporting and management of the principal risks

>The regular review and updating of risk registers, including the
assessment of risks and their respective contrals

>Timely and accuratereporting ofincidents and near misses

> The operation of management “snap checks” (control effectiveness
tests}to confirm the adequate operation of key controls

»The implementation and tracking to resolution of management
actions for unacceptable risks, deficient controls, incidents and
failed “snap checks”

>Minutes of the ERCC

Dunng the year, in addition to the standard reports fromthe Group Risk
Manager and the Compliance Officer, the Committee hasreceived
presentations from various areas of the business to enable us to review
and consider specific risks. Subjects covered have included:

> Information/cyber security

»Data protection and retention

»Business transformation

>ITtransformation

>Duplicate breakdown cover for Members

>Proposals as to how to treat Members who have moved and their
addressis no longer known

>Thereporting of key risk indicators (KRis)

>MasterCard/Visa processing

»Engagement from all employees to effectively manage risk and operate
the organisation’s control framework

The effective operation of the above is monitored by the Committee.
The AA's Risk Management Framewaork is reviewed annually by
the Committee.

Grouprisk appetite

Itis the responsibility of the Board to set and agree the Group risk appetite
andthisisregularly reviewed by the Committee. The appetite takes into
account the level of risk and risk combinations that the Board is prepared
to take to achieve the Company’s strategic objectives together with the
level of risk shock that the Group is able to withstand. The AA’s Risk
Appetite Framework policy outlines the amount of risk the organisation

is willing to take.

Principalrisks and uncertainties

The Board hasidentified, and monitors on an ongoing basis, the principal
risks to the AA, including those risks that would threatenits business
model, future performance, solvency or liquidity, Set out on pages 32

to 35 are the risks the Board considers to be of most significance to

the Groupin terms of preventing or restricting execution of our strategy,
together with the mitigating activities that we have putin place totry to
prevent such risk materialising. We recognise that other risks are still
present and seek to ensure that they are managed accordingly.

Itis recognised that the Groupis exposed to a number of risks, wider than
those listed. However, we have disclosed those of most concern to the
husiness at this momentin time, including those that have been the
subject of debate at recent Board and committee meetings.

Risk Committee activity during the 2017 financial year

The Committee receives regular reports on risk management
whichinclude:

» The status of the principal risks and the top risks identified by executive
management inctuding horizon and emerging risks

> Material incidents and near misses

> Control effectiveness details

» Progress in compteting actions to rectify control shortcomings

> The Group Risk Appetite Dashboard

>KRlexceptions

>Commercial road income forecasting

»Thedisposalof AA Ireland

»Updates from the Chairs of the ARCCs

Initiatives during the 2017 financial year

In our annual report for the 2016 linancial year | noted that we intended

to make further progress in embedding a sustainable risk management
culture into the AA with further focus on the mitigation and management
ofthe principal risks. The status of the principalrisks and the changes to
them during the year are reported on pages 32-35. | am pleased o report
that good progress towards enhancing the risk management process has
been made as detalled below:

» Enhanced business assurance in the “first line” business areas

»Enhanced corporate governance for our broker subsidiary Automobile
Association Insurance Services Limited including the establishment
of a Culture and Conduct Committee in addition to the ARCC

Y Establishment of the Insurer’s ARCC and Risk Appetite Framework

> Enhancements to our product nsk matrix and the development
of a supplier riskmatrix

Initlatives for the 2018 financial year

»Keeping our risk framewaork and culture fresh and relevant to the
business, including simplifying the risk framework where possible,
ensuring the Risk Management Framework adds additional value to the
business and provides a platform for employees to speak up and voice
any concerns they may have

»Using the Risk Management Framework to help support the ongoing
culturaltransformationinthe AA

>Improving the process for incident management to better learn from
errors and ensure more timely effective resolution and the prevention
of similar incidents

>Continuedimprovement to historic poor practices and processes

> Improving the quality of the reporting that flows to the Committee

Andrew Blowers
Chairman of the Risk Committee
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Effectiveness

Audit Committee
Report

“The Audit Committee continues
o provide sound oversight of the
Group’s corporate governance,
risk management and financial
reporting process.”

Andrew Miller
Audit Cormnmittee Chairman

Dear Sharehoider,

|am pleased to present the report of the Audit Committee (the Committee}
forthefinancial year ended 31January 2017.

During the year, we have consolidated the work we began in our first two
years, improvingour financial reporting, internal controts and the quality
ofthis report. Relationships with the business, shareholders and external
and internal auditors are now well established and the workings of the
Committee are strongly embedded.

The major focuses for the business this year have included the IT
transformation project and developing and enhancing the business’s
culture. The Committee has played a key rolein these, taking a keen
interest inthe progress of initiatives.

Amajor change inthe audit landscape this year was the publication of the
Financial Reporting Council’s new guidance on audit committees, which
willapply to the Group from the 2018 financial year. In anticipation of this
and inthe spirit of our early adoption of the new guidance, we have taken
asthe theme for this 2017 report two key concepts from the new guidance:
that the Committee's relationships with the Board, executive management,
andinternal and external auditors are characterised by a frank, open
working relationship and a high level of mutual respect; and that our role
is one of oversight, assessment and review. It is through these themes
that we play ourrole inthe transformation project and contribute to the
development of the Group’s culture,

Woe have, since the end of the year, commenced an audit tender process
for the appointment of a new auditor with effect from the 2019 financial
year. The Committee plays a key oversight role for the Board and this
reportis presented to demonstrate our approach to accountability, setting
out the key issues that we have considered during the 2017 financial year
and what we plan to focus on during the forthcoming financial year,

MEMBERSHIPAND ATTENDANCE DURING THE YEAR

The Committee meets at least quarterly and currently comprises three
independent Non-Executive Directors. The members are set out below,
together with their appointment dates and attendance at meetings.

%of

possible

Dateappointed meetings

Name of member toCommittee A B attended

Andrew Milter (Chairman} 26Jun2014 4 4 100%

JohnlLeach 26Jun2014 4 4 100%

Andrew Blowers 13Nov2014 4 4 100%
Notes

A = Number of meatings the member attended.
B= Maximurmnumberof meetings the membercould have attended.

The Committee comprises three members, afl of whom are Independent
Non-Executive Directors, satisfying the requirernents of the UK Corporate
Governance Code and the Committee’s Terms of Reference.

As Chairman of the Committee, | invite the Executive Chairman and the
Chief Financial Officer to attend meetings of the Audit Committee where
appropriate and the Company Secretary attends as Committee Secretary.
The Head of Internal Audrt also attends regularly, except where
performance of internal audit 1s discussed. Jonathan Ree, as Chair of the
Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (ARCC) of our regulated insurance
broker, Automobile Association Insurance Services Limited (AAISL),

alse regularly attends to ensure consistency across the Group. Other
senior executives may attend as required to provide information on
matters beingdiscussed which fallinto their area of responsibility. The
Committee considers that raceiving these updates helpsto provide us
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with an excellent insightinto the business's challenges and aspirations
and an opportunity to challenge and discuss these, while sharing our
extensive experience and weighing in with an independent perspective.

The external auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, also attend each meeting,
except where we discuss theirindependence, performance and
reappointrnent, fees or audit tendering.

Audit Committee roles and responsibitities

The Committee members have an appropriately wide range and depth
of relevant financial and commercial experience. These skills ensure that
the Committee has the necessary competencies to fulfil its Terms of
Reference, to provide anindependent perspective, and to support
effective governance, Furthermore, all three members of the Committee
meet the specific requirement for recent and relevant financial experience,
1am a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland and
have recent specific experience as CFO of Trader Media Group, which
included Autotrader. John Leachis a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants and the Association of Corporate Treasurers. Andrew
Blowers has extensive financial services experience {with a particular
focus on the insurance industry) and has worked in an advisory capacity
with the Financial Ombudsman Service. The Board therefore considers
that the Committee meets the UK Corporate Governance Code
reguirementsin regards toits cormnposition and expertise.

All three members of this Committee sit on the Risk Committee and |,
as Committee Chairman, also sit on the Remuneration Committee, to
facilitate efficient cross-communication and ensure that all risk and
audit issues are addressed effectively.

The Committee meets regularly to fulfil the following core responsibilities:

>Menitor the integrity and effectiveness of our financial reporting

»Review and recemmend the statutory, preliminary final and interim
financial resultsto the Board

>The Audit Quality Review team of the FRC, completed a review of the
external auditors’ 2016 audit of the Company. No significant issues
were noted. The results of this review were discussed and minor
improvemenis to the external audit process for future years were
subseqguently agreed

>Qversaw delivery and outcomes of the IT and business
transformation programmes

»Reviewed and made recommendations in retation to the statutory,
preliminary final and interim financial results

>Reviewed cashflows

> Oversaw data protection and management of risk

>Reviewed debt and financial instruments

> Approved and oversaw key policies and practices

>Reviewed theinternal audit and compliance assurance plan, design
and delivery, with particular focus on key strategic priorities

»Assessed the effectiveness of the internal audit functionand continued
to keep under review the adequacy ofinternal controls

>Reviewed and monitored the effectiveness, tenure and independence
ofthe external auditer and provided advice to the Board as to their
reappointment or removal

>Undertook a thorough review of the Annual Report and Accounts to
ensure that the narrative messages are consistent and accurately reflect
the financial staternents and that the information as awhole is fair,
balanced and understandable

> This year AAISL also established a new Culture and Conduct Committee,
The Audit Committee received verbal updates from the AAISL ARCC
Chairman at each of the quarterly meetings

The Committee’s action plan forthe 2018 financlal year

> Maintain oversight of financial and other regulatory requirements and
make recommendations as to the impact on ourfinancial statements

»Review and approve the internal audit plan for the following financial
year, ensuring it is aligned with our key strategic pnorities

Locking ahead, the Committee will remain focused onthe auditand
assurance processes within the business, and maintain its oversight
of financial and other regulatory requirements, The action plan for the
2018 financial year will focus on:

The Committee ensures that regular updates are provided to the Board
on how the Committee has discharged its responsibilities,

Full Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee can be found at
www.theaaplc.com/investors/corporate-governance.aspx.

Audit Committee activity during the 2017 financial year

The Committee undertook the following activities during the year:

»Considered the tendering of external audit services underthe
new regulatory regime and, as a result has now commenced an
audit tender process

»Reviewed submissions from audit firms to the audit tender and
determine the appointment of the next auditor with effect from
the 2019 financialyear

>Reviewed and recommendation of statutory and interim results

> Reviewed of cashflow

>Reviewed of assurance plan, design and delivery, with particular focus
onkey strategic priorities

>Approval of internal audit pltan and oversight of key policies and practices

> Assessing the effectivenass of the internal audit function and keeping
under review the adequacy of internal controls

>Undertaking a thorough review of the Annual Report and Accounts to
ensure that the narrative messages are consistent and accurately reflect
the financial statements and that the information as a whole is fair,
balanced and understandable
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Audit Committee Report

continued

Significantissues

The Audit Committee has asgsessed whether suitable accounting policies have been adopted and whether management has made appropriate
judgements and estimates.

Throughout the year, the finance team has worked closely with Ernst & Young LLP to ensure that the Group provides the required level of disclosure
regarding the significant issues considered by the Committee in relation to the financial statements, as well as how these issues were addressed,
while being mindful of matters that may be business sensitive.

The main areas of judgement that have been considered by the Committee to ensure that appropriate rigour has been applied are set out below.

The Issue and lts
significance Work undertaken Ourt dactl
Revenue The accounting policies for revenue recognition prepared by management The Committee agrees withmanagement’s assessment that the
recognltion have been presented to the Committee which has concluded that they remain internal controls have remained consistent and effective during
consistent and appropriate. The Committee has reviewed management’s the year. The Committee will continue to menitor this area.
assessment of the internal confrol framework over revenue. This assessment s
has highlighted some issues with the initial revenue recognition of Roadside Based on the impact assessment of adupjnng IFRS 15, .
h ! N ? management has concluded that there will beno material
Assistance Membership subscriptions by the Membership database as well as impact on revenue from adopting this standard
the additional controls that management has put in place toidentify and correct :
tor these issues. The Committes notes that the current [T transformation plans
include the replacement of the Membership database which willimprove the
controls over revenue recognitionin this area.
Management has alsc carmed out animpact assessment to determine the impact
of adopting IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers” whichis effective
forthe Group from 1 Febryary 2018.
Cybersecurlty  Review of existing administrative and technical controlsin place to manage the Work has beenundertaken toimplement and strengthen
nsks associated with cyber security. This was based upcn activity conducted by controls In this area, especially around access, licence
the Information Security team and included testing undertakenby anindependent  management, use of PCs, laptops and databases, Oversight of
trusted security partner. This hightighted a number of areas of focus where this is now managed by the Risk Committee and in the coming
remediation actions were needed to address known 1ssues and vulnerabilities, year the Audit Committee plans to review data in more detail.
AniT & Change Senior internial Auditar foined the intermal
auditteam in late 2015 to provide additional oversight,
Duplicate Management has provided £10m for refunds due {o customers who have The Committea has reviewed the methodoalogy used inthe
breakdown purchased duplicate Roadside Assistance cover. These customersare both valuation of the provision and the assumptions used and has
cover personat Members andalso hold Added Value Accounts (AVAs) with the concluded that the accounting treatmentis appropriate.
Group's banking partners. This includes the presentation of the costin the income
Management has identified a group of customers for whom thebenefitofholding  staternent which|s split between exceptional revenue
both forms of cover1s not clear. While the situation 1s being remediated, a provision  and exceptional finance costs.
has been made reflecting management’s assessment of the cost of remediation. The Committee received uadates during the year from the
The duplicate breakdown cover provision requires the use of assurptions about Chair of the AAISL ARCC inrespect of the governance and
the likelihood of refunds being required. Therefore, the value of the provision controls over the ongoing remediation programme. Reviewsin
can change due to changesin the underlying assumptions. this area are also scheduled by both the Compliance Monitoring
and Internal Audit functions.
Penslons The Group's defined benefit pension scheme is a significant net liability The Committee has considered both the process that
accounting on the Group's balance sheet (see note 25 to the consilidated financial statements)  management undertook to finalise the assumptions and
and the value of the scheme will fluctuate due to changes in the underlying how these assumptions benchmark against the market.
assumptions. The main assumptions which drive these fluctuations are forecast The Commuttee has concluded that the assumptions are
corporate bond vield rates and the forecast inflation rate. consistent with the prior year and the everall valuation
of the net liability isappropriately balanced.
The Committee has also reviewed the disclosuras relating to
the defined benefit pension scheme and is satisfied that they
are appropriate,
Impairmentof  Management has prepared discounted cashflows based on the latest Board The Committee has considered the basis of preparation of the
goodwill approved strategic plan, These discounted cashflows have been compared discounted cashflows andis satisfied that these reflect the

tothe carrying value of goodwill, Noindication of impairment of goodwilt has
been identified.

latest strategic plan of the Group and that there is sufficient
headroom compared to the carrying value of goodwill.
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External auditor

Effectiveness, tenure and independence of the external auditor
The Committee manages the refationship with the Group's externat
auditor on behalf of the Board. The Committee considers annually the
scope, fee, performance and independence of the external auditor as
well as whether a formal tender processis required.

The AA became a constituent member of the FTSE 250 index in March
2015 and Ernst & Young LLP has been the Group's auditor since the audit
for the year ended 31 January 2008. The Company fully supports audit
partner rotation and refreshment. Kathryn Barrow is the current audit
partner, having been appointed during the 2016 financial year.

After careful and thorough review, spread across two Committee
meelings, the Committee believes the independence and objectivity

of the external auditor and the effectiveness of the audit process are
safeguarded and remain strong. We have received confirmation from
Ernst & Young LLP that they remained independent and objective within
the context of applicable professional standards.

We have ensured that management confirmed compliance with cur
Group’s policies onthe employment of former Ernst & Young LLP
employees and on the use of Ernst & Young LLP for non-audit work,
The tatter issue is discussed in further detail below.

In recognition of the FRC Ethical Standard 2016, the Committee advised
the Board, and subsequently approved the decision, to commence a
tender process for external audit services. The process will take place
during the 2018 financial year with the outcorne planned to take effect
for the year ended 31January 2019.

Audit fees

Details of fees paid to our auditors are listed in note 31, The audit fee for the
2017 financial year was £1.0m.

Non-audit fees

2017 2016
Project £000 E'000
March 2015 refinancing - 500
Preparation of subsidhary for sale - 360
AAlreland disposal 2m 135
FRS 101 conversion 20 -
December 2016 refinancing (estimated fee as agreed
at the start) 208 -
Total non-audit fees in financial year 429 995

The Committee is mindful of engaging the statutory auditor for non-audit
services and of potential issues of independence and considered the issue
of non-audit fees at its March 2016 and March 2017 meetings. As aresult
of the work required for the sale of AA Ireland, and the refinancing
announced on 17 November 2016, it was acknowledged that non-audit
fees for this financial year were high, although not as high as they had been
inthe previous two years, due to the refinancing and placing and open
offerinthe 2016 financial year and the IPQ inthe 2015 financial year.

The Comimittee recognises that, in some instances, itis more timely and
cost-effective for our audit firm, who are already familiar with the Group
and its finances, to advise on non-audit matters, Thisis imited to work
where the risk of the auditors’ independence being impairedis low and
where appropriate safeguards can be putin place, This has included in the
year, work carried out inrespect of the disposal of AA Ireland and work
required by regulation in respect of the group refinancing.

The Group has an external auditor Independence palicy (the Pelicy)in
place whichis reviewed annually by the Committee in lght of relevant
ethical guidance and the Committee seeks to ensure that itis adhered to.

The Group acknowledges and supports the FRC Revised Ethical
Standards and our Palicy reflects these revised standards and
accordingly, sets out our commitmentto maintaining a 70% cap on
non-audit fees with the external auditor. The Committee will monitor
compliance with the Policy as part of its role in reviewing auditor
independence and the effectiveness of the audit process.

AA plc has complied throughout the 2017 financial year with the provisions
of the Statutory Audit Services Order 2014 issued by the Competitionand
Markets Authority.

internalcontrols

The Committee works closely with the Risk Committee and has completed
its review of the Group's systems of internal controls and their
effectiveness for the 2017 financial year and has done soin accordance
with the requirements of the FRC’s Guidance on Risk Management,
Internal Controland Related Financial and Business Reporting document
issued in September 2014 (FRC Guidance). It should be noted that the
Group’s risk management systems are designed to manageratherthan
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and they can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The review included, among otherthings, consideration of:

>The Company's risk appetite {(as described in the risk management
sectign on pages 30-31) and the outcome of a survey undertakenin
respect of the risk culture within the organisation

> The operation of the risk management and internal control system,
including the output from an internal audit review of this area

»The assessment of risks within the three-year business planning process

> The principal risks facing the business, along with the changes to those
risks during the year and the mitigating actions being taken in respect of
them (see details in the risk management section on pages 32-35)

>The outputs from the risk incident and near miss reporting process

Inthe Committee’s opinion, there were no significant failings noted from
this review. The Group has adopted acceptable and appropriate
accounting policies and made appropriate estimates and judgements

as and where necessary, The Committee also believes that this Annual
Report and Accounts provides theinformation necessary for shareholders
to make an assessment as to the Group's performance, business model
and ongoing strategy.

The Committee also:

>Ensures that there is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the principal risks faced by the Company and the Group

»Confirms that the systems have been in place for the year under review
and up to the date of approval of the Annyal Report and Accounts

»Confirms that they are regularly reviewed by the Board

>Ensures that the internal control systems accord with the FRC Guidance

Further details on our nsk management can be found on pages 30-35and
i our Risk Committee Report on pages 58-59.
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The Group’s internal controf and risk management systems ensure the
accuracy and reliability of financial reporting, The key features of those
systemsinciude:

isthe report balanced?

s there consistency between the narrative reporting in the frontand
the financial reporting in the back of the report?

> Documented financial governarice framework

>Comprehensive budgeting and reporting processes

> Defined lines of accountability and delegation of authority

> Review and approval of key accounting policies and estimates

> Preparation of consolidated accounts

>Investment appraisal process for evaluating major capital expenditure

> An embedded whistleblowing policy

> Project governance and information security

Fair, balanced and understandable

At the request of the Board, the Committee considered whether, inits
opinian, the Annual Report and Accounts for the 2017 financial yearis fair,
balanced and understandabie and whether it provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's performance, business
modeland strategy.

As part of this process, the Committee discussed what informationand
levelof debate and insight it would need in order to satisfy Members that
financial information wasfair, balanced and understandable,

The Committee was provided with a copy of the Annual Report early inthe
drafting processin order to assess the broad direction and key messages
being communicated, The Committee received further drafts prior to the
meeting at which it would be requested to provide its finalapmion.

When forming its opinion, the Committee refiected on the information
it had received and its discussions throughout the year. In particular,
the Committee considered;

Isthereportfair?

>Isthe whole story presented clearly and articulately?

> Are the key messages inthe narrative reflectedin the financial reporting?

> Has any sensitive materfal been omitted?

»Are the KPIs disclosed at anappropriate level based onthe financiak
reporting and how the business measures performance?

) Is the reporting on the business segments in the narrative
reporting consistent with that used for the financial reporting in
the financial statements?

»Doyou get the same message when youread the two parts
independentty?

> Arethe statutory and adjusted measures explained clearty with
appropriate priority and prominence?

>Arethe key judgements referred to inthe narrative reporting and the
significantissues reported in this Audit Comnittee Report consisterit
with the disclosure of key estimation uncertainties and critical
judgements set outin the financial statements? How do these
compare with the risks that Ernst & Young LLPis planning on
including in its repart?

Is the reportunderstandable?

>Isthere a clearand understandable structure and presentationto
thereport?

s the language clear and the layout easy to navigate with good linkage
throughout in amanner that reflects the whole story?

> Are the important messages highlighted appropriately throughout
the document?

Following its review, the Committee is of the epinion that this Annual
Report and Accounts for the 2017 financial year is representative of the
year, is consistent withits understanding of the business and results,
and presents a fair, balanced and understandable overview, providing
the necessary information for shareholders to assess the Group’s
performance, business model and strategy.

Andrew Miller
Chairrnan, Audit Committee
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Remuneration

Directors’
Remuneration
Report

“Our approach to remuneration
supports a strong focus on
performance, reflects our key
strategic objectives and results
in effective alignment between
the Executive Directors and
our shareholders.”

Simon Breakwell
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Dear shareholder,

On behalf of the Remuneration Committee | am pleased to present our
third Directeors’ Remuneration Report as a public limited company.

We are now two years into our transformation and growth strategy.

We continue to build momentum towards our objective to strengthen the
AA’s position as the UKs pre-eminent Membership services organisation.
Qurremuneration arrangements are operated in this context.

Remuneration in respect ofthe 2017 financial year

tnthe 2017 financial year, we maintained our progressive dividend policy
with payments being made to shareholders inJune 2016 and October
2016. Duringthe year we sold our Irish subsidiary and used the proceeds
to reduce debt in line with our debt reduction strategy. Buildingonthe
major steps taken during the previous financial year, we conducteda
furtherrefinancing of our debt structure, which has reduced the ongoing
annual cash interest costs payable by the Cornpany by an additional
£10m per annum, Investment in the business has also continued and the
investment in new IT systems will supportimprovement in customer
experience and efficiency gains.

The year-end Trading EBITDA of £403m, once again represents a solid
outcome in light of the transformational activity which has taken place
during the year.

The Trading EBITDA for the year and performance against the strategic
and individual objectives set resulted in bonus outcomes of around 60%
of the maximumn for the Executive Directors. Further details are setoutin
the main body of the Remuneration Report.

Although the Company implemented a Performance Share Plan (PSP)
in 2015, no awards have yet been granted under this plan. The interests
held by participants in share arrangements implemented at the time of
Admission are also not yet due to be performance tested. Therefore the
Executive Directors did not receive any long-termincentive payments
inrespect of the 2017 financial year.
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MEMBERSHIP AND ATTENDANCE DURING THEYEAR

% of possible

Dateappointedto meehngs
Name of Member Committee A B attended
Simon Breakwell 17 September 2014 53 6 100%
Andrew Miller 26 June 2014 5 ) 83%
Suzi Williams 1 November 2015 3] 6 0%

A= Number of meetings the Member attended

B = Maxirum numberof meetings the Member could have attended.

The Seniar Independent Directorand Hurnan Resources Director were invited to attend meetings
duringthe year Oeloitte LLP, attend as advisors, where appropriate to do so,

Encouraging share ownership

Bob Mackenzie and Martin Clarke have personally chosento build and
retain very significant shareholdings in the Company. These interests
demonstrate their commitment to the strategy and provide alignment
with shareholders.

The Board is supportive of encouraging a culture of share ownership
across the wider organisation. We have been encouraged by the

take-up of the all-employee share incentive plan (ESIP) inthe previous

two years, We therefore intend to operate the ESIP annually, fromthis
year, and we hope more of our empioyees sign up to andremain inthe
ESIP to share inthe future success of the Company and align their interests
with those of our shareholders. This vear's take up was pleasing at 36%

of eligible employees.

Salary and bonuses Inrespect ofthe 2018 financial year.

Salary levels for the Executive Directors will be reviewed later in the year,
sothat they are considered at the same time as other employees. Thisis
to ensure that any decisions regarding executive director salaries take into
accaunt the approach agreed for the widerworkforce.

The maximum bonus opportunity and the metrics for the 2018 financial
year will remain unchanged. The majority of the bonus for the coming
year (70%) will therefore continue to be based on Trading EBITDA.

Consultation onlongterm shareawards

The Management Value Participation Share structure (MVP Shares),

put in place atthe time of Admission, was originally designed to conclude
in 2019. This award is geared towards creation of total shareholder return
thereby aligning the interests of management with those of shareholders.
Owear recent months the Committee has spent considerable time reviewing
the Group's incentive strategy beyond the timeframe of the original

MVP Shares.

Atthe time of writing, the Committee is in the process of consutting

with major shareholders regarding the best way to alignincentive
arrangements with the interests of shareholders and the strateqgic
ambitions of the Group over the longer-term, To the extent that this review
process is concluded in the coming weeks, the Committee rmay set out
further detailregarding proposals for the coming year in the notice forthe
2007 AGM.

Although the timing for this process means that details of proposals are
notinctuded in this Remuneration Report, the Commitiee recagnises the
importance of implementing the right structure for the AA. The proposals
must fit the needs of the business and complement the strategy both
during and beyond the timeframe of the transformation. We are also keen
to ensure that major shareholders are supportive of the direction of travel
hefore the proposals are finalised.

I hope that you find the report to be clear and helpful. The Committee
remains committed to keeping shareholders informed regarding key
decisions, and a further update regarding our current incentive review
willbe provided in the notice for the 2017 AGM.

Simon Breakwell
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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ANNUAL REPORTONREMUNERATION

LONG TERM SHARE AWARDS

This sectionof the Directors’ Remuneration Report sets out a summary of
how we intend to implement the Policy inthe forthcoming financial year,
as wellas details of how we implemented the Policy and the remuneration
paid to Directors during the 2017 financial year. Where information has
beenaudited, this has been stated. The Remuneration Committee
Chairman’s statement provides further context to the decisions made.

Implementation for the 2018 financial year
The following table summarises how remuneration arrangements will be
operated forthe 2018 financial year.

.

——
SALARY AND BENEFITS

No awards have yet been granted mrespect of 2018, Asnoted inthe
Remuneration Cormittee Chairman’s statement, the Committee is
currently in the process of consulting with major shareholders regarding
the strategy for long-termincentives.

_

NON-EXECUTIVEDIRECTORS

The eurrent fees payable to the Non-Executive Directors (unchanged from
last year) are shown inthe following table.

The current salary levels of the Executive Directors (which are in line

with last year) are set out in the table below. The salary forthe Executive
Chairrman has not beenincreased since Admissionin 2014 and that of the
CFO since appointment to that role on 1 February 2015. The 2018 salary
increases for the wider employee population will be determined inthe
coming months. In order to ensure a consistent approach, the Committee
will review salary levels for the Executive Directors only after the approach
for otheremployees has beenagreed.

2017 salary
Bob Mackenzie £750,000
Martin Clarke £480,000

Benefits and pension arrangements will be in line with last vear.

Role Fee
Senior Independent Director £170,000
Basic fee for other Non-Executive Directors £80,000
Additional fee for chairing of Board Committee (other than

Momination Committee) £15,000
Additional fee for chairing of Group Insurer Board £20,000

Implementation inthe 2017 financlal year

Singletotal figure of remuneration(audited}

EXECUTIVEDIRECTORS

The tables below set out the total remuneration for the Executive Directors
for the year ended 31 January 2017

ANNUALBONUS — Bob Mackenzie Martin Clarke

2017 2016 2017 2016

£000 £000 £000 £000

The maximum opportunity for the Executive Directors will remain Salary 750 750 480 480

unchanged at 120% of salary. Benefits 7 |2 24 16

R a8 6 56

For the 2018 financial year, the weighting on financial objectives is Aewerlnent benefits 7 733 3: A rm
unchanged at 70% of the overall bonus. The performance targetsin nnual bonus

respect of the 2018 bonus will be based on: Long-term incentives’ - - - -

Total 1,369 1,557 206 g66

Weighting
Trading EBITDA targets 70%
Indvidual/strategic objectives 30%

The non-financial objectives are subject to a profit underpin. The
precise performance targets for the coming year are considered to
be commercially sensitive at present, butthe Committee intends to
provide expanded disclosure of targets onaretrospective basis.

The 2018 bonus will again be subject to both malus and clawback
provisions.

1 Asat 31January 2017 the only long-termincentive granted to Executive Directors is the MVP
shares, As the performance conditions are hot tested until lune 2017, the perfermance
conditions are considered to not be substantially complete by year end and therefore no
amount s shown
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Additional notes to the table

Salary
The 2017 salary levels for Bob Mackenzie and Martin Clarke were
£750,000 and £480,000 respectively.

Benefits

The benefits for the Executive Directors include a car related benefit,
private medicalinsurance, permanent health insurance, and life
assurance. Car allowance (or cash alternative) is provided. Life cover s

4 xannual salary payable should death in service oceur. Private medical
insurance is provided for the executive only (Family cover at the additional
costtothe Executive Director). Permanent health insurance cover egual
to 75% of the Executive Director’s annual salary 1s provided (as long as
the Executive Directoris a merber of the AA UK pensich scheme,

or otherwise by arrangement).

Retirement benefits

The amount set out in the table represents the Cempany contribution

to the Executive Directors’ retirement planning. The Company makes
contributions equat to 11.7% of annual basic salary to both of the Executive
Directors for personal arrangements.

Annualbonus

For the 2017 financial year, the maximum annual bonus oppartunity for the
Executive Directors was 120% of salary. Consistent with best practice this
award was also subject to malus and clawback provisions.

The 2017 bonus was subject to Trading EBITDA performance (70% of the
overall bonus), and individual objectives (30%). The bonus outcome was
determined based onthe targets set at the start of the financial year.

As set out in the Executive Chairman’s statement, the Company has made
considerable progress towards delivery of strategic goals during the year.
The table below summarises the performance achieved and the resulting
pay-out under each element of the annual bonus:

Performance  Resulting levelof
Performance relativetothe  award(%of max
measure Weighting Performance achieved target apportunity)
Trading EBITDA 70% £403m Between 37.6%
thresheld and
maximum
individual 30%  Progressaganst Between 19.5%t022.5%
objectives various targetsset  threshold and
atthe startofthe maximum
year (with profit
underpinachieved)
Total 100% 57.1%-60.1%

When reviewing performance against individual objectives the Committee
considered outcomes against various targets that were set at the start of
the year. In particular, the Committee noted the sale of the lrish business,
delivery of further refinancing during the year, progress onthe IT
transformation and customer based initiatives linked to the Group’s

digital offering.

The Board considers that the 2017 financial year Trading EBITDA targets
continue to be commercially sensitive at the year end. However, the
Committee remains committed to transparent disclosure of remuneration
arrangements and therefore intends to disclose details of the Trading
EBITDAtargets (including the threshold and maximum range) for the
2017 bonus innext year's report.

Inrespect of the 2016 banus targets, the Company agreed to disclase
further detailregarding the financial targets on aretrospective basisin
this year's report. As disclosedin last year’s report, 42% out of 60% of the
maximum 2016 bonus was earned based onthe 2016 Trading EBITDA
result of £415m. For the 2016 bonuss, 20% of this element was payable

for Trading EBITDA of £389.5m, 60% was payable for E410rm and 100%
was payable for £430.5m.

Long-termincentives - vesting during the year

There wereno tong-term incentive awards vesting during the year,

Legacy scheme:MVP shares

The MVP shares structure was implemented at Admission in order to align
the interests of the MBI team and management with those of shareholders
in the period foliowing Admission.

The arrangement takes the form of A shares, B shares and C shares.
Each class represents one-third of the total number of shares under
the plan, The value of the A, Band C sharesis dependent onthe total
shareholder return{TSR) generated over the three-to five-year period
following Admission.

The total value of all the A, B and C shares will be calculated as follows:

Annuaiised TSR Value of MVP shares
Below 12% nil
Atorabove12% 5% of the TSR generated up to the 12% hurdle and 10% of the TSR

generated over and above the 12% hurdle

Priorto Admission, Bob Mackenzie, Martin Clarke and Nick Hewitt
subscribed for 40% of the MVP shares. The remaining 60% of MVP shares
were allocated in 2015, The table below provides details of the MVP share
subscriptions and allocations made on and following Admission.

Now that the MVP shares are fully allocated, other thanin exceptional
circumstances (eg major role change), the Committee does notintend
to allocate any further awards to Executive Directors.

Face vaiueof MVPshares
Typeof Percentage of MVP ansubscriphonfnominal - Performance
Name award shares held vatue) reviewdates
Beb MVP On Admission - On Admission - June2017
Mackenzie sghares 224% £13,440 (A shares)
(A,Band Subsequent Subsequent June 2018
Cshares) allocation—32.6% allocation - £19,560 (AandB
Total - 55% shares}
Martin Clarke OnAdmission - On Admission - June 2019
8.8% £5,280 (A.BandC
Subsequent Subsequent shares)
allocabion -13.2% allocation - £7.920
Total - 22%
Nick Hewitt On Admission - On Admission -
(former 8.8% £5,280
director) Subseguent
allocation ~ 0%
Total -8.8%

1 The MVP A, B and Cshares are not listed shares, and therefare the nominat value {£0.001)
has been used rather than the share price.

2 The subsequent allocations set outabove were made on 22 December 2015,

3 Theremaining 14.2% of MVP shares are heid by the Trustees of the Company's Employee
Benefit Trustfor the baneft of other senior managers below Board level.
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Singletotal figure of remuneration {(audited)

The table below sets out the Directors’ interests in MVP shares.

NON-EXECUTIVEDIRECTORS MVP shares
Valossublecttoaper —
Subseribad prior Subscribedin
Thetable below sets out the total remuneration for Non-Executive Name toAdmission December 2013 Total
Directors for the year ended 31 January 2017, Executive Directors
Bob Mackenzie 22.4% 32.6% 55.0%
2017 2016 Martin Clarke 8.8% 13.2% 22.0%
Fees Benefits  Totzl  Foes Bonefin | Toll  —or oo -
Name {role) £000 £000 E000 E0C00  £000 E£000  MNickHewitt{former director) 8.8% - B.8%
John Leach SID/INED 170 - 170 170 - 170 Total 40.0% 45.8% 85.8%
Andrew Blowers NED 15 - 15 103 ~ 103 i . . .
= 5 kwwell NED o5 - o5 e - Y The Non-Executive Directors do not have any interestsin MVP shares.
mon Srea The remaining 14.2% of MVP shares wasissued to the Company’s

Andrew Miller NED 95 - 95 94 - 24 Employee Benefit Trust for the benefit of senior management below
Suzi Williams NED 80 - 80 27 - 27 Boardlevel,

Andrew Blowers is Chairman of the Group’s new insurer and is paid an
addtional fee of £20,000 per annum {unchanged from last year) for that
role.

Statement of Directors’ shareholding and shareinterests (audited)

The Commitiee is supportive of Executive Directors building up and
maintaining a significant holding in the Cormpany. As at the year end, Bob
Mackenzie and Martin Clarke have built up shareholdings in excess of 2.8x
and 5x salary respectively (based on the closing share price on 31 January
2017, 243 .9p). The Committee views these holdings as a key means of
aligning their interests with those of shareholders.,

Onthe appointment of any new executive, the Committee would seek
toimplement a shareholding guideline which would need to be built up
during the course of their tenure. The exact terms would be determined
depending on the nature of any future appointment; however, itis currentty
expected that a requirement of at least 200% of salary would be
implemented.

For new appointments to comply we would implement an appropriate
time horizon for building the shareholding, including a requirement
that executives would retain a proportion of net vested shares until
this guideline has been met.

The table below sets out the Directors’ (and any relevant connected
persons) share interests in the ordinary shares ofthe Company as at
31January 2017

‘Shares held Heldin ESIP Deferred  Shareholdins
autright® trust® shares®  (%ofsalary!

Executive Directors

Bob Mackenzie 875,000 1,384 1,298 285
Martin Clarke 987,500 1,384 1,208 502
Non-Execytive Dlrectors

Andrew Blowers 9,160 - - n/a
Andrew Miller - - - n/a
Suzi Williams - - - n/a
John Leach 32,812 - - n/a
Simon Breakwell - - - nfa

(a) Ordinary dwvidends were received an the shares held outright dunng the year
{b) includes partnership and dividend shares under the all-employee ESIP.

€} Includes unvested matchingshares underthe ESIP:

{d) Basedon the closmg share price on 31 January 2017 of 243.8p.

Bob Mackenzie and Martin Clarke have each received an additionalinterest of 116 partnership
shares and 116 unvested matching shares under the 5!P scheme between 31 January 2017 and 27
March 2017, the latter bemng the latest practicable date prior te publication of this Annual Report.

Service contracts and letters of appointment

Each of the Board Members will be proposed for re-election at the 2017
Annual General Meeting, The Executive Directors are employed under
roliing service contracts that do not have fixed terms of appointment, but
are subject to a 12-month netice period. The Non-Executive Directors are
appointed under a letter of appointment for aninitial term of three years
{subject to annual re-election at the AGM) which may be terminated by
either party subject to a one-month notice period other than certain
conditions under which the Company can terminate with immediate
effect. The details of the Non-Executive Directors’ terms are set out below:

Datecof Intn Te

JohnLeach 26 June 2014 9 June 2018
Andrew Miller 26 June 2014 9 June 2018
Simon Breakwell 17 Septemnber 2014 9 June 2018
Andrew Blowers 25 Septernber 2014 9 June 2018
SuziWilliams 10ctober 2015 10ctober 2018
Performance graph andtable

The chart below illustrates AA Group’s TSR performance against the
FTSE 250 (excluding investment trusts) since Admission.

The table below shows the total remuneration paid to the Executive
Chairman each year since Admission,

3 tive Chal t i 2015 2016 2017

Executive Chairmansingle figure of remuneration €113k £1,557k  £1,368k

Annual bonus paycut (% of maximum) 100% 79% 57%

Long-termincentives vesting (% of maximum} nfa n/a nfa

ssauIsng o

F0UBULIBLIaS N

FOURLIBAOE)

SIUBLIBIR)S (efoURUIY



70 AA plc Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Directors’
Remuneration Report
continued

Percentage change lnremuneration of Director undertalingtherole
of Executive Chairman

The table below illustrates the percentage change in salary, benefits and
annual bonus for the 2017 financial year for the Executive Chairman as
against alt other employeeas.

% changein %changein %changeain
base salary benefits'  annuatbonus
Executive Chairman 0% 0% 27%
Allemployees’ 1.5% 0% 2.7%

1 Nochangesto benefits provided,

‘2 Change inbase salary for employees rep the geIncrease mpl tedas part
of the Company's annual pay review in April 2016, The change in annual bonus represents the
average bonus paid to employees.

Relativeimportance of spend anpay

The table below illustratesthe year-on-year change in the total
remuneration costs for all employees against the Company’s key
performance metric of Trading EBITDA.

2017 2016 %
£m £m change
Totalemployee remuneration 305 328 0%
Trading EBITDA" 403 402 0.2%
Distributions relating to the year? 57 55 3.3%
1 Excludes results of discontinued operations.
2 Thetotal costof ordinary dividends d dto shareh latingtothe y

Role of the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Remuneration Policy of
the Group and for reviewing cormpliance with the policy. The Executive
Chairrman and the Human Resources Director attended parts of
Committee meetings by invitation in order to provide the Committee with
additional context. The Company Secretary acts as the Committee’s
secretary, No individual was present when their own remuneration was
being determined.

Delortte LLPis engaged by the Committee as their advisers, Deloitte LLP
received fees of £36,750 for advice to the Commitiee onatme and
materials basis. During the year, Deloitte LLP also provided the Company
with HR consulting servicés and taxation advice. Deloitte LLP is one of
the founding members of the Remuneration Consultants’ Group and
adheres to the Remuneration Consultants’ Group's Code of Conduct.
The Committeeis satisfied that the advice it has received has been
objective andindependent.

Remuneration inthe wider Group

The wider employee Group participates in performance-based incentives.
Throughout the Group, base salary and benefit levels are set taking into
account prevailing market conditions. Differences between Executive
Oirector pay policy and other employee pay reflect the seniority of the
individuals, and the nature of responsibilities. The key difference in policy
is that for Executive Directors a greater proportion of total remuneration

is based on incentives. The Committee has oversight of incentive plans
operated throughout the Group. Below Board level long-termincentives
align with the long-term interests of the business and where appropriate
objectives may be tailored to individual business areas.

When setting the policy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors,
the Committee has regard to the pay and employment conditions of
employees within the Group. However, the Committee does notuse
comparison metrics or consu t directly with employees when formulating
the Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors. The Committee reviews
salary increases and pay conditions within the business, to provide
context for decisions in respect of Executive Directors.

Conskieration of shareholderviews

We engage with shareholders on afrequent basis as detailed onpage 74.
Further consultation with major shareholdersis undertaken prior

to each AGM. As noted in the Remuneration Committee Chairmans
statement, the Committee is currently inthe process of consulting with
major shareholders regarding the future incentive strategy.

The Committee recognises that aspects of the Company’s Remuneration
Policy which were putin place priort PO, while aligned to shareholder
value creation, are unusualinthe context of the UK listed environment.
The Committee considers the views of its shareholders and is mindful of
evolving best practice in devetoping policies in the future and will continue
toengage with major shareholders and investor bodies regarding the
approachto pay.

The table below sets out the votes on the Annual Report on Remuneration
atthe 2016 AGM and the Remuneration Policy at the 2015 AGM.

Votes Votes Votes
for against atystamed

Remuneration Report {2016 AGM) 96.4% 3.6%
(467.9m) (17.7m0) 25.8m

Remuneration Pelicy (2015 AGM) 294.8% 5.2%
{474.7m) {26.3m) 42.3m
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2015 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY (EXTRACT) - PROVIDED FOR REFERENCE ONLY

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy (the Policy) was last approved by shareholders at the 2015 Annual General Meeting, and took effect upon approval.

The policy table has been provided below for ease of reference, Where appropriate, references to implementation have been updated. The fullPolicy
can be foundin the 2015 Annual Report on our website,

POLICYTABLE
Base salary
Purpose andlinkto strategy Toattractand retain executives of the calibre required to deliver the Group’s strategy.
Operation When reviewing salary levels the Committee takes into account a range of factors including:
» The individual’s skils, experience and performance
>The size and scope of the individual’s responsibilities
>Market rate forthe role
»Pay and conditions elsewhere in the Group
Salary levels are typically reviewed annually by the Committee.
Maximum cpportunity There s no overallmaximum for safary opportunity orincreases. Individual salaries are set based on the factors set out above.
The Executive Director salaries as at 31 January 2017 are:
»Bob Mackenzie: £750,000
>Martin Clarke: £480,000
Performance metrics None.
Benefits
Purpose and link to strategy To provide competitive benefit arrangements appropriate for the role.
Operation Arange of benefits may be provided to Executive Directors including, but notlimited to, car related benefits, ife cover and private
medicalinsurance.
From time to time the Committee may review the benefits previded for individual roles. Additional benefits may be provided where
the Committee considers this appropriate {e.g. onrelocation).
Directors may also participate in any all-employee share plans {including the Company's Share Incentive Plan) operated by the
Company fromtime to time on the same terms as other employees.
Maximum ocpportunity Thereis no overall maximum for benefits,
Participation in any HMRC-approved all-employee share plan s limited to the maximurm award levels permitted by the
relevant legislation.
Performance metrics MNone.
Retirement benefits
Purpose andlink to strategy To provide a competitive level of retirement benefits appropnate for the role,
Operation Executive Directors are eligibie to participate in the AA UK pensionscheme (or any other similar pension plan operated by the Group
fromtime to time) or receive a cash allowance in tieu of participation.
For new hires the nature and value of any retirement benefit provided will be, in the Committee’s opinion, reasonable in the context
of market practice for comparable roles and take account of both the individual’s circumstances and the cost to the Company.
Maximum opportunity The maximum benefit1s 25% of salary.

For the financial year commencing 1February 2017 the perscnal pension or cash allowances for current Directors willbe 13.7%
of annual basic salary.

Performance metrics

None,
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Annualbonus

Purpose and linkto strategy To Incentivise the delivery of annual financial, strategic and operational objectives, which are selected to support our
business strategy.

Operation Performance metrics and targets are set annually to ensure they remain aligned with financial and strategic goals. Bonus levels
are deterrmined by the Gommittee after the year-end, based on an assessment of performance.

Maxiinum opportunity The maximum annual opportunity is 120% of salary.

Performance metrics Performance targets will be deterrined by the Commitiee at the beginning of each performance period, and may compyise of
acombination of financial, strategic, operational and individual targets appropriate for therole.
At least 50% of the award will be subject to financial measures.
Thethreshold pay-out for the mirimum level of performance will be determined by the Committee taking into account the nature
ofthetarget, There will normally be scaied pay-outs for performance between the minimum and maximum threshelds,

Recovery provislons Malus and clawback provisions have been introduced for the 2016 bonus. Both malus and clawback will apply o future awards.

2015 Performance Share Plan

Purpose and link to strategy Toreward for delivery of performance targets linked tolong-term strategic objectivesand to provide alignment with theinterests
of shareholders.
Over time, the Committee intends to transition to this incentive structure which is more conventional for the UK listed environment.
The Performance Share Plan (“PSP"}isintended to provide the Committee with the facility to make annual long-term share awards
subject to performance measures aligned to the success of the Company.
Itis anticipated the PSP will be used for new Executive Directors.

Operation The PSP was approved by shareholders at the 2015 AGM, The Committee has not yet granted any awards under this plan,
Awards of conditional shares (or equivalent) will vest dependent on performance measured over a peried of at least three years.
The Committee will review the metrics, targets and weightings prior fo future grants to ensure they are aligned with the long-term
strategic goals.
Dividends (or equivalents, including re-investment} may accrue in respect of any shares that vest.

Maximum opportunity The maximum face value of award in respect of any financial yearis 200% of salary.
The level of pay-out for the threshold performance hurdie set would normally not exceed 25% of the maxamurn opportunity.
Full vesting wilt require achievement of the stretch objectives set. There will normally be scaled vesting for performance
between the threshold and maximum performance levels.

Performance condition Asthe PSP 1snot forimmediate use, the performance conditions hava not yet baen determined.
Priorto granting awards, the Committee will determine the performance metrics, weightings and targets to ensure they arealigned
withthe corporate strateqy.
The Committes would seek to engage appropriately with ts major shareholders when making the first awards to Executive
Directors under this plan.

Recovery provisions Bothmalus and clawback provisions will apply o any awards granted te Executive Directors under this plan.
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LEGACY ARRANGEMENT - MVP SHARES ON ADMISSION

The Management Value Participation Shares ("MVP shares”) were implemented at Admission. Once the MVP shares are fully allocated (and subject to
reallocation in exceptional circumstances) the Committee does notintend to allocate any further MVE shares.

MVPshares
Purposeandlink to strategy

Tolink reward with Company performance and long-term shareholder value creation following Admission. Awards are
share-based {o facilitate share ownership and further align the interests of participants and shareholders.

Operation

The MVP shares are a one-off structure implemented prior to Admission.

The MVP shares provide participation in the total shareholder return created over the first five years following Admission,
provided a minimum hurdle rateis achieved.

Thearrangement takes the form of A shares, B shares and C shares in the Company with each class representing a third of
the total number of MVP shares. Unless the Committee determines otherwise, each participant witl hold an equal number of
A,BandCshares.

The A, Band C shares are convertible into ordinary shares in the Company or are redeemable following satisfaction of the relevant
Perfcrmance Condition tested on the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of Adrssion respectively, if the Performance Condition
is not metanthe third or fourthanniversary (asrelevant), but s satisfied on a subsequent measurement date {including the
requirement for further growth in TSR for that additional period), the A and B shares will be convertible or redeemable as described
above. Value per share is based on the aggregate value calculated by reference to the performance conditions divided by the
aggregate numberof shares allocated.

Inthe event that the Performance Condition of any of the MVP shares has not been satisfied by the fifth anniversary of Admission,

the Company willbe able to acquire all of the MVP shares for £0.0tin aggregate. The same applies in the event that any hotder has
not required the Company to convert their MVP shares within the applicable timeframes,

Maximum opportunity

Tihemaximum number of ordinary shares resulting from conversion of MVP shares witl not in any 10 year period exceed 5% of
the issued share capital {as calculated from time to time). Up to 60 million MVP shares may be allocated under this structure.

Theallocations of MVP shares to current Executive Directors 15 as follows:

Y Bob Mackenzie: 55%

>Martin Clarke: 22%

Itis anticipated that no further grants of MVP shares will be made to Executive Directors,

Performance Condition

For all MVP shares, the Performance Condition is that the total shareholder return (TSR) per annum from Admissiontothe
relevant measurement pointis equal to or more than 12% (the Performance Condibion).

Ifthe Performance Conditicn is met, the value of the MVP shares shall be:

}5%of the TSRup to the Performance Condition; plus

310% of the amount by which TSR exceeds the Performance Cendition.

Ifthe Performance Condition has been satisfied, the MVP shares may be converted into such number of ordinary shares atthe
average closing price of the share over the ten business days prior to the relevant anniversary.
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Relations with shareholders

Approach to Investor Relations

Meetings withInvestors enabled throughthe IR programme

The Board acknowledges that it is managing the AA on the behalf of
sharehelders and, in undertaking this responsibility, seeks to increase
long-term shareholder value and to advance the interests of all the AA's
stakeholders. It recaognises the importance of its relationships with
sharehelders and is committed to maintaining an open dialogue with
them and the financial community,

We engage with analysts, shareholders and potential investors to ensure
we have a strong relationship which allows us to understand therr views
on materialissues relating to the business. Anintegral part of this apen
dialogue is communication about our strategy and its delivery.

The AA has a comprehensive Investor Relations (IR} programme which
aims to help existing and petential institutional, private and debt investors
understand what we do, aur strategy and our achievements.

The Board receives independent feedback on our retationships with
investors from our brokers. These are included in regular Board reports
onIR. Allanalysts’ notes are circulated to the Board to help it maintain
an understanding of markets’ perceptions of the Company and
financial forecasts.

Relevantinformation made available toinvestors

Financialreporting

The AA reports financial results twice a year at the half year and year-end.
Following the announcernent on the London Stock Exchange viathe
Regulatory News Service (RNS), presentations are held to explainthe
results, These were simultaneously webcast and posted on the IR website
to enable viewing by those unable to attend in person.

Ad hocannouncements

Ad hoc announcements of material information are made via the RNS
and are also available on curiR website to ensure all investors are able
toaccessit.

Annuat Report

The Annual Reportis published in line with requirements, to provide
sufficient time in advance of the AGM for feedback to be shared with
the relevant directors.

Website

An IR website is maintained to facilitate communications withinvestors
and we post material given to fund managers and analysts at IR
presentations. In September 2016, the website was redesigned

to improve the experience of its users.

Institutionalshareholders

Meetings with principal shareholders
Meetings with the Executive Chairman and Chief Financial Officer are built
around the financial results.

Additional meetings are held on an ad hoc basis throughout the year with
the Executive Directors and the IR team. Feedback 1s given to the Board.
QOurinvestor relations programme ¢overs the UK, Continental Europe,
Narth America and Asia.

Investor site visits
We hold investor trips to Oldbury, the site of our roadside assistance
dispatch centre, for major shareholders.

industry conferences

Industry conferences give senior management a chance to meet a large
number of investors in an efficient way. Conferences attended this year
included JP Morgan Business Services Conference and Geldran Sachs
Business Services Conference,

Private shareholders

During the year, the investor relations department held four private
shareholder roadshows focusing on Private Client Brokers. Feedback
was given tothe Board.

individual shareholders are encouraged to communicate with the
Directors through the Group Company Secretary,

Debtinvestors

Meetings with credit institutionalinvestors and analysts were held with
senior managernent and our investor relations departrent throughout the
year. In addition, regular dialogue was maintained with our key relationship
Banks and Trustee.

During the year, updates and meetings were held inrespect of our
bonds by our senior management team with credit rating agency
Standard & Poor’s.

Annual General Meeting {AGM)

Investors® views in relation to governance and remuneration are sought
ahead ofthe AGM and summarised tc the Board.

The 2016 AGM provided sharehotders with an opportunity to question
the Board and the Chalrs of the Board Caommittees on matters putto the
meeting, including the Annual Report, Proxy votes of shareholders forthe
AGM are counted independently by the Company’s registrar, announced
at the meeting and published on the Group’s website shortly after the
conclusion of the AGM.

Meetings with the Senlor Independent Director (SID}

The SI0 is available to meet shareholders and contact should be sought
through the Company Secretary.

We have invited the gavernance officers of our top shareholders to discuss
governanceinmore depth and Andrew Miller {Chairman of Audit
Commtte€e} and Mark Millar (Company Secretary) will also attend this
meetingin the coming months,
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Accountability

Directors’ Report

“In line with our ethos of
continuous improvement,
we have advanced our internal
governance, controls and
conduct during the year.”

L
Mark Millar
Comparny Secretary

The Directors present their report together with the audited accounts for
the year ended 31January 2017.

This Directors’ Report contains certain statutory, regulatory and other
information. As permitted by the Companies Act 2006 (the Act), the
following information which is required by law to be includedinthe
Directors’ report is incorporated by reference:

> Strategic report (pages 2-42)

»Corporate governance report {pages 43-78)

»Employee involvement and engagement (page 41)

>Information about our people (pages 40-41)

>Training and career develepment of disabled employees {pages 40-41)

»Carbon emissions {pages 38-39)

»Financialinstruments (note 27)

>Likely future developments (page 13)

»Related party transactions (note 32)

> Events after the balance sheet date (note 36)

Company status

AA plec (the Company) is a public limited Lability company with company
number 5149111 and the holding company of the AA Group of companies
(the AA). It holds a premium Listing on the London Stock Exchange

main market for listed securities and is a constituent Member of the
FTSE 250 Index.

Results and dividends

The results for the year ended 31 January 2017 are set out on pages 79-127,
The Company paid aninterim dividend of 3.6p per ordinary share on

25 Qctober 2016, The Board has proposed a final dividend of 5,7p per
ordinary share inrespect of the year (2016: 5.5p) which, subject to
approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) to be held
on 8 June 2017, wilt be payable on 13 June 2017 to shareholders on the
register atthe close of business on 12 May 2017, giving a total dividend in
respect of the year of 9.3 p perordinary share (2016: 9p). The ex-dividend
date willbe 11 May 2017,

Sharecapital

The Company’s issued share capital, as at 31January 2017, comprised a
single share class of ordinary shares which are listed on the London Stock
Exchange and six classes of Management Value Participation Shares
(MVP Shares). Details of the movements in the Issued share capital can be
foundin notes 23 and 34 of the financial statements, Each ordinary share
carries the right to one vote at general meetings of the Company.
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Directors’ Report
continued

The issued and fully paid share capital of the Company as at 31 January
2017is as follows:

Class Nominal value Number Amount (€)
Ordinary £0.001 609,461,827 600,462
MVP Shares (Al shares) £0.001 8,000,000 8,000
MVP Shares (B1shares) £0.001 8,000,000 8.000
MVP Shares (C1shares) £0.001 8,000,000 8,000
MVP Shares (A2 shares) £0.001 12,000,000 12,000
MVP Shares (B2 shares) £0.001 12,000,000 12,000
MVP Shares(C2 shares) £0.001 12,000,000 12,000

The ordinary shares can be held in certificated or uncertificated form,
Holders are entitied to attend and speak at general meetings of the
Company, to appeint one or more proxies and, if they are corparations,
corporate-representatives are entitied to attend general meetings and
to exercise voting rights. Allissued ordinary shares are fully paid up.

The MVP shares are not listed on any public market and have no voting
rights but entitle the holders to receive ordinary shares or cash inthe
future, subject to satisfaction of performance conditions which requirea
minimum 12% compound total shareholder return performance condition
overathree-to five-year period from Admission of the shares in June 2014,
Further details of the MVP shares are set out on pages 69 and 73,

Purchase af own shares

Noordinary shares were purchased by the Company during the 2017
financial year (2016: nit) nor to the date of this Annual Report and
Accounts. The existing authority granted to the Directorsto make on
market purchases of its ordinary shares expires at the end of the AGM to
be held in June 2017, Therefore, the Company will re-seek authority by
shareholders fo purchase up to 10% of the Company’s ordinary share
capital as at 27 March 2017 at the AGM.

Sharesheld by employee benefittrusts

Data onthe Group’s share plans can be found at note 34.

Employee Share Incentive Plan({ESIP)

In Septernber 2016, the Board approved the contiriuation of the tax-
approved ESIPintoits third vear and agreed that the grant be made on

an evergreen basis, rather than annual, to facilitate administration and
encourage take-up and increased employee interestin the success of the
Company. The ESIP allows qualifying employees to acquire shares on
beneficial termsin accordance with Schedule 2 and/or Schedule 3tothe
Income Tax (Earnings and Pensions) Act 2003, Awards under the ESIP
are satisfied by the issue of new ordinary shares by the Company.

Scheme participants make regular contributions to the ESIP directly from
their salary up toa maximum of £150 per month (Centributary Shares)
and under the rules of the scheme, the Company issues a matching share
element on a 11 basis (Matching Shares).

Aninvitationto participate inthe 2017 evergreen scheme was sent to all
eligible UK employeesin December 2016 and the take-upto 31 January
2017 was 37% of eligible employees,

The second year’s ESIP invitation matured in December 2016 and
matching shares were issued during the year, inaceordance with the
rules of the ESIP.

Approved Profit Share Scheme (APSS)

During the 2016 financial year, the Group implemented an APSS

for employees of the Irish subsidiaries. This was approved by our
shareholders atthe 2016 AGM. The APSS scheme is governed by Irish
law and has begnapproved by the Irish Tax and Customs Revenue and
includes features consistent with prevailing market practices,

The scheme is comparable to the ESIP with a matching share awarded on
a1:1basis. The rules of the scherne permitted the matching element to be
satisfied withthemarket purchase of Ordinary Shares only. Atthe AGMon
9 June 2016, an ordinary resolution was passed permitting the Company
to satisfy matching shares under the APSS with newly issued shares or
the transfer of treasury shares.

Under the rules of the scheme, employee contributions ceased at the end
of July 2016 due to the sale of A4 Ireland on 11 August 2016. The Trustee
of the Scheme (Capita) will hold the shares until the end of the two-year
retention periodthat applies to the appropriate APSS shares. The scheme
willbe wound up in 2018 when all of the scheme shares will have been
released by the Trustee.

Long Term Business Plan (LTBP)

During the 2016 financial year the Company’s employee benefit trust
(EBT} purchased ordinary shares in the market at a cost of E15mwhich
have been used in along-term bonus plan (LTBP) to incentivise senior
managernent below Board leveland to align their interests with
shareholders. Awards were made during the 2016 financial year.

Further details of the Company’s share schemes and share-based
payments are set outin note 34. Each ordinary share purchased and/or
awarded under each plan carries the right to one vote at general meetings
of the Cormpany.

Senlor Management Plan (SMP)

Certain of the Class A2, B2 and C2 MVP shares representing 14.2% of all
MVP shares were issued to the Company’s EBT and any ordinary shares
resuiting from the conversion of such MVP shares would be used for the
benefit of the senior management team below Board, subject to
satisfaction of specified performance criteria at the absolute discretion
ofthe Remuneration Commiitiee.

SUBSTANTIALSHAREHOLDINGS

As at 31 January 2017, the Company has been notified in accordance with
the Disclosure and Transparency Rules (DTR 5) of the followinginterests
in 3% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:

Name of sharehalder Numbercfshares  %shareholding
Parvus Asset Management Europe Limited 109,855,253 18.02%
The Capital Group Companies, Inc. 97,957,072 16.07%
Woodfood investment Management 60,910,713 9.99%
Citigreup Global Markets Limited 54,969,903 9.02%
Standard Life Investment {(Holdings) Limited 30,594,272 5.02%
Goldman Sachs 26,547,384 4.36%
Avivaple 21,202,919 3.48%

Since 31January 2017, the Company has been notified in accordance with
DTRS of changes in the following interests:

Citigroup Global Markets Limited 54,181,668 8.89%

Parvus Asset Management Europe Limited 17,908,449 19.34%
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Except for those listed above, we are not aware of any ordinary
shareholders with interests of 3% or more in the issued share capital of the
Company. We have not been notified of any other changes to the notfiable
vating rights ir its shares up to 27 March 2017,

Interestinvotingrights

All of the issued {and outstanding) ordinary shares of the Company have
equal voting rights, with one vote per share. None of the ordinary shares
carry any special voting rights with regard to control of the Company.
Other than holding periods that may be imposed on ordinary shares from
awards under share schemes, the Group is not aware of any agreements
between holders of securities that may result in restrictions on the transfer
of ordinary shares.

The Notice of Annual General Meeting {AGM) specifies deadlines for
exercising voting rights and appointing a proxy or proxies to vote in relation
to resolutions to be passed at the AGM. The relevant proxy votes are
counted and the numbers for, against or withheld in relation to each
resolution are announced at the AGM and published on the Company’s
website after the meeting,

Fullvoting rights are set outin the Company's Articles of Association
{the Articles) and in the explanatory notes that accompany the Notice
ofthe 2017 AGM, Thege documents are available on the Company’s
website www.theaaplc,com.

The total voting rights figure applicable at 27 March 201715 602,575,236
ordinary shares.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRIP)

The Company offers a dividend reinvestment plan to shareholders as
acost-efficient way of increasing their shareholding inthe Company.

Directors

The membership of the current Board and biographical details are given
onpages46-47.

Appointment and replacement of Directors This is governed by the
Articles, the Act, the UK Corporate Governance Code {the Code)and
related legislation.

Directors’ powers The business of the Company is managed by the Board
who may exercise all bowers of the Company, subject to the Articles, the
Actand any directions given by special resolution of shareholders,

Directors’interests The interests of Directors and theirimmediate
families in the shares of the Company, along with details of the long-term
incentives awarded to Executive Directors are contained inthe
Remuneration report set cut on pages 65-73.

No Directors have beneficialinterestsin the shares of any subsidiary
company. Further details relating tothe MVP shares can be found on
pages 69-71.

Directors’ indemnities The Company maintains Directors” and officers’
liability insurance, which gives appropriate cover for any legal action
brought against its Directors and officers. The Company has also granted
indemruties to each of its Directors and the Company Secretary to the
extent permitted by law. Qualifying third-party indemnity provisions

(as defined by section 234 of the Act) were in force during the year ended
31 January 2017 and remainiin force, inrelation to certain losses and
Liahitities which the Directors or Company Secretary may incur to third
parties in the course of acting as Directors or Company Secretary or
employees of the Company or any associated company.

Directors’ conflicts of interest The Group has proceduresin place for
managing conflicts of interest. Should a Director become aware that they,
or their connected parties, have aninterestin an existing or proposed
transaction with the AA, they must natify the Board in writing or at the next
Board meeting. Internal controls are in place to ensure that any related
party transactions involving Directors, or their connected parties, are
conducted on an arm’s length basis. Directors have a continuing duty

to update any changes to these conflicts. The Directors consider the
conflicts of interest procedures to have operated effectively during
theyear.

Independence of Directors The Board has reviewed the independence
of each Non-Executive Director and considersthem to be independent
of management and free from business relationships that could interfere
with the exercise of independentjudgement.

Significant agreementschange of control

The Company is not party to any significant agreements that would take
effect, alter or terminate following a change of controlof the Company.
The Company does not have agreements with any Director or officer that
would provide compensation for loss of office or employment resulting
fromatakeover except that provisions of the Company’s share plans and
the MVP shares may cause awards and options granted under such
arrangements to vest ona takeover.

Going concernand viabiiity statement

Having carried outa comprehensive review of the business, regardingits
financial position, future forecasts and the borrowing facilities available,
the Directors confirm that they have a reasonable expectation that the
AAhas adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future, Therefore, the Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basisin preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31January 2017

Our viability statement is set out on page 29,

Cautionary statement

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements. These forward-
locking staternents are not guarantees of future performance, rather

they are based on current views and assumptions as at the date of this
Annual Report. We made these assumptions in good faith based on the
information available to us at the time of the approval of this report. These
statements should be treated with caution due to the inherent risks and
uncertainties underlying any such forward-looking information. We have
no obligation to update these forward iooking statements.

Employment

The AAis anequal opportunities employer and has established best
practice procedure, from recruitment and selection, through training
and development, performance reviews and promotion to retirement.
We promote an enviranment free from discrimination, harassment and
victimisation, where everyone will receive equal treatment regardless
of gender, colour, ethnic or national origin, disability, age, maritat status,
sexual orientation or religion.

Political donations

No political donations were made during the year ended 31 January
2017 (2016 : Enil). The AA has a policy of not making donations to political
organisations orindependent election candidates or incurring political
expenditure anywhere in the world as defined in the Act.
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Directors’ Report
continued

Disclosures required under ListingRule 9.8.4

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors arerequired to:

In accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.4{12) and Listing Rule 9.8.4(13), we
note that the Trustees of the AA plc 2015 Employee Benefit Trust have
walved their right to receive dividends on the ordinary shares comprised
in the Trust Fund, being 4,111,423 ordinary shares as at 31January 2017,
under the terms of the Trust Deed.

There are no further disclosures required to be made under Listing Rule
284,

Auditars

Ernst & Young LLP has been the Group’s auditor since the audit for the year
ended 31 January 2008. In recognition of the FRC Ethical Standard 2018,
in March 2017 the Auchit Committee and Board approved the decision

to commence a tender process for external audit services so thata new
auditor coutd be approved at the June 2018 AGM and take up the role of
external auditor with effect from the 2019 financial year with the first
reporting for the six months to 31 July 2018.

Ernst & Young LLP has signifiedits willingness to continue in office as
statutory auditor of the AA for the 2018 financial year and we (the Board
and Audit Committee) are satisfied that Ernst & Young LLP 1sindependent
and there are adequate safeguards in place to safeguard its objectivity.
Aresolution to reappoint Ernst & Young LLP wilt be proposed at the

2017 AGM,

Disclosure of information to the auditor

So far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information
that has not been brought to the attention of the Company’s auditor during
the audit process. Each Director has taken all reasonable steps to make
himself or herseif aware of any relevant audit information and to estabtish
that such information was provided to the auditor.

2017 Annual General Meeting

The Company's AGM will be held at Freshfields Bruckhaus Dennger LLP,
65 Fleet Street, London EC4Y 1HS on 8 lune 2017 at 12 noon.

The Notice convening the 2017 AGM 1s contained ina circular sent to
shareholders. Full details of ali resolistions to be proposed are provided
in this circular and the Directors consider that all of the resolutions set out
are inthe best interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
The Directors willoe veting in favour of them and unanimously
recommend that shareholders vote in favour of each of them.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the
financial staternents inaccordance with applicable law and regulations.
Caompany law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for
each financial year. Under that law the Directors have prepared the Group
financial statements in accordance with International Financiat Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU and the Company financial
statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 10t
Under company law, the Directors must naot approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and the Caempany and of the profit or loss
ofthe Group for that period.

) select suitable accounting policies and then apply thern consistently:

> make judgements and accounting estimates that are reascnable
and prudent;

> state whether applicable IFRS as adopted by the EU have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explainedin the
financial statements; and

> prepare the Group’s and Company's financial statements onagoing
conhcern basis, unless tis inappropnate to do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s and Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ime the
financial position of the AA and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. The Directors
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the AA and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
cther irregularities.

Responsibility statement of the Directorsinrespect of the
Annual Report and financial statements

Each of the Directors as at the date of the Annual Report (as noted on
pages 46~ 47 confirm that to the best of their knowledge:

»the Group and Company financial statements, which have been
preparedin accordance with IFRS and FRS101 respectively, give atrue
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial pesition and profit or loss
of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken
as awhole;

>the Strategic Reportand Directors’ Report on pages 2to 42and 75t0 78
include a fair review of the development and performance of the business
and the position of the Group, together with a description of the principal
nisks and uncertainties that it faces; and

»the Annual Report, taken as a whole, 1s fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the necessary information for shareholders to assess the
Group's performance, business modeland strategy.

A copy of the financial statements of the Group 1s ptaced on the
Company’s website at www.theaaplc.com. The Directors are responsible
for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the Company's website. Information published
on the internet is accessible in many countnes with different legal
requirements. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissermination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
Jurisdictions.

The Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities was approved by the Board
of Directors on 27 March 2017 and signed on its behalf by the Campany
Secretary:

Mark Millar
Company Secretary

27 March 2017
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statements
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Independent Auditor’s Report

tothe members of AAplc

1. Quropinion on the financlal statements isunmodified:

2. Overview

In our opinion:

Materfality

>the financial statements qive a true and fair view of the state of the
Group's and of the parent Company’s affairs as at 31 January 2017 and
of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

(EBITDA) adjusted for exceptional items.

}the Group financial staterents have been properly preparedin
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)

as adopted by the European Union;

Audit scope

>the parent Company financiat statements have been properly prepared
inaccordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure

Framework’; and

items and 97% of the Group’s total assets.

>the financial statements have been prepared inaccordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regutation.

Risk of materialmisstatement

Overall Group materiality of £7.6m which represents approximatety
2% of earnings befare interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation

We performed an audit of the complete financial information of the
Roadside Assistance and Insurance Services divisions and audit
procedures on specific balances for the remaining divisions.

The divisions and entities where we performed fulland specific
scope audit procedures accounted for 97% of the Group’s revenue,
99% of the Group's Trading EBITDA adjusted for exceptional

)Revenue recognition

>Valuation of the net pension scheme liability

»Goodwill impairment

¥ Recognition and valuation of provisiens: Duplicate breakdown cover

3. Ourassessmentoftherisk of materlalmisstatement

The table below shows the risks of material rrisstatement we identified that had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of
resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the audit tearn. In addressing these risks, we have performed the procedures below which were
designed inthe context of the financial statements as a whole and, consequently, we do not express any opinion on these individual areas.

Key observations

communicatedto the
Risk QOur response to these risks Audit Committee
Revenue recognition (E940m, PY comparative E925m)
Refer to page 62 (Audit Committee Report}and note 1.3 (m}) (accounting policy)
The basis of recognising revenue »We considered the Group's accounting policies inrespect of revenue recognition We are satisfied that
differs between the various to determine whether they appropriately reflected the requirements of IAS 18 and appropriate revenue
products and services provided IFRS 4, recognition policies
gz ggﬁriirr? ; g,oel\;s?t; E:_:)n »We assessed the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of key controls ::;igfnepnuz‘ziov?/itte:

A ' over revenue recognition and tested controls over revenue processing for the principal )

Managerment has previously roadside assistance, insurance services and driving services income streams. Based on additional
:gs&mﬁﬁgﬁﬁgﬂmﬂ;ﬁmﬁn >We tested IT general contrels that support the systems that process and record gﬂ?iidr:;iigngt
generates accounting entries for ;‘:\clgpn\;e ft(:; :\;‘ Sroacisnde assistance, insurance services and driving services and the results of our
processing and deferring revenue s . own controlsand
from the personatroadside »Specifically, for the system issues where management has implemented additional substantive testing,
business, and has implemented pracedures, we tested controls over those procedures. We checked the completeness  weare satisfied
additional procetdurestoensurethe  of data usedin the calculation of revenue, tested the methodology used to generate that revenue
accurate recording of suchrevenue.  accounting entries by re-performing a sample of caicutations and verified that the transactions have
Assuch we consider that the resulting accounting entries had been accurately processed. ::::eol} gggropn ately

deferraland subsequent recognition
of revenue generated from the
persohal roadside business
presents an increased risk of error
or potentialmanagerment override.

>We performed tests of detail to assess whether the revenue recognition practices
adopted complied with the stated accounting policies. We tested a sample of personal
Roadside Assistance revenue transactions to confirm that revenue had beendeferred
ina manner consistent with the relevant contract and a sample of insurance broking
transactions to confirm thatall services under the contract had been performed at
the point at which revenue was recognised.

YWe inspected asample of journal entries for any evidence of management override
and obtained support for individually unusual and/or material revenue journals.

»We performed analytical procedures to compare revenue recognised with our
expectations from past experience, rmanagement's forecasts and our understanding
of product features and terms. In doing so, we assessed whether deferred revenue from
the personal roadside business as at 1 February 2016 had been appropriately released
to revenue during the year.

»We performed cut-off testing to confirm that revenue has been recorded inthe
correct period.
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Key chservations
communicated to the
Risk QOurresponse to these nisks Audit Cormnmittee
Valuation of the netpension scheme Lability under IAS 19 (R){£395m, PY comparative £296m)
Refer to page 62 (Audit Committee Report), note 1.3 (1) {(accounting policy) and note 25 (disclosures)
The Group operatesthreedefined > We understood and walked through management’s controls inrespect of the Basedonour
benefit pension schemes, themost  selection of key assumptions related to the valuation of actuarial iabilities and the procedures weare
significant of whichis the AAUK valuation of scheme assets. satisfied that the
defined benefit pension schemg > Using external data we verified the appropriateness of the key actuariat assumptions Va.l“‘.as of assets held
{AAUK). We consider the valuation - L ; L ’ withinthe scheme
A used by management in determining the pension obligation under IAS 19(R), as detaited N
ofthe AAUK n et pension liability in note 25 of the consolidated financial statements are appropriately
to be a significant nsk as: - supported.
N . YWe determined whether the assumptions used met the requirements of IFRS and

)Igg;g%aaiﬁéﬁ?;;g;gzs were in line with market practice, as well as the specific circumstances of the schemes ;ng;"i::g:g ;zgt

seheme liabilities are and their participants. This included a comparison of life expectancy with relevant to dete’r)mine the

iudgemental and sensitive. mortality tables, benchmarking inflation and discount rates against external market defined benefit

lucg . data, considering changes in historical assumptions and evaluating the independence, oblication fall within
»Theschemes hold somecomplex  qualifications and results of work performed by management’s experts involved an a% ceotable range

andilliquid assets for which there inthe valuation process. We used our pension valuation experts to assist us with P ge.

are no quoted prices. Prices are these procedures.

pbtamed directty from the retevant >We obtained net asset value (NAV) statements in respect of the schemes’ investments

investrent managers whoapply o iy from the fund administrator and iled thern to both the scheme’s custod

judgement invaluing those assets. frectly und administrator and reconciled themn to both the scheme’s custody

) records and the Group financial statermnents.
Efﬁgggﬁlf(l?:r::;ao?nc:b?g:t?o\:me >Where applicable we reviewed administrator controls reports for controls over
asmallchange inactuarial valuation of complex assets,
assumptions may resultin >We cbtained and reviewed a sample of audited fund financial statements to assess
amaterial difference tothe whetherthe NAV was appropriate,
amounts reported. ) Wetested the assets heldin equity markets and confirmed the valuation of

those equities.
»Woe tested the data used to perform scheme valuations to gain comfort that the data
15 complete and accurate and agrees to underlying payroll records.
¥ We reviewed the disclosures relating to the defined benefit schemes.

Goodwillimpairment {carrying value £1,173m, PY comparative £1,199m)
Refer to page 62 {(Audit Committee Report), note 1.3 (i) (accounting policy) and notes T and 26 (disclosures)
The goodwill balance as at ) We examined management’s impairment model, which included anassessment of Based onour
31January 2017 is significant discounted cash flows, to understand the significant assumptions usedinthe procedures, which
based onits size relative tothe impairment test for each CGU. included additional
totalassets of the Group. »We engaged our valuation experts to assess the reasonableness of the discount rate ?:: :Irt;‘ggi:?i:g’?ﬁa{t
The AA ple goodwill arising on by considering the Group specific circumnstances as well as comparable companies no impairment of the
consolidation represents the from similar sectors. recorge d 0ootwill

excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group's interestin the fair

value of the identified assets and of headroom, including discount rate and Trading EBITDA growth assumptions.

liabilities at the date of acquisition
in2004. tothe disposed of the AAireland business.

>We confirmed the appropriate accounting treatment in respect of the goodwill relating

Management analyses discounted  »We confirmed compliance with the Group’s accounting policy.

cash flows at the cash generating
unit (CGU) level to calculate

the value in use foreach CGU as
required by IAS 36, This calculation
represents a significant estimate
including judgements related to
future Trading EBITDA growth

and discountrate assumptions.

Inthe current financial year, the
Group completed the sale of
AAIreland. This resultedin

£26m of goodwill being disposed
of inthe year.

>We performed sensitivity analysis to assess the impact of certain key variables onlevels  hasbeenidentified.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

continued

Risk

Recognition and valuation of provisions: Duplicate breakdown cover (£10m, PY comparative £nil)
Referto page 62 {Audit Committee Report}, note 1.3 {UHaccounting poticy) and notes 4 and 21 {disclosures)

Qur response to theserisks

Key observations
communicatedtiothe
Audit Committee

Inthe current year, Al management >Weinspected legaland regulatory correspondence uptothe date of iIssuance of these

has become aware of some
duplication of Roadside Assistance
cover taken by customers who
meet certaincriteria while being
personal Members and holding
Added Value Accounts (AVAs) with
A~’s banking partners. Throughits
review of data, management has
identified a group of customers for
wham the henefit of holding both
forms of cover is not clear. Steps
are being takento remediate.

A provision of £10m has been
reported by management at
31January 2017, reflecting its
assessment of the cost of
rernediation whichincludes
refunds of policy premiums. £7m
ofthe provisionis presentedasan
exceptional revenue provision with
£3m being the finance charge that
representsinterest accrualon the
refunded policy premiums.

The duplicate breakdown cover
provision requires the use of
estimates in determining the
likelihood of a refund occurring
and is dependent onindividuat
customer circumstances.
Variability inassumptions can
resultin measurement uncertainty
and a range of potential outcormes.

As aresult, the duplicate
breakdown cover provision has
been added as anarea of audit
emphasis for the current year.

financial staternents.

> We obtained management's assessment of the provision and based on the actual
customer outcomes to date and sensitivity analysis, assessed the reasonableness of
the key assumptions that inform the estimate. We recalculated arange of outcomes
reflecting variables in those assumptions.

>We tested the completeness of underlying data and verified a sample toindividual case

recordsinordler to assess accuracy.,

¥ We confirmed the provision meets the recagnition criteria set out in1AS 37 *Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’”,

We are satisfied
that the duplicate
breakdown cover
provision meatsihe
recognition criteria
setoutinlAS 37
and disclosures in
the 31 January 2017
financial statements
areinaccordance
with the applicable
accounting
framewaork.

Takinginto
consideration

the variability of
assumptions,

we consider the
provision amount
recognised as at
31January 2017
to be withinan
acceptablerange,
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4, Involvement withcomponentteam

In establishing our overallapproach to the Group audit, we determined the
type of work that needed to be undertaken at each of the components by
us, as the primary audit engagement team, or by the component auditors
operating under our instruction,

The Insurance component team is responsible for the audit of the
Insurance Services and Insurance Underwriting segments. The Group
audit team is responsible forthe audit of the Group function and all
other components.

The Group audit team provided detailed audit instructions to the
component team whichincluded guidance on areas of focus, including
the relevantrisks of material misstatement detailed above, and set out the
information required to be reported to the Group team.

The Group team reviewed key work papers and participated inthe
planning and execution ofthe component team's audit of the identified
risks. The Group team attended the closing meetings with the
management of the Insurance Companies and attended key Audit
Committee meetings.

The work performed on the components, together with the additional
procedures performed at Group level, gave us appropriate evidence for
our opinicn on the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

S. CQurapplicationof materiality

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our
audit, and in evaluating the effect of identified misstatements on our audit
and of uncorrected misstatements, if any, on the financial statements and
informing our opinion in the Audit Report.

Materlality

Materiality is the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that,
individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial statements.
Materiality provides a basis for determining the nature and extent of our
audit procedures,

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude
of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be material for the
financial statements as a whole. We determined materiality for the Group
tobe £7.6m (prior year £8.0m), which is approximately 2% of Trading
EBITDA adjusted for exceptionaliterns. We base our materialityona
Trading EBITDA performance measure as Trading EBITDA is the key
metric used by management in measuring and reporting on the
performance of the business. In presenting its measure of Trading EBITDA,
management adjusts Trading EBITDA for non-recurring tems and also
certain recurring items that are not allocated in assessing segment
performance. In calculating materiality, we have adjusted Trading EBITDA
only for exceptional iterns which we considered to be non-recurring.

This provided a basis for determining the nature, timing and extent of risk
assessment procedures, identifying and assessing the nsk of material
misstaternent and determining the nature, timing and extent of further
audit procedures,

During the course of our audit, we reassessed initial materiality.
Ourfinalcaleulated materiatity did not result in any substantive
changein our audit procedures.

Performance materiality

Performance materiality is the application of materiality at the
individualaccountor balance level, It 1s set atan amount to reduce
taanappropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of
uncerrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality.

Onthe basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of

the Group’s overall controd environment, ourjudgement is that overall
performance materiality (ie our tolerance for misstatementinan indwviduat
account or balance) for the Group should be 50% of materiality, namely
£3.8m{prior year £4.0m). Our objective in adopting this approachis to
ensurethat totaluncorrected and undetected audit differences do not
exceed our materiality of £7.6m for the financial staternents as whole.

Audit work at individual components is undertaken based ona percentage
of our total performance materiality, The performance materiality set for
eachcomponentis based on therelative size of the component and our
view ofthe risk of misstatement at that component. Therange of the
performance materiality allocated to components was £0.8mto
£2.7m{prior year E0.8mto £2.9m).

Reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would reportto the
Committee all audit differences in excess of £0.4m, whichis setat
approximately 5% of planning matenality, as wellas differences below
that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative
grounds. We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the
quantitative measures of materiality discussed above andin the light of
other relevant gualitative considerations.

6. Anoverview of the scope of our audit

Following our assessment of the risk of material misstatement to the
Group financial staterments, our audit scope focused onthe two largest
components, Roadside Assistance and Insurance Services, which were
subjectto a full scope audit for the year ended 31 January 2017, For the
remaining components (Driving Services and Insurance Underwriting)
and the statutory entities containing the Group’s borrowings and related
hedginginstruments, pension scheme balances and Head Office costs,
specific audit procedures were performed that were impacted by our
assessed risks of material misstatement, The componenits for which we
performed full scope audits accounted for 93% of the Group’s revenue,
92% of the Group's Trading EBITDA and 61% of the Group's total assets.

The specific scope compenent contributed 4% of the Group’s revenue,
7% of the Group's Trading EBITDA and 36% of the Group’s total assets.
The audit scope of these components may not have included testing of
all significant accounts of the component but will have contributed to
the coverage of significant accounts tested forthe Group.

The remaining components together represent 1% of the Group’s Trading
EBITDA. For these components, we performed other procedures,
including analytical review, testing of consolidation journals and
intercompany eliminations to respond to any potentialrisks of material
misstatement to the Group financial statements,
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Independent Auditor’s Report
continued

ltems not allocated to a segment and therefore notincluded in the Trading
EBITDA coverage, include the difference between the cash contributions
to the pension schemes for ongoing service and the calculated annuat
service cost and share-based payments. Pensions and Incentive Schemes
have been subjectto specific substantive audit procedures as setoutin
this report.

The charts helow illustrate the coverage obtained fromthe work
perfarmed by our audit teams,

7. Whatwehaveaudited

8. Respectiveresponsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set
out on page 78, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements inaccordance with applicable law and international Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors,

9. Scope oftheauditofthe financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of AA plc for the year ended
31January 2017 which comprise:

Group

>the consolidated income statement,

>the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

»the consolidated statement of financial position

»the consolidated statement of changes in equity

>the consolidated statement of cash flows

>therelated notes 1to 36 to the consolidated financial statements

Company

>the company statement of financial position

»the company statement of changes in equity

»the related notes 1to11to the comipany financial statements

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation
of the Group financial statements is applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation
of the parent Company financial statements is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 101
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework”.

This repart is made solely to the Company’s members, asa body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Curaudit work has been unidertaken so that we might state to the
Company's members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company’s membersas a body,

for our audrt work, for this report, or for the opiniqns we have formed.

An audit involves obtaining evidenice about the amounts and disclosures
inthe financial staternents sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial staterments are free from material misstatemnent, whether caused
by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Group's and the parent Company’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately
disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by the Directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements.
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the
Annyal Report and Accounts to identify materialinconsistencies with

the audited financial statements and to identify any informationthat is
apparently matenally incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with,
the knowledge acquired by usin the course of performing the audit. if we
become aware of any apparent materia misstatements or inconsistencies
we consider theimplications for ourreport.

10. Opinion on other mattets prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion:

ythe part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been
properly prepared inaccordance with the Companies Act 2006; and

Ybased on the work undertaken inthe course of the audit:

>theinformation given inthe Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report
for the financial year for which the financial staternents are preparedis
consistent with the financial statements; and

> the Strategic Report and the Directors” Report have been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Inlight of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its
environment obtained inthe course of the audit, we haveidentified no
material misstatements in the Strategic Report or Directors’ Report.
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11. Matters onwhich we are required to report by exception

Risk

ISAs (UK and Ireland)
reporting

Companies Act 2006
reporting

Listing Rules review
requirements

How ouraudit work addressed the nsk

We are required to report to you if, in our opinion, financiat and non-financial information in the
Annual Reportis:

> materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements; or

>apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge of
the Group acquired in the course of performing our audit; or

Yotherwise misleading.

In particular, we are required to report whether we have identified any inconsistencies between cur
knowledge acquired in the course of performing the audit and the Directors’ statement that they
consider the Annual Report and Accounts taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the entity’s performance, business
modeland strategy; and whether the Annual Report appropriately addresses those matters that we
communicated to the Audit Committee that we consider should have been disclosed.

We are required to report to youif, in our opinion:

> adeqguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company., or returns adequate
for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

Y the parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to
be audited are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

Ycertain disctosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

Ywe have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Weare required toreview:

>the Directors’ statement, set out on page 77, in relation to going concern and longer-term viability;
and

»the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company's compliance with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review.,

Statement on the Directors’ Assessment of the Principat Risks that would threaten the solvency or liquidity of the entity

ISAs (UK and Ireland)
reporting

Evnst 4

We are required to give a staternent as to whether we have anything material to add or to draw
attentiontoin relation to:

»the Directors’ confirmation inthe Annual Reportthat they have carried out a robust assessment of
the principal risks facing the entity, including those that would threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or liquidity;

»the disclosuresin the Annual Report that describe those risks and explain how they are being
managed or mitigated;

»the Directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether they consideredit appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing them, and their identification of any
material uncertainties to the entity's ability to continue to do so over a period of at least 12 months
from the date of approval of the financial statements; and

»the Directors’ explanation in the Annual Report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the
entity, over what pericd they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate,
and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the entity will be able
to continue In operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of therr assessment,

including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

. =

Kathryn Barrow (Senlor statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

ELondon
27 March 2017

What we concluded
tothe Audit
Committee

Wehaveno
exceptions
to report

Wehaveno
exceptions
toreport

We have no
exceptions
toreport

Woe havenothing
materialtoaddor
draw attentionto

1 Themantenance and integnity of the AA plc website 1s the responsibility of the Directors; the work carned out by the audrtars does not invalve consideration of these matters and, accordingly,
theauditars accept no respons,bility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the website,

2 Legislabonnthe United Kingdom governing the preparation and aissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation n other jurisdictions.
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Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 31January

2017 2016
Note Em Em
Continuing operations
Trading Revenue 2 240 925
Revenue from business disposed of 2 - 10
Exceptional revenue provision 2 {7 -
Group Revenue 2 933 935
Costof sales (341) (337)
Gross profit 592 598
Administrative & marketing expenses {309) (302)
Share of profits of joint ventures and associates, net of tax 1 1
Operating profit 284 207
Trading EBITDA 2 403 402
[tems not allocated to a segment 5 (20) (18
Amortisationand depreciation 1,13 {67) {51
impairment of investment injoint venture 14 m -
Exceptional operating tems 4 (313 {36
Operating profit 4 284 297
Finance costs 6 (185} (289}
Financeincome 7 1 1
Profitbefore tax 100 =]
Tax expense 9 {26) {10)
Profit/{loss) for the year from continuing operations 74 (1
Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 3 80 7
Profitforthe year 154 6
2017 2016
Eamings per share from profit/(loss) for the year Note pence pence
Basic from total operations 10 253 1.0
Basic from continuing operations 10 12.2 0.2}
Basic from discontinued operations 10 13.1 1.2
Diluted from total operations 10 253 1.0
Diluted from continuing operations 10 12.2 {0.2}
Diluted from discontinued operations 10 13.1 1.2

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of this consolidated income statement.



AA plc Annual Repoart and Accounts 2017

87

Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 January

2017 2016

MNote £m £m

Profitfor the year 154 6

Other comprehensive Income onitems that may be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent years

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 2 1

Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 13 10

Tax effect 9 (1) {2)

_ 14 9
Other comprehensive income on items that willnot be reclassified to profitandloss in subsequentyears

Remeasurement on {losses)/gains on defined benefit schemes 25 (99) 149

Tax effect 9 17 (26)

(82) 123

Total other comprehensiveincome (68) 132

86 138

Total comprehensive income for the year

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of this consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Consolidated statement
of financial position

asat 31January

2017 2016
Note £m £m
Non-current agsets
Goodwilland other intangible assets 1 1,283 1,298
Property, plant and equipment 13 13 122
Investments injoint ventures and associates 14 10 10
Deferred taxassets 9 62 52
1,486 1,482
Current assets
Inventories 15 6 5
Trade and other receivables 16 195 172
Cash and cash equivalents 17 M 166
412 343
Totalassets 1,898 1,825
Current liabilitjes
Trade and other payables 18 (520) (518}
Currenttax payable 1)) (7}
Provisions i {t9) (8)
(550} (533)
Nen-current Uabilities
Borrowings and loans 19 (2,819} (2,920)
Finance lease obligations 29 (20) (21}
Defined benefit pension scheme liabilities 25 {(395) (296)
Provisions 21 (1) (7}
Insurance technical provisions 22 {16} (4}
(3,261) (3,248)
Total liabliities (3.811) (3.781)
Netliabllities 1,913) (1,956}
Equity
Share capital 23 1 t
Share premium 24 403 399
Own shares 24 (26) (22)
Currency translation reserve 24 t o
Cash flow hedge reserve 24 2 (10)
Retained earnings 24 {2,294) (2,323)
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent {1,913) {1,956)

Signed for and on behalf of the Board on 27 March 2017 by:

oo LAt

BobMackenzie Martin Clarke
Executive Chairman Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of this consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated statement
of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 January

Attributable to the equity holders of the parent

Currency Cash flow
Share Own translation hedge Retamned

premium shares reserve reserve earnings Total

£m £ Em £m £m £m
At1February 2015 200 - [024] {18) (2.436) (2,255)
Profit for the year - - - - 3] 6
Other comprehensive Income - - i 8 123 132
Total comprehensive income - - 1 8 129 138
Dividends - - - - (21 @0
tssue of share capital 199 - - - - 199
Purchase of own shares - {22) - - - {22)
Share-based payments - - - - 5 5
At 31January 2016 399 (22) {n {10} (2,323) (1,956}
Profitforthe year - - - - 154 154
Other comprehensive income - - 2 12 {82) {68)
Total comprehensive income - - 2 12 72 86
Dividends - - - - (55) {55}
Issue of share capital - - - - 4
Purchase of own shares - (4) - - - 4)
Share-based payments - - - - 12 12
At 31 January 2017 403 {26) 2 (2,294) {1,913)

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of this consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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Consolidated statement
of cash flows

for the year ended 31 January

2017 2016

. Note £m £m
Profit before tax from continuing and discontinued operations 184 17
Amortisation and depreciation 13 68 54
Net finance costs 6.7 184 288
Other adjustmentsto profit before tax (62) 12
Working capital:
(Increase)/decrease intrade and other receivables {45) 13
Increase intrade and other payables 23 6
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 24 [3)]
Difference between pension charge and cash contributions {10) [y
Total working capital adjustments (8) 12
Net cash flows from operating activities before tax 366 383
Tax paid {21) @
Netcash flows from operating activities 345 381
Invasting activities
Capital expenditure (1)} {75}
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 18 1
Acquisitions and disposals, net of cash acquired or disposed of 3 a9 {8)
Interast received 1 1
Net cash flows from investing activities 47 71
Financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 700 735
Issue costs on borrowings {6} {16}
Debt repayment premium and penalties (30) (62)
Repayment of borrowings (766) (1,039)
Share capitalissued - 199
Refinancing transactions (102) (183)
Purchase of own shares - {22)
Interest paid on borrowings {143) (178)
Payment of finance lease capital @3) 34)
Payment of finance lease interast vy} 8}
Dividends paid (55) (20
Netcash flows from financing activitles (350) (446)
Netlncrease/{decrease)incashand cash equivalents 42 (136)
Net foreign exchange differences 3 -
Cash and cash equivalents at 1February 166 302
Cashand cash equivalents at 31 January 17 2n 166

The cash flows from operating activities are stated net of cash outflows relating to exceptional items of £15m (2016: £37m), This relates to the cost of
businesstransformationof £11m (2016: £21m), non-recurring costs of IT system implementation and cost restructuring activities of £7m (2016: £7m),

share issue costs of E£nil{2016: £1m), refinancing of the Group’s borrowings Enit(2016: £4m), and a net cashinflow from onerous property lease
provisions in respect of vacant properties of £3m (2016: £4m outflow).

Other adjustments to profit before tax of E62m (2016: inflow of £12m) include profiton sale of treland £77m (2016 Enil), share of prafitfrom joint
ventures and associates of £1m (2016: profit of £1r), share based payments of £12m (2016: £5m), loss on sale of fixed assets of E3m (2016: £3m),
impairment of investment i joint venturas of £1m (2016: £nil) and loss on disposal of Autowindshields of Enit (2016 £5mj.

Operating cash flows from discontinued operations were £10m (2016: £14m) (see note 3).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated statement of cash flows,
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

1 Basisof preparation and accounting policies

1.1 Generalinformation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 January 2017
comprise the financial statements of AA plc (‘'the Company®) and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as 'the Group’), AA plcis a public limited
company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales.

These statements and the pricr year comparatives have been presented
to the nearest Emillion,

1.2 Basis of preparation

The Group has prepared these staternents under International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS}as adopted by the European Union,
international Financial Reporting Interpretation Council (IFRIC)
interpretations and those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable
to companies reporting under IFRS.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historic cast convention as modified by the measurement of derivatives
and liabilities for contingent consideration in business combinations at
fair value.

a) Goingconcern

The Group is highly cash generative with a large proportion of its revenues
coming from recurring transactions. The significant customer loyalty
demonstrated by high renewal rates and lengthy customer tenure
underpins this and in addition to the cash balances at the reporting date
the Group has agreed undrawn credit facilities. The majority of the Group’s
borrowings are long termin nature with no berrowings due within 12
months from the date of signing of these financial statements. For the
Group's longer term viability, it remains a key assumption of the Directors
{hat the Group continues to have ready access to both public debt and
equity markets to enable these borrowings to be easily refinanced in due
course. The Directors have reviewed projected cash flows for a period of
one year from the date of signing these financial statements and have
concluded that the Group has sufficient funds to continue trading for this
period and the foreseeable future. Therefore, the financial statements
have been prepared using the going concern basis.

b) Basisof consolidation

The consolidated financial statementsincorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has rights to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
toinfluence those returns through its power over the entity.

The results of subsidiaries acguired or disposed of during the yearare
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date
of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies into lne with those used by
the Group. Allintra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

1.3 Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies are set out below,

a) Interestsin jointventures andassociates

Anassociate 1s an entity over which the Groupisinaposition to exercise
significant influence, but not control or joint control, through participating
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the entity. Joint ventures
are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

The results, assets and liabilibes of joint ventures and associates are
incorporated in these financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Investments in joint ventures and associates are carried in
the Group balance sheet at cost, including direct acquisition costs,

as adjusted by post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
net assets less any impairment losses.

b) Foreigncurrencies

These financial statements are presented in pound sterling, which
is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Group operates,

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of each
consolidated undertaking are recorded at rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and Liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translatedinto the respective
functional currency at rates of exchange ruling at the batance sheet
date. Gains and losses arising onthe transtation of assets and liabilities
are taken tothe iIncome statement.

The results of overseas operations are translated inte sterling at average
rates of exchange for the period. Exchange differences arising onthe
retranstation of the opening net assets of overseas operations are
transferred to the Group's cumulative transtation reservein equity.

¢) Business combinations and goodwill
All business combinations are accounted for by applying the
acquisition method.

Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the
issue of debt or equity securities, are expensed asincurred.

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’'s interest in the fair value of the identified assets
and liabitities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwillis
recognised as an asset at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date, and subsequent changes to the fair value of

the contingent consideration are recognisedin profit or loss. Any
consideration paid to aformer owner who continues to work forthe
business as part of the acquisition that is contingent on future service
Is excluded from goodwill and treated as acquisition earn-out costs
within items not allocated to a segment inadministrative and
marketing expenses.

d) Intangible assets

intangible assets other than goodwill which are acquired separately
are stated at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquiredin a business
combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Fellowing initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
any accurnulated amortisation and impairment losses. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life.

e} Software and development costs
Software development expenditures on an individual project are
recognised as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate:

>Thetechnical feasibility of completing the intangibte asset so that it will
be available for use or sale

>tsintention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

>How the asset will generate future economic benefits

»The availability of resources to complete the asset

> The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during devetopment

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset,
the cost model s applied. The assetis carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and iImpairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins
when developmentis complete and the asset is available for use. itis
amortised overits useful life of three tofive years.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

1 Basisof preparation and accounting policies {continued)

1.3 Accounting policies (continued)

f) Property, plantand equipment

Land and buiidings held for use in the production of goods and services or
for administrative purposes are stated in the balance sheet at cost or fair
value for assets acquired ina business combination less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. No capitalised interest
isincluded inthe cost of items of property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipmeritis stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, Such costs include costs directly
attributabie to making the asset capable of aperating as intended, The
cost of property, plant and eguiprent less their expected residual value
is depreciated by equal instalments over their usefui economic lives.
These lives are as follows:

Buildings S0 vears

Related fittings 3-20years

Leasehold properties over the period of the lease
IT systems (hardware) 3-Syears

Plant, vehicles and other equipment 3-i0years

Assats held under finance leases are depreciated on a straight line basis
over the lease term.

g) inventories

Inventories are stated at the iower of cost and net realisable value, Costs
include all costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location
and condition, Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less
any further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposat.

h} Financialinstruments

Financial assets and financial liabilties are recognised on the Group's
balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. They are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. At each
reporting date the Group assesses whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financialassets is impaired.

Trade receivables and trade payables

Trade receivables and trade payables are not interest bearing and are
recognised initially at fair value. A provision for impairment of trade
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of the receivables.

Cashand cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with
anoriginal maturity less than three months.

Debtinstruments

Debt is initialty recognised in the balance sheet at fair value less
transaction costs incurred directly in connection with the issue of the
instrument. Debt issue feesin respect of the instrument, including
premiums and discounts on issue, are capitalised atinception and
charged to the income statement over the term of the instrument using
the effactive interest method. 'ssue costs relating to the extinguishment
of debt are charged to the profit and loss account immediatety.

Equity instruments (share capitalissued by the Group)

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences aresidualinterest
in the assets of the Group after deducting allits tiabilities. Equity
instruments are recognised at the fair value of proceeds received less
directissue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group’s capital structure exposes it to the financial risk of changes in
interest rates and fuel prices. The Group uses interest rate and fuel swap
contracisto hedge these exposures.

Dervative financialinstruments are recorded in the balance sheet at fair

value. The fair value of derivative financial instruments is determined by

reference to market values for similar financialinstruments. The gain or

ioss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in profit

orloss unless they qualify for hedge accounting as described below. ,

Cashflow hedges

Changesin the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are

designated as highly effective hedges of future cash flows are recognised

in other comprehensiveincome. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is '
recognised immediately inthe income statement. Amounts recognisedin

other comprehensive income are reclassified from equity to profitand loss

(within finance costs}in the period when the hedged item affects profit or

loss. When ahedging instrument expires or is sold, or when ahedge no

longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gainor

loss recognised inthe other comprehensive income at that time remains I
in equity and is reclassified when the hedged transaction is uthmately

recognised in the income statement. I

Inorder to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group s reguired to
document from inception the relationship between the item being hedged
and the hedging instrument and demonstrate that the hedge willbe highly
effective on anongoing basis. This effectiveness testing is performed at
each period endto ensure that the hedge remains highly effective,

i) Impairmentofassets

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than
inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment, (f any such
indication exists, thenthe asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
inaddition, goodwilland intangible assets not yet availabie for use are
tested forimpairment annually.

Farthe purpose ofimpairment testing, assets that cannot be tested
individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independerit of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets
{the cash generating units or “CGUs"). The goodwillacquired in

a business combinatian is allocated to CGUs so that the level at which
impairment is tested reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is
maonitored for internal reporting purposes.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater
of its value in use and its fair valug less costs to sell. In assessing valuein
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted fo their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
thetime value of moneyandthe risks specific tothe asset.

Animpairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset orits

CGU exceedsits estimated recoverable amount. impairment losses are

recognised in profit orloss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of

CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any allocated

goodwill and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets on !
aprorata basis.

Animpairment (oss in respect of goodwillis not reversed. In respect of
other assets, animpairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used fo determine the recoverable amount. Animpairment
tossis reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciationor amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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1 Basisof preparationandaccounting policies (continued)

1.3 Acceounting policies (continued)
i) leases
Finance leases transfer substantially all of the nsks and rewards of

ownershiptothe lessee. Allother leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minirmum
lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The
corresponding liability to the lessor1s shown as a financial liability.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly
totheincome statement.

Rentals payable and receivable under operating leases are charged, or
credited, to the income statement on a straight-lne basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Any incentives to enter into an operating lease are
recognised evenly over the lease term.

k} Provisions

A provision is required when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as aresult of a past event and itis probable that settlement wilt
be required of an amount that can be reliably estimated. Provisions are
discounted where theimpact is material

Provisions for restructuring costs are recognised when the Group has
a detailed formal plan for the restructuring that has been communicated
to affected parties,

For property leases, where a decision has been made prior to the year end
to permanently vacate the property, provision is made for future rent and
similar costs net of any rental income expected to be received up to the
estimated date of final disposal.

) Retirement benefit obligation

The Group's position in respect of defined benefit pension plansis
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods;

that benefitis discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value
of any plan assets (at bid price) is deducted. The Group determines the
netinterest on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit liability.

The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on bonds that have a
credit rating of at least AA, with maturity dates approximating theterms
of the Group's obligations, and that are denominated in the currencyin
whichthe benefits are expected to be paid.

Remeasurements arising frorn defined benefit plans comprise actuarial
gains and tosses and the return on plan assets (excluding interest). The
Group recognises them immediately in other comprehensive income and
all other expenses related to defined benefit plans in administrative and
marketing expenses in profit or loss.

Whenthe benefits of a plan are changed, or when a planis curtailed,
the portion of the changed benefit related to past service by employees,
or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised immediately in profitor
loss when the planamendment or curtailment occurs.

The calcutation of the defined benefit obligations is performed by a
qualified actuary using the projected wmt credit method. When the
calculation results ina benefit to the Group, the recognised asset is
limited to the present value of benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions and takes
intc account the adverse effect of any minimum funding requirements.

For defined contribution schemes, the amounts recognised in profit
orloss are the contributions payable inthe year,

m) Revenue recognition
Revenueis measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable less
any discountsand excluding value added tax and other sales related taxes.

Roadside membership subscriptions and premiums receivable on
underwritten insurance products are apportioned on atime basis over
the period where the Group is liable for risk cover. The unrecognised
elernent of subscriptions and premiums receivable, relating to future
periods, is held within liabilities as deferred income and provision for
unearned premiums.

Commissionincome from insurers external to the Group 1s recognised
at the commencement of the period of risk.

Where customers choase to pay by instalments, the Group charges
interest based on the principal outstanding and disclosedinterest rate
and recognises thisincome over the course of the loan.

For all other revenue,income isrecognised at point of delivery of goods
or on provision of service. This includes work which has not yet heen fulty
invoiced, provided that it is considered to be fully recoverable.

n} Insurance contracts

Aninsurance contractis a contract under which insurance risk is
transferred to the issuer of the contract by ancther party. Inthe roadside
assistance segment, the Group accepts insurance risk fromits customers
under roadside recovery service contracts by agreeing to provide services
whose frequency and cost is uncertain, Claims and expenses arising from
these contracts are recognised in profit or loss as incurred, The Group
also has insurance risk within the insurance underwriting segmenton
insurance products underwritten by the Group.

At the balance sheet date, a liability adequacy test is performed to ensure
the adequacy of the insurance contract liabilities. In performing these
tests, current estimates of future cash outflows arising under insurance
contracts are considered and compared with the carryingamount of
deferredincome, provision for unearned premiums and other insurance
contract liabilities. Any deficiency isimmediately recognised in profit or
loss and an onerous contract provisionis estabtished.

The estimation of the ultimate Lability from claims made under insurance
contracts for breakdown recovery is not considered to be one of the
Group's most critical accounting estimates. This is because thereis a very
short period of time between the receipt of a claim, eg. a breakdown, and
the settling of that ¢ctaim. Consequently, there are no significant provisions
for unsettled claims costs in respect of the roadside assistance services,

The provision for outstanding claims relating to products withinsurance
risk within the insurance underwriting segment is set on an indsvidual
claim basis and is based on the ultimate cost of all claims notified but not
settled, less amounts already paid by the reporting date, together with

a provision for related claims handling costs. The provision alsoincludes
the estimated cost of claims incurred but not reported at the statement

of financial position date (“IBNR"), which is set using statistical methods.
Both outstanding claims and IBNR are not discounted for the time value of
maney. The amount of any anticipated reinsurance, salvage or subrogation
recoveries is separately identified and reported within trade and other
receivables and insurance contract liabilities respectively. Differences
between the provisions at the reporting date and settlements and
provisions in the following year are recogmised in the income statement

as they arise.

Reinsurance

The Group undertakes a programme of reinsurance in respect of the
policies whichit underwrites, Qutward reinsurance premiums are
accounted for in the same accounting period as the related inward
insurance prerniurns and are included as a deductionfrom earned
premium, and therefore as areductionin revenue. The amount of
any anticipated reinsurance recoveries is treated as areductionin
claims costs.
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Notes to the consolidated financia! statements
continued

1 Baslsof preparation and accounting policies {continued)

1.3 Accounting policies {continued)

a) Exceptionalitems and adjusted eamings per share

Exceptional operating items are events or transactions that fall within
the operating activities of the Group and which by virtue of their size or
incidence have beendisclosedin order toimprove areader’s
understanding of the financial statements.

In addition, occasionally there are events or transactions that fall below
operating profitthat are one-off in nature and items within operating profit
that relate to transactions that do not form part of the ongoing segment
performarce and which by virtue of their size orincidence have been
separately disclosed inthe financial statements,

Adjusted earnings per share adjusts profit after tax for items that are either
discontinued operations, one-offin nature or relate to transactions that
do not form part of the cngoing performance of the Group.

p} Financeincomeand costs

Finance costs comprise interest payable, finance charges on finance
leases recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method,
amortisation of debtissue fees, unwinding of the discount on provisions
(includingthe net defined benefit obligations) and net foreign exchange
lozses that are recognised in the income statement (see foreign currency
accounting policy).

Financeincome comprises interest receivable on funds invested and net
foreign exchange gains.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

q) Taxation
Tax onthe profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax,

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable
Income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantivety
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
inrespect of previous years.

Deferred taxis provided on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences
are not provided for: the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial
recognitionof assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit other thanin a business combination; and differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they wilt probably notreverse
in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based

on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and labilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted atthe balance sheet date.

Adeferred tax assetis recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent thatitis no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits witl be available to allow all
orpart of the asset to be recovered.

1 Segmentalanalysis

The Group reports its operations using the segments that are reported for
management purposes. Segments are based on business operations
because this is where Group risk and return is focused.

s) Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity settied, share-based payment
compensation plans for employees. The fair value of the equity settled
awards is measured at the grant date based on expectations of
performance conditions being met. The fair value of the awardsis
recognised asan expense with a corresponding credit toreserves.

ty Discontinued operationsand disposals

A discontinued operationis a component of the Group's business,
the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which:

> Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations;

> is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major iine
of business or geographical area of operations; or

) is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with aviewtore-sale

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs on disposal or whenthe
operation meets the criteriato be classified as held for sale, if earlier.

When anoperation is classified as a discontinued operation, the
consolidated income statement is represented asif the operation had
beendiscontinued from the start of the comparative year.

u) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates are evaluated continually and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group makes estimates
and assumptions about the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

Management has exercised judgement in applying the Group's accounting
policies and in making critical estimates. The underiying assumptionson
which these judgements are based, are reviewed on an ongoing basis and
include the selection of assumptions in relation to the retirement benefit
obligation and assumptions for future growth of cash flows to support the
value-in-use calculations for the goodwillimpairment review,

The principal estimates and assumptions that have a risk of causing an
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial period are discussed below,

Retlirement benefit obligation

The Group’s retirement benefit obligation, which is actuarially
assessed each period, is based on key assumptions including return on
plan assets, discount rates, inflation, future salary and pension costs.
These assumptions may be different to the actual outcorne.

Derivative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instrurents is determined by
reference to market values for similar financialinstruments. The Group
is therefore required to identify changes in market conditions around
expectations for interest rates. These assumptions may be different to
the actual outcome.

Goodwill

The Grouptests goodwill forimpairment annualty. The recoverable
amounts of cash generating units have been determined based on value-
n-use calculations which require the use of estimates. Management have
prepared discounted cash flows based on the latest strategic plan.

Share-based payments

The Group hasissued a number of share-based payment awards to
emplayees during the year which are measured at fair value, Thisinvolves
estimates about the expected volatitity of the share price and the number
ofleavers over the vesting period.

Provision for duplicate breakdown cover

The Group has made a provision in revenue and finance costs for potential
refunds due to customers who may have duplicate cover as a business-to-
business customerand as a personal Member. This provision has required
the use of estimates in determining the likelihood of a refund occurring and
isdependent on individual customer circumstances. These estimates may
be different to the actual outcome and include the split of the exceptional
charge between revenue and finance costs.
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2 Segmentalinformation

2017 2016
£m £m

Revenue
Roadside Assistance 742 724
Insurance Services 131 13
Driving Services 67 68
Insurance Underwriting - 2
Trading Revenue 940 925
Revenue from business disposed of - 10
Exceptional revenue provision (see note 21) {7) -
Group Revenue 933 835
Trading EBITDA
Roadside Assistance 365 361
Insurance Services 76 78
Driving Services 20 19
Insurance Underwriting n -
Head Office costs (57) {56}
Trading EBITDA 403 402
Items not allocated to asegment {20) (18)
Amortisation and depreciation 67) (51
Impairment of investmentin joint venture ()] -
Exceptional operating tems {31) (36)
Operating profit 284 297
Net finance costs (184) (288)
Profit before tax from continuing operations 100 Q

All segments operate principally in the UK. Turnover by destination is not materially different from turnover by origin.

During August 2015, AA plc Group agreed to dispose of its windscreen replacement subsidiary Autowindshields (UK) Limited. Contracts were
exchanged in August 2015 and the sale was compteted by the end of the previous financial year. The results of this business have been presented
above as business disposed of.

The segmental results for the prior period have been restated to exclude Ireland whichis now a discontinued operation {see note 3).

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their products and services. The Group has five reportable operating
segments as follows:

>Roadslde Assistance: This segment is the largest part of the AA business. The AA provides a nationwide service, sending patrols out to Members
stranded at the side of the road, repairing their vehicles where possible and getting them back on their way quickly and safely.

> Insurance Services: This segment includes the Insurance brokerage activities of the AA, primarily in arranging motor and home insurance for
customaers, its home emergency activities and its intermediary financial services business.

> Driving Services: This segment contains the AA Driving School and the British School of Motoring, which are the two largest driving schools inthe UK,
as wellas AA DriveTech, which provides driver training and educative programmes.

>Insurance Underwrtting: This segrment consists of the insurance underwriting and reinsurance activities of the AA. Any adjustments arisingon
consolidation of the Group’s insurance underwriting activities, such as the deferring of revenue relating to the broker, are included in this segment.

>Head Office costs: This segmentincludes IT, finance, property and other back office support functions.

Segment performance is primarily evaluated using the Group’s key performance measures of Trading Revenue and Trading EBITDA.

Trading Revenue is revenue an a continuing basis adjusted for exceptional items and business disposed of. Trading EBITDA is profit after tax on

a continuing basis as reported, adjusted for depreciation, amortisation, exceptional operating items, iterms not allocated to a segment, net finance
costs, tax expense and business disposed of, This better reflects the Group's underlying performance.

Items not allocated to a segment relate to transactions that do not form part of the engoing segment performance and include transactions which are
one-offin nature (see note ),

Depreciation, amortisation, exceptionalitems, net finance costs and tax expense are notallocated toindividual segments as they are managed on
agroup basis.

Segmentalinformation 15 not presented for items in the statement of financial position as management does not view this information on

asegmentat basis.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

3 Disconfinued operations

On 11 August 2018, the Group completed the sale of its Irish business. The entities sold were AAlreland Limited and its subsidiary undertakings. The
lreland business segment has therefore been reported as a discontinued operation as it represented a separate geographical area and the whole of the
Irish operation was disposed of inthe year.

As part of the transaction, the AA Ireland pension scheme, which is closed to future acerual, was transferred to AA Corporation Limited, a UK subsidiary
of AA ptc and will continue to be the responsibility of the Group.

a) Resultsofdiscontinuedoperations

2017 2016
£m £m

Revenue 23 38
Expenses (15) {25)
Trading EBITDA 8 13
Depreciation and amortisation (1) {3)
Exceptional items - (2)
Operating profit 7 8
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations 77 -
Profitbefore tax 84 8
Tax {4) U]
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 80 7

Tax includes a charge of £1m (2016: £1m) in relation to the trading results of the discontinued operation and a charge of £3m (2016: £nil) in relation to tax
dueon the licensing of the brand to the lrish business segment. The tax due on the use of the brand has arisen over anumber of years but has become
material inthe current financial year and related wholly to the discontinued operations. As this liability rests with the UK Group, any changes from the
amounts provided will be reflected in the UK entity accounts going forward.

No additional tax arises on the profit on disposal of the Irish business segment mainly due to the application of the substantial shareholding exemnption.
The profit from the sale of the Ireland business segment consisted of the following:

Em
Proceeds 133
Fees 3
Net assets (53)
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations 77

Proceeds, net of fees, were £130m and allowed £106m of the Senior Term Facility to be repaid on 31 August 2016, Under the terms of our borrowings,
we have held back £24m from the net proceeds in ring-fenced available cash to be used for potential future acquisitions. Any amounts not committed
toan acquisition within 12 months from the AA ireland completion date must be used to repay either Class A notes or the Senior Term Facility.

b) Netcash flowsof discontinued operations

2017 2016

£m £m

Operating cash flow 10 4

Investing cash flow 3 )

Total cash flows 7 10
Ouring the year, the following cash flows arose as a resultt of Group acguisitions and disposais:

£m

Cash proceeds from sale of Irish business segment 133

Fees (3)

Net cash proceeds from sale of Irish business segment 130

Cash held in Irish business at point of disposal 30

Acquisitions and disposals, net of cashacquired ordisposed of 29
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3 Discontinued operations {continued)
c} Netassetsofdiscontinued operationsatpointof disposal

£m
Goodwill 26
Other intangible assets 9
Property. plant and equipment 3
Trade and other receivables 25
Cashand cash equivalents i
Trade and other payables 29)
Provisions - restructuring o)
Cumulative foreign exchange adjustrnent in reserves {1}
Total 53
4 Operating profit
Operating profit from continuing operations is stated after charging:
2017 2016
£m £m
Amortisation of owned intangible assets 33 21
Depreciation of owned tangible fixed assets 12 10
Depreciation of leased tangible fixed assets 22 20
Operating lease rentals payable - land and buildings 4 5
Exceptipnal operating items 3 36

Exceptional revenue included £7m for duplicate breakdown cover (2016: £nil). In addition, £3m was charged to exceptional finance charges, bringing
the total exceptionalamount for duplicate breakdown cover to £10m. See note 21 for further information.

Exceptional operating costs include £34m refating to business transformation costs (2016: £22m), £3m loss on disposal of fixed assets (2016: £3m),
£3m forIT systems transfermation (2016: £2m), £1m costs from onerous properties (2016: £2m income), £nil for the loss ondisposal of Autowindshields
(UK) Limited (2016: £5m), Erl relating to finance transactions (2016: £4m), and £3m mainly relating to non-recurring costs for cost restructuring
activities {2016: £2m).

Costs from the current year refinancing in December 2016 were directly attributable to the issue and repayment of loan notes and have therefore been
included either infinance costs or in borrowings as debt issue fees (see notes 6 and 20).

5 Itemsnotallocatedto asegment

2017 2016

Em £m

Share-based payments {see note 34} 2 5
Difference between cash contributions to the pension scheme for ongoing service and the calculated annual

service ¢costs s 3

Total temsnot allocated to a segment 20 18
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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6 Financecosts

2017 2016

£m £m

Interest on external borrowings 147 (159)
Finance charges payable under finance leases {8) (7
Total ongoing cashfinance costs {155) {166)
Ongoing amortisation of debt issue fees (5} @
Net finance expense on defined benefit pension schemes (10) (12
Totalongoing non-cashfinance costs {15) (16}
Double-running interest on externat borrowings - (19)
Debtrepayment prermium and penalties {2) 62)
Transfer from cash flow hedge reserve for extinguishment of cash flow hedge (6) 8)
Debtissue fees immediately written off following repayment of borrowings (see note 20) (4) {18)
Duplicate breakdown cover - interest onrefunds (see note 21) 3 -
Exceptionalfinance costs {15) {107}
Totalfinance costs {185) {289)

Within interest on external borrowings is £10m (2016: £13m) of interest charged on the Senior Term Facility and £8m (2016: £8m) charged in relation
totheinterest rate swaps used to hedge the variable element of the Senior Term Facility {see note 20).

Double-running interest costs related to the double-running of the Class B/B2 notes from the time of Issue of the Class B2 notesin April 2015 until the
repayment of the Class B notes in July 2015,

During the previous year, the Group repaid the original Class B notes of E655m and PIK notes of £175m (see note 20}, As aresult, the Group incurred
early repayment penalties of £58m for the Class B notes and £4m for the PIK notes.

During the year, the Group repaid £106m of the Senior Term Facility (2016: £209m), following which the Group transferred the fair value of the cash
flow hedges related to the repayment of £6rm (2016: £8m) from other comprehensive incometo the income statement.

As part of the refinancing during the current year, the Group incurred a £2m premium cost in relation to the repayment of £165m of the Class B2 notes
(see note 20). This premium was written off in the income statement.

7 Financeincome

2017 2016
£m £m
Interest receivable 1 1
Total finance income 1 1
8 Staffcosts
2017 2016
£m £m
Wages and salaries 251 270
Social security costs 25 24
Retirement benefit costs 29 34
305 328
The average monthly number of persons employed under contracts of service during the yearwas:
2017 2016
Operational 6,266 6,620
Management and administration 1,188 1,242

7454 7,862




AA plc Annual Repert and Accounts 2017

9 Tax
The major companents of the income tax expense are:
2017 2016
£m £m
Consolldated income statement
Currentincome tax
Currentincometaxcharge 21 9
Adjustments inrespect of previous years {1} -
20
Deferredtax
Effect of tax rate change on opening balances 2 7
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 2 -
Adjustments inrespect of prior years 2 (6)
6 1
Tax expense in the Income statement 26 10
2017 2016
£m £m
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Tax onthe effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 1 2
Tax on remeasurements of defined benefit pension Lability 7 26
Income tax (credited)/charged directly to other comprehensive Income {16) 28
Reconciliation of tax expense to profit before tax multipied by UK’s corporation tax rate:
2017 206
£m Em
Profit before tax from continuing operations 100 9
Tax at rate of 20.0% (2016: 20.2%) 20 2
Adjustmentsrelating to prior years 1
Rate change adjustment on tempeorary differences 2
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes:
- Share-based payments 2 B
- Other non-deductible expenses/non-taxed income 1
Income tax expense reported inthe consolidatedincome statement at effective rate 0f 22.0% (2016: 23.5%) 26 10

|n addition to the tax expense disclosed above, a charge of £4m (2016: £1m) has arisen on discontinued operations {(see note 3).

The 2017 effective rate has been calculated by exciuding the rate change adjustment that has arisen as a result of the future reductionin corporation
tax rates affecting the carrying value of the deferred tax balances and the impact of share-based payments, The 2016 effective tax rate is as reportedin

last year's financial staternents,
Deferred tax by type of temporary difference

Consolidated statement of

Consolidated

financial position income statement
2017 2016 2017 2016
Em £m Em £m
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 8 9 1 4
Revaluations of land and buildings to fair value (U] n - -
Rollover relief 2 2 - -
Pension 32 15 - 1
Revaluation of cash flow hedges 4 5 - (1)
Short-term temporary differences 7 9 2 (8)
Losses available for offsetting against future taxable income 14 17 3 5
Deferredtaxexpense -3 1
Net deferred tax assets 62 52
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9 Tax{continued)
Reconciliation of net deferred tax assets

2017 2016

£m £m

At1February 52 81
Tax expense recognised inthe income statement (6) U]
Taxincome/(expense) recognisedin OCl 16 (28)
At 31January 62 52

The Group offsets tax assets and Liabilities if and only if t has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxassets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxauthority.

The UK corporation tax rate will reduce from 20% to 19% on1April 2017 and then to 17% (2016:18%) on 1 April 2020, These rates have been substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date and have therefore been included in the deferred tax calculations,

Deferred taxhas beenrecognised at an overall rate of 17.2% for the UK at 31 fanuary 2017 (2016: 18.4%) and 12.5% for Ireland as at 31 January 2016.
The UK rate has been adiusted to reflect the expected reversal profile of the Group’s temporary differences.

The Group has tax losses which arose in the UK of £76m (2018: £92m) that are available indefinitely for of fsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. A deferred tax assethas been recognised inrespect of these losses.
10 Earnings pershare

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

2017 2016
Basic earnings pershare;
Profit after tax fromtotal operations (Em}) 154 6
Weighted average number of shares outstanding {millions) 609 596
Basic earnings per share from total operations (pence) 25.3 1.0
2mz 2016
Basic earnings per share:
Profit/loss) after tax from continuing operations {(£m) 74 (1
Weighted average number of shares outstanding {millions) 609 596
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations {pence) 12.2 (0.2)
2007 2016
Basic earnings per share;
Profit after tax from discontinued operations (€m) 80 7
Weighted average number of shares outstanding {millions) 609 596
Basic earnings per share from discontinued operations {pence) 13.1 12

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares is adjusted to assume conversion of ail petential dilutive ordinary
shares.

Under the Group's allemployee share incentive plan, shares are purchased monthly at market value and are therefore not dilutive. In addition, matching
shares are issued monthly at market value and are therefore not dilutive.

The Group has another class of potential dilutive ordinary shares relating to the MVP shares (see note 34). However, as at 31 fanuary 2017, based on
average market value of ordinary shares for the year, these were not dilutive.

There are no further classes of share that are dilutive as at 31 January 2017.

2017 2016
Weighted average number of ordinary shares inissue (millions) 609 596
Potentially dilutive shares {millions}) - -
Weighted average number of diluted ordinary shares {millions) 609 596
Dituted earnings per share fromtotal operations {pence) 25.3 1.0
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations {pence) 12.2 {0.2)
Diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations (pence) 13.1 12

Adjusted earnings per share adjusts profit after tax for items that are either discontinued operations, one-off in nature or relate to transactions that do
not form part of the ongoing performance of the Group.
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10 Earnings pershare {continued)

2017 2016

Profit after tax from continuing operations as reported (£m) 74 )
Adjusted for:
Exceptionalitems {Em) A 36
Impairment of investment injoint venture (Em) 1 -
[tems not allocated to a segment (Em) 20 18
Exceptional finance costs (see note B} {Em) 15 107
Tax expense (Em) 26 10
Adjusted profitbefore tax (Emj) 167 170
Tax at the effective rate of 22.0%{2016: 23.5%) (Em) (37) (40)
Adjusted profitaftertax{£m) 130 130
Weighted average number of shares outstanding {millions) 609 596
Adjusted basic eamings per share (pence) 213 21.8
Weighted average number of diluted ordinary shares (millions) 609 596
Adjusted diluted earnings per share (pence) 2.3 21.8
11 Goodwilt and otherintangible assets

Goodwill Software Total

£m Em £m
Cost
At1February 2015 1199 129 1328
Additions - 64 64
Disposals - (2) 2
At3tJanuary 2016 1,199 19 1,390
Additions - 56 56
Disposals - (30) {30}
Disposed with sale of subsidiary (26) {14) {40)
At 31 January 2017 1,173 203 1,376
Amortisationandimpalrment
AtiFebruary 2015 - n 7
Amortisation - 21 21
Amortisation within discontinued operations - 2 2
Disposals - (2) {2)
At31January 2016 - 92 92
Amortisation - 33 33
Amortisation within discontinued operations - 1 1
Disposals - (29) {29)
Disposed with sale of subsidiary - (5) (5}
Exchange differences - 1 1
At31January 2017 - 93 93
Netbookvalue
At 31 January 2017 1,173 110 1,283
1,199 99 1,298

At 31January 2016

Within software, £53m (2016: £53m) relates to assets under construction which are notamortised.
Software additions comprise £12m (2016: £13m)in relation to internally developed assets and £44m (2016: £5Im}in relation to separately

acquired assets.

The Group has reviewed and shortened the useful economic lives of some software assets, which are expected to be replaced by new software in the

year ending 31 lanuary 2018, As aresult, amortisation for those assets has been recalculated resulting in an additional amortisation charge to the

Income statement of E3m.
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12 Businesscombinations

Acquisitions during the year ended 31 January 2017
There were no acquisitions during the year ended 31January 2017,

Acquisitions during the yearended 31 January 2016

On 18 August 2015, the Group acquired the entire share capital of XL Insurance (Gibraltar) Limited, an insurance underwriter, for a total consideration
of £7m, it was then renamed AA Underwriting Insurance Company Limited.

13 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold LongLeasehold Plant &
Land & Buildings  Land & Buildings Vehicles equipment Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At1february 2015 24 10 92 107 233
Additions - - 47 21 68
Disposals - - (50) {3) (53)
At 31 January 2016 24 10 89 125 248
Additions - - 50 14 64
Disposals - - (36) 42) (78)
Disposed with sale of subsidiary - 3 (6) (8) 17}
Exchange differences - - 1 1 2
At 31 January 2017 24 a8 90 219
Depreciationand impairment
At1February 2015 6 4 37 86 133
Charge forthe year 1 - 20 9 30
Charge for the year within discontinued operations - - 1 - 1
Disposals - - (36) (2) (38)
At 31January 2016 22 23 126
Charge for the year - 1 23 10 34
Disposais - - (16} a4 [(538)]
Disposed with sale of subsidiary - )] (@ )] (4)
Exchange differences - - 1 1 2
At 31 January 2017 26 52 88
Net book value
At31January 2017 7 4 72 38 131
At 31 January 2016 17 [5] 67 32 122

The net book amount of vehicles includes £72m (2016: E65m) held under finance lease agreements. The accumulated depreciation on these assetsis

£26m (2016: £19m,.

The net book amount of cther assets includes £nil(2016: £nil)in respect of plant & machinery held under finance lease agreements. The accumulated

depreciation onthese assets is £8m (2016: E8m).

Within plant and equipment £4m (2016 £10m) relates to assets under construction which are not depreciated.
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14 Investmentsinjoint ventures and associates

2017 2016
Joint Joint
ventures  Associates Totat ventures Associates Total
£m £m Em £m £m £m
At1February 6 4 10 1 3 4
Addihons 1 1 2 5 - 5
Disposals - (1) {1) - - -
Share of profits - 1 1 - 1
Dividend received - ) (1) ~ - -
Impairment (1) - (U] - - -
At 31January 6 4 10 [3] 10
The joint ventures of the Group which are indirectly held are detailed below.
Company Country of registration Nature of business
AA Law Limited (49% interest held)y’ England Insurance services
TVS Auto Assist (India) Limited (49% interest held)? Incha Roadside services
Motoriety UK Limited (50% interest held)® England Roadside services
Intelematics Europe Limited (32% interest held)* England Roadside services
1 The Group exercises joint controlover AA Law Limped through its equal representation onthe Board
2 The Group exercises joint control over TVS Auto Assist {India) Limited through its joint influence over key decision making.
3 The Group exercises joint control over Motoriety UK Limited through its joint influence aver key decision making.
4 The Graup exercises jaint control over intelematics Furope Limrtedi through its joint influence over key decision making.
The assaciates of the Group which are indirectly held are listed below,
Company Country of registration Nature of business
ARC Eurcpe SA (20% interest held) Belgium Roadside services

During the year, the Group sold its interest in the shares of ACTA Assistance SAto ARC Europe SA. The other parties owning shares in ACTA Assistance
SAand ARC Europe SA also sold theirinterestin ACTA Assistance for sharesin ARC Europe sothat the overallinterest held in ARC Europe remained the

same for each party.
The Group also received adividend from ACTA Assistance during the year of £1m,

The investment in Motoriety was impaired from £1m to £nil as the Group does not deem the investment to be recoverable due to the loss making

position of that company. On 23 February 2017, the board of directors of Motoriety UK Limited resolved to commence a pre-pack administration for

its assets to be disposed of by an administrator.

15 Inventories
2017 2016
£m £m
Finished goods 6 5
6 5
16 Trade and otherrecelvables
2017 2016
£m £m
Current
Trade receivables 141 146
Prepayments and accrued income 22 N
Reinsurers’ share of insurance liability (see note 22) 28 1
Other receivables 4 4
195 172

Includedin trade receivables are amounts of £70m (2016; £82m) relating to amounts due from insurance broking customers.

Reinsurers’ share of insurance liability comprises £15m unearned reinsurance premiums and £13m reinsurance claims outstanding.
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17 Cashandcashequivalents

2017 2016

£m £m

Ring-fenced cash at bank and in hand - available i2g8 74
Ring-fenced cash at bank and in hand - restricted -4 20
Nonring-fenced cash at bank and inhand - available 60 58
Nonring-fenced cash at bank and in hand - restricted 15 14
an 166

Ring-fenced cash and cash equivalents relate to cash held by AA Intermediate Co Limited and its subsidiaries. Dividends canonly be paid to AA plc

when certain debt to EBITDA and cash flow criteria are met.

Cash atbank and in handincludes £23m {2016: £34m) held by and on behalf of the Group's insurance businesses which are subject to contractual or
regulatory restrictions, The reduction in ring-feniced restricted ¢ash since 31 January 2016 relates to the sale of the Irish business.

18 Trade and other payables

2017 2016
Em £m
Trade payables 97 1o
Other taxes and social security costs 27 23
Accruals 57 67
Deferredincome 241 248
Provision for unearned premiums in insurance underwriting (see note 22) 18 -
Other payables a3 30
Gbligations under finance lease agreements (see note 29) 47 40
520 518
included intrade payables are amounts of £82m (2016: £86m) relating to amounts due to underwriters in respect of insurance broking activities.
19 Borrowingsand loans
2017 2016
£m £m
Borrowings (seenote 20) 2,799 2,893
Interest rate swap used for hedging (see note 27) 20 27
2,819 2,920
The interest rate swap liability is shownon a net basis as the lability is settled with each counterparty on a net basis. On a gross basis, the assetis
£19m (2016: £24m) and the lability is £39m (2016: £51m).
20 Borrowings
Totalat Totalat
- Amortised  31January 31january
Principal  Issuecosts  issuecosts 2017 2016
Expectedmaturity date interestrate fra £m £m £m £m
Senior Term Facility 31January 2019 5.00% 348 3 2 347 452
Class Al notes 31 July 2018 4.72% 175 (3) 3 175 474
Class AZ nates Stiuty 2025 6.27% 560 (n - 499 499
Class A2 notes 31July 2020 4.25% 500 3 2 499 498
Class A4 notes 31July 2019 3.78% 55 (2) 2 55 249
Class AS notes 3tJanuary 2022 2.88% 700 (37} 1 664 -
Class B2 notes 31 July 2022 5.50% 570 (16) 6 560 il
4.63% 2,848 {65) 16 2,799 2,893

At 31January 2017, the Senior Term Facility carried interest at a rate of LIBOR plus a margin of 2%. The variabie element has been fully hedged using
matching interest rate swap arrangements which fix LIBOR at 3.00% until 31July 2018 and then at 4.93% until 31 January 2019, All other borrowings
have fixed interest rates. The weighted average interest rate for all borrowings of 4.63% has been calculated using the effective interest rate and

carrying values on 31 January 2017,



20 Borrowings (continued)
A summary of the Group's financing transactionsis shown below:
Senior Term
Facility Class Al Class A2 Class A3 Class A4 Class A5 Class B? Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

As at1February 2016 454 475 500 500 250 - 735 2,914
Issue/repayment date;
31August 2016 (106) - - - - - - (106)
6 December 2016 - (300) - - {195) 700 (165) 40
Total 348 175 500 500 55 700 570 2,848

In order to show the Group’s net borrowing, the notes and the issue costs have been offset. Issue costs are shown net of any premium onthe issue of
borrowings. Interest rate swaps are recognised in the Consolidated statement of financial position at fair value at the year end.

All ofthe Class A notes and Senior Term Facility are secured by firstranking security in respect of the undertakings and assets of AA Intermediate

Co Limited andits subsidiaries, The Class A facility security over the AA Intermediate Co Limited group's assets ranks ahead of the Class B2 notes.

The Class B2 notes have first ranking security over the assets of the immediate parent undertaking of the AA Intermediate Co Limited group, AAMid Co
Limited. AAMid Co Limited group canonly pay a dividend when certain net debt to EBITDA and cash flow criteria are met.

The Class B2 notes have an initial period to 31 July 2018 when any voluntary repayment would incur a make-whole payment and incur all remaining
interest due to 31 July 2018, After this period, there is a further two year period when any voluntary repayment would be made at a fixed premium based
onthe date of redemption, Any voluntary early repayments of the Class A notes would incur a make-whole payment of all interest due to expected
maturity date, except the Class AS notes which can be settled without penaity within three months of the expected maturity date.

Foliowing the sale of the Irish business (see note 3), part of the sale proceeds were used to repay £106m of the Sentor Term Facility on 31 August 2016,
Underthe terms of our borrowings, we have held back £24m frormn the net proceeds in ring-fenced available cashto be used for potential future
acquisitions. Any amounts not committed to an acquisition within 12 months from the AA Ireland completion date must be used to repay either

Class A notes or the Senior Term Facility.

On 6 Pecember 2016, the Group issued £700m of Class AS notes at aninterest rate of 2.88%. Holders of E300m of Al notes and £195m of A4 notes
exchanged their A notes for the new AS notes. From the remaining proceeds, the Group tendered £165m of Class B2 notes. The refinancing was
completed at a premium of £30m and with issue costs of £8m. Inline with the Group accounting policy, £37m of costs associated with the Atand A4
notes were capitalised. This consisted of £28m of the premiurn, £7m of new issue fees and £2m of unamortised issue costs relating to the Afand A4
notes that were exchanged. Costs asscciated with the B2 notes have beenwritten off. This consisted of £2m of the premium, £1m of new issue costs
and £3m of unamortised issue costs relating to the B2 notes that were tendered.

Inorder to comply with the requirements of the Class A notes, we are required to maintain the Class A free cash flow to debt service ratioin excess of
1.35x and the senior leverage ratio below 5.5x. The Class B2 notes require us to maintain the Class B2 free cash fliow to debt service ratio in excess of Ix.

The Class A and Class B2 notes therefore place restrictions oh the Group's ability to upstream cash from the key trading companies to pay external
dividends and finance activities unconstrained by the restrictions embedded in the debts.

The Class A notes only permit the release of cash providing the senior leverage ratic after payment 1s less than 5.5x and providing there is sufficient
excess cash flow to cover the payment. The Class B2 notes only permit the release of cash providing the fixed charge cover ratio after payment s more
than 2:1and providing that the aggregate payments do not exceed 50% of the accumulated consolidated netincome.
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21 Provisions
Cuplicate
Property breakdown
leases Restructunng Other cover Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At1February 2015 18 1 1 - 20
Utilised during the year 4) - {1) - (5)
Released unutiised during the year @) - - - 2)
Charge for the year 1 - 1 - 2
At31January 2016 13 1 1 - 15
Utilised duringthe year (U] ()] (U] - {3)
Disposed with sale of subsidiary - (U] - - (V)]
Charge for the year 5 4 - 10 19
At 31January 2017 17 3 - 10 30
Current 6 3 - 10 19
Non-current 11 - - - il
At31January2017 17 3 - 10 30
Current 6 1 1 - 8
Non-current 7 - - - 7
At 31January 2016 13 1 1 - 15

The property lease provision relates to future onerous lease costs of vacant properties for the remaining period of the lease, net of expected sub-letting
income, These sums are mainly expected to be paid out over the next 6 years however it will take 37 years to fully pay out allamounts provided for,
The provision has been calculated on a pre-tax discounted basis.

The restructuring provision relates to redundancy and other related costs following the restructuring of operations in the current and prior periods.
Other provisions primarily comprised a provision for an oherous contract which has been utilised in 2017,

We are aware that there is some duplication of Roadside Assistance covertaken by a limited number of business-to-business customers who are
personal Members and hold AVAs {Added Value Accounts)with our banking partners. While sormne may be unaware that they have duplicate cover,
others choose to maintain this to receive the benefits of Membership., Through the review of data for the new Customer Relationship Management
systems, we identified a group of customers for whom the benefit of hotding both forms of cover is not clear, We proposed a programme of remediation
for them which has the support of the regulatory authority. We have provided a total of £10m for our estimate of the refunds due, of which £7mis
expected to relate to premiums previously paid for breakdown cover and £3mforinterest payable onthose premiums. We expect to pay out these
amounts during the next financial year.

22 Insurance Underwriting
Reconciliation to segmentalresult
2017 2016
£m £m
Gross earned premium 10 2
Reinsurance garned premium [v] -
Netearned premium 3 2
Deferral of broker commission {3) -
insurance Underwriting revenue {see note 2) - 2
2017 2016
£m £m
Gross claimsincurred (16} ]
Reinsurance recoveries 14 -
Net claims paid {2) 4]
Administrative costs 2) m
Deferral of broker acquisition costs 3 _

Insurance Underwriting costs {n @
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22 Insurance Underwriting{continued}

Reconcliiation of movements in the provision for unearned premiums

2017 2016
£m Em
Gross unearned premiums at 1 February - -
Less: unearned reinsurance premiums - -
Net unearned premiums at 1 February - -
Gross premiums written 28 2
Less: outward reinsurance premium (22) -
Net premiums written 6 2
Gross premiums earned {10} (2
Less: reinsurance premium earned 7 -
Net premiums earned 3) {2)
Gross unearned premiums at 31 January (see note 18} 18 -
Less: unearned reinsurance premiums (see note 16} (15) -
Net unearned premiums at 31 January 3 -
Reconciliation of movements in claims outstanding
2017 2016
£m £m
Gross claims outstanding at 1 February 4 4
Less: reinsurance claims outstanding (U] {1}
Net claims outstanding at 1 February 3 3
Gross claims incurred 16 1
Less: reinsurance recoveries (14) -
Net claimsincurred 2 1
Gross claims paid @) 0
Less: received from reinsurance 2 -
Net claims paid 2) H
Gross claims outstanding at 31 January (see below) 16 4
Less: reinsurance claims outstanding (see note 16} (13) (1)
Net claims outstanding at 31 January 3 3

On7 December 2016, the Lord Chancellor announced a review into the discount rate for personal injury damages awards (the '‘Ogden rate”), which is
used by UK courts in the calculation of personal injury lump sum settlements. On 27 February 2017, it was announced that there will be a reduction

in the Ogden rate from 2.5% to minus 0.75% with effect from 20 March 2017. The Group has therefore adopted a discount rate of minus 0.75% in
estimating claims liabilities in existence at 31 January 2017, which has increased both gross insurance technical provisions and the reinsurance ¢claims
outstanding by ¢. £3m. Thereis negligible mpact on the Group's operating profit.

Insurance technical provisions

2017 2016

£m Em

Qutstanding claims provisions 10 2
Othertechnical provisions - prowvisions for incurred but not reported claims 6 2
16 4

Provision 1s made for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the balance sheet date, including the cost of ctaims incurred but ot yet
reported. The estimated cost of claims includes expenses to be incurred in settling claims.
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23 Sharecapltal
] 2017 2016
Em £m
Allotted, called upand fully paid
609,461,827 (2016: 608,181,845) ordinary shares of £0.001each 1 1

The voting rights of the holders of allordinary shares are the same and allordinary shares rank pari passu on a winding up. AA plc has no authorised
ordinary share capital.

Allmovement in the number of shares relates to the issue of matching shares in relation te the staff share incentive plans (see note 34).

The MVP shares in1ssue were as follows:

2017 2016
£000 £000

Allotted, called up and fully paid
20,000,000 (2016: 20,000,000) MVP A shares of E0.001 each 20 20
20,000,000 (2016: 20,000,000) MVP B shares of EQ.001 each 20 20
20,000,000 (2016: 20,000,000) MVP C shares of £0.001each 20 20
60 60

The MVP shares have no voting rights, There are 8 million authorised shares in each of the following MVP share classes: Al, Bland C1. There are
12 milion authorised shares in each of the following MVP share classes: A2, B2 and C2. Intotal, there are 80 million authorised MVP shares. Seealso
note 34.

24 Reserves
Currency  Cashfiow
Share Own  translation hedge Retained
premium shares reserve reserve earnings Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

At1February 2015 200 - (2) {i8) (2,436} (2,256)
Retained profit forthe year - - - - 6 6
Dividends paid - - - - 2 20
Purchase of own shares by the employee henefit trust - {22) - - - 22)
Issue of shares 206 - - - - 206
Shareissue costs N - - - - )]
Share-based payments - - - - 5 5
Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences on transtation of foreign operations - - 1 - - 1
Remeasurement gains on defined benefit schemes (note 25) - - - - 149 149
Tax effact of remeasurement gain on defined benefit schemes (note 9) - - -~ - {26} {26)
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges - - -~ 10 - 0
Tax effect of effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges
{note 8) - - ~ {2) - {2)
At 31 January 2016 399 22) (U] (10} {2,323) {1,957)
Retained profit for the year - - - - 154 54
Dividends paid - - - - (55} (95}
Purchase of own shares by the employee benefit trust - 4) - - - (4)
Issue of shares 4 - - - - 4
Share-based payments - - - ~ 12 12
Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences ontranslation of foreign operations - - 2 - - 2
Remeasurement losses on defined benefit schemes (note 25) - - - - 99) 99)
Tax effect of remeasurement losses on defined benefit schemes{note 9) - - - - 17 17
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges - - - 13 - 13
Tax effect of effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges
{note Q) ~ - - U - ]

At 31 January 2017 403 {26) 1 2 {2,294) {1,914)
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24 Reserves(continued)

Currency transiationreserve
The transiation reserve cornprises foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations, as wellas
from the transtation of liabilities that hedge the Group’s netinvestment in a foreign subsidiary.

Cashflowhedgereserve
The cash flow hedge reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments related to
hedged transactions that have not yet occurred.

Dividends

Inthe year ended 31 January 2017, total dividends of 9.1p (2016: 3.5p) per qualifying ordinary share were paid. Dividends are paid from the
unconsolidated distributable reserves of AA plc. Asat 31 January 2017, the Company had distributable reserves of £512m (2016: £495m). In March 2017,
the Directors proposed afinaldividend of 5.7p per ordinary share (2016: 5.5p), representing total dividend payments of E57m in respect of the 2017
financial year {2016: £53m}). Subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM on 8 tune 2017, the dividend will be paid on 13 June 2017 and willbe
accounted for as an appropriation of retained earnings in the 2018 financial year.

25 Pensions

The Group operates two funded defined benefit pension schemes: the AA UK Pension Scheme (AAUK) and the AA Ireland Pension Scheme (AAl).
The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group inindependently administered funds. The AAUK scheme has final salary
sections and a Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) section which accrues benefits on an average salary basis. All AAUK sections are largely
closed to new entrants but opento future accrual for existing members. The AAl scheme is closed to new entrants and future accrual of benefits,
The Group also operates an unfunded post-retirement Private Medical Plan (AAPMP), which is a defined benefit scheme that is not open to new
entrants, During the year, following the sale of the Irish business by the Group (see note 3), AA Corporation Limited, a UK subsidiary of the Group
became the sponsor of the AAl scheme.

The AAUK pension schemeis governed by a corporate trustee whose board is currently composed of member-nominated and company-nominated
directors, The AAl pension scheme is governed by a corporate trustee whose boardis currently composed of company-nominated directors of which
some are also members of the scheme. For both pension schemes the company-nominated directors include anindependent director whom the
trustee board directors have nominated as Chairman. The trustee of each scheme is responsible for paying members' benefits and for investing
scheme assets, which are legally separate from the Group.

The valuations have been based on a full assessment of the liabilities of the schemes which have been updated where appropriate to 31 January 2017
by independent qualified actuaries.

The amounts recoghised in the balance sheet are as follows:

As at 3 January 2017

AAUK AAl AAPMP Total

£m £m £m Em
Present value of the defined benefit obligationin respect of pensicn plans (2,515) (53) {59) {2,627)
Fair value of plan assets 2,190 42 - 2,232
Deficit (325) {1 (59) {395)
Asat 31 January 2016

AAUK AAl AAPMP Total

£m Em Em £m

Presenit value of the defined benefit obligationin respect of pension plans {2,053) 486) 47) (2,146)
Fair value of plan assets 1,815 35 - 1,850
Deficlt - (238) {1 47} (296}

The increase in the deficit is due to changesin the financial assumptions, pnmarily a decrease in the discount rate and increase in assumed price inflation
partially offset by the updating of mortality rates.

In November 2013, the Group completed the AAUK pension scheme triennial valuation agreeing a deficit of £202m with the pension trustees and
implementing an asset backed funding scheme. The asset backed funding scheme provides a long-term deficit reduction plan where the Group makes
an annual deficit reduction contribution, increasing with inflation (capped at 5% each year), over a period of 25 years up to 2038 secured on the Group’s
brands, Inthe year ended 31January 2017 this contribution was £13m, The Group also made an additional one off deficit reduction payment of £6m

to the AAUK scheme bringing total deficit reduction contributions for the AAUK scheme to £19m. The Group is currently committed to pay ¢.£13min
annual deficit reguction contributions for the AAUK scheme.

Using aninflation assurmption of 3.2% and a discount rate assumption of 2.7%, the present value of the future deficit reduction contributians has been
calculated and based onthese assumptions, the Group does not expect the present value of deficit reduction contributions to exceed the IAS 19 deficit.
The Group has alsc considered circumstances in which a surplus could be created and note that, in this event, the Group would have an unconditional
right to arefund of the surplus assuming the gradual settlement of AAUK Lliabilities over time untit all members have left the plan,

The triennial valuation of the AAUK pension scheme as at 31 March 2016 is currently underway. It is likely, following completion of the valuation, that
both the ongaing and deficit reduction employer contributions the Group is required to pay willincrease above current levels. Inlight of this anticipated
increase in cost, we have undertaken a review of the options for mitigating current and future liabilities. We are proposing to retain a defined benefit
arrangement allowing all members of the AAUK scheme to acerue future service benefits in a single modified CARE defined benefit section of the
scheme. This willinvolve moving employees from the final salary sections of the AAUK scheme into the modified CARE section, On the 20 March 2017,
we commenced a consultation process with employees affected by the proposed changes. These changes, if implemented, will be taken into account
in agreeing the future contributions and deficit reduction plan with the pension trustees which shoutd be finalised by 30 June 2017.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

25 Pensions(continued)

The last triennial valuation for the AAl scheme was in December 2013, The Group made deficit reduction contributions of ¢. £im in the yearended
31 January 2017 and will continue to make annual deficit reduction contributions, increasing with inflation, untit December 2023 or until an alternative
agreement is agreed with the trustees.

The triennial valuation of the AAl scheme is due as at 31 December 2016, and is expected to befinalised during the 2018 financial year.

In totat, the Group is currently committed to pay ¢. £19m.in ongoing employer contributions and ¢. £14min deficit reduction employer contributions
1o its defined benefit plans (AAUK and AAl} inthe year ending 31 January 2018.

Statement of
Income  comprehensive
Assets Liabilities statement income
£m £m £m £m
Balance at] February 2016 1,850 {2,148) - -
Current service cost - (29) (29) -
Interest on defined benefit scheme assets/(liabilties) 68 {78) (10} -
Amountsrecognised intheincome statement 68 (107 (39) -
Effect of changes in financial assumptions - B13) - {613)
Effect of changes in demographic expectations - 10 - 10
Effect of experience adjustment - 81 - 8t
Return on plan assets excluding interest income 323 - - 323
Amounts recognised Inthe statement of comprehensive income 323 (422) - (99)
Foreign exchange galn/(loss) 5 (6) - [U]
Contribution from scheme participants 1 {1} - ~
Benefits paid from scheme assets {55) 55 - -
Qngoing employer contributions 20 - - -
Deficit reduction employer contributions 20 - - -
Movements through cash {14} 54 - -
Balanceat31January 2017 2,232 {2,627) - -
Statement of
" Income  comprehensive
Assets Liabilities staternent income
£m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 February 2015 1,844 (2,278) - -
Current service cost - (34) (34 -
Past service cost - (2) (2 -
Interest on defined benefit scheme assets/(liabilities) 56 (68) (12} -
Amounts recognised inthe Income statement 56 {104) (48) -
Effect of changes in financial assumptions ~ 185 - 85
Effect of experience adjustment - 1 - 1
Return on plan assets excluding interest income {37} - ~ {37)
Amountsrecognised Inthe statement of comprehensive income (37 186 - 149
Forelgn exchange loss - (1} ~ (U]
Contribution from scheme participants 1 )] ~ -
Benefits paid from scheme assets (52} 52 - -
Ongoing employer contributions 24 - - -
Deficitreduction employer contributions 14 - - -
Movements through cash {13} 5t - -
Balance at 31 January 2016 1,850 {2,146} - -

Aredundancy exercise was carried out during the year ended 31January 2016 which affected 28 members of the AAUK Scheme, Under the terms of
the AAUK Scheme the members were entitled ta enhanced pension benefits uponredundancy and the impact of this was a past service costof £2m
inrelationtothe AAUK scheme.
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25 Pensions (continued)

Fairvalue of plan assets .
The overall expected rate of return 1s calculated by weighting the individual rates in accordance with the anticipated balance in the plan’s

investrnent portfolio.

The table below shows the AAUK plan assets split between those that have a quoted market price and those that are unquoted. Inrespect of the
AAlscheme 33.1% (2016: 26.6%) of assets do not have a quoted market price.

The fair value of the AAUK assets and the return onthose assets were as follows:

2017 2016

Assetswith  Assetswithout Assetswith Assets without

aquoted aquoted aquoted aquoted

market price marketprice market price market price

£m Em £m £m

Equities 184 258 136 265

Bonds 876 183 667 122

Property 81 168 79 172

Hedge funds - 401 - 356

Cash/net current assets 37 2 17 1

Total AAUK assets 1,178 1,012 899 916
Actual return on AAUK assats 388 18

Investment strategy

The AAUK trustee determines its investment strategy after taking advice froma professionalinvestment adviser. The scheme’s investment strategy has
been set following an asset/liability review which considered a wide range of investment opportunities available to the scheme and how they might
perfoermin combination. Other factors were also taken into account such as the strength of the employer covenant, the long term nature of the liabilities
and the funding plan agreed with the employer.

The trustee aims to achieve the scheme’s investment objectives through investing partly in a diversified mix of growth assets which, over the long term,
are expected to grow in value by more than low risk assets like cash and gilts. This is done within a broad liability driveninvesting framework that uses
cash, gilts and other hedging instruments like swaps in a capital efficient way. In combination this efficiently captures the trustee risk tolerances and
return objectives relative to the scheme’s liabilities. A number of Investment managers are appointed to promote diversification by assets, organisation
andinvestment style.

To diversify sources of return and risk, the AAUK scheme invests in many asset classes and strategies, including equities, bonds and property funds
which primartly rely on the upward direction of the underlying markets for returns, and also hedge funds which also invest in asset classes like equities,
bonds and currencies, butin such a way that relies more on the skill of the investment manager to add returns whilst hedging against downward
market moves.

The trustee's investment advisors carry out detailed ongoing due diligence on fundsin all asset classes from both operational and investment capability
standpoints and any funds which are not expectedto achieve thelr investment performance targets are replaced where possible.

Pension planassumptions
The principal actuarial assumptions were as foflows:
AAUK AAl AAPMP
2017 2016 20 2016 2017 2016
% % % % % % %
Pensioner discount rate 2.7 36 16 1.7 . 2.7 3.6
Non pensioner discount rate 29 38 2.4 2.6 2.7 38
Pensioner RPI 35 29 - - 35 29
Non pensioner RPi 35 3.2 - - 3.5 3.2
Rate of increase of pensions in payment - pensioner 3.2 28 - - - -
Rate of Increase of pensions in payment — non pensioner 3.2 3.0 - - - -
Pensioner increase for deferred benefits 24 22 1.5 1.5 - -
Medical premium inflation rate - - - - 7.5 6.9

Mortality assumptions for the AAUK scheme are set using standard tables based on scheme specific experience where available and an allowance
for future improvements. For 2017, the assumptions used were inline with the SAPS (S2) series mortality tables (2016 - SAPS (S1) series) with future
improvemenits in ine with the CMI_2015 model with a 1.5% leng-term rate of improvement {2016 - CMI_2012 model with a 1.5% long-termrate of
improvement). The AAl scheme mortality assumptions are set using standard tables with scheme specific adjustments.

The AA schemes’ overallassumptions are that an active male retiring in normal health currently aged 60 will live on average for a further 27 years
and an active fernale retiring in normal health currently aged 60 will live on average for a further 30 years.

ssaUISNg NG

3DUBLLIOPEY INQ

BIUBLIAIADD)

SRWRIS feoueuly



12 AA plc Annual Report ahd Accounts 2017

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

25 Penslons{continued)

Sensitivity analysls -
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have
affected the defined benefit liability by the amounts shown below:

Forthe yearending 31 .January 2017

AaUK AAl AAPMP

£m £m £m

Increase of 0.25% in discount rate 127 3 2
increase of 0.25% in Inflation rate {102) m -
Increase of 1% in medical claims inflation - - {9)
Increase of one year of life expectancy {90) {2) -

Anequivalent decreasein the assumptions at 31 January 2017 would have had the equal but opposite effect on the amounts shown above, onthe basis
that all other variables remain constant.

The weighted average duration of planliabilities at 31 January 2017 is around 21years.

Pensionscheme risks

The AAUK and AAf schemes have exposure to a nurnber of nsks because of the investments they make in following their investment strategy.
Investment objectives and risk limits are implemented through the investment management agreements in place with the schemes’ investment
managers and monitored by the trustees by regular reviews of the investment portfolios. In addition, under guidance from their investment advisors
the trustees monitor estimates of key risks on an ongoing basis such as those shown below. A number of measures are taken to mitigate these risks
where possible.

Interest rate risk and Inflation risk - this is the risk that the present value of future cash flows of afinancial asset or liability witl fluctuate because of
changesin marketinterest rates and/or expected inflation. The scheme is subject to interest rate and inflation risk because some of the scheme's
investments are in gilts, index linked gilts and other hedging assets. These investments are heldin order to mitigate the impact ofinterest rate and
inflation changes on the Scheme’s liabilitias,

Creditrisk - this is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

This risk mainly relates to the Scheme’s bonds and is mitigated by carrying out due diligence and investing only in bond funds which are well diversified
interms of credit instrurnent, region, credit rating and issuer of the underlying bond assets. To reduce risk further, the underlying bond assets within
afund are ringfenced, and the scheme diversifies across anumber of bond funds.

Currency risk - the scheme is subject to currency risk because some of the schermne's investments are in overseas markets. The trustee hedges some
of this currency risk by investing ininvestment funds which hold currency derivatives to protect against adverse fluctuationsin the relative value of
its portfolio positions as a result of changes in currency exchange rates.

Market price risk - this is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial asset such as equities will luctuate because of changes inmarket
prices (other than those arising from interest rate, inflation or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financialinstrument orits issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded inthe market. The scheme manages this exposure to overall
price movements by constructing a diverse portfolio of investments across various markets and investment managers.,

Financial derivatives risk - The scheme does not directly hold any financial derivatives butinstead invests ininvestment funds which hoid the dervatbives
required to hedge the schema’s interest rate, inflation and currency risks. The scheme also permits some of theinvestment managers to use derivative
instruments if these are being used to contribute to a reduction of risks or facilitate efficient portfolio management of their funds, The main risks
associated with financial derivatives include: losses may exceed the initial margin; counterparty risk where the other party defaults on the contract;

and liquidity risk where it may be difficult to close out a contract prior to expiry, These risks are managed by monitoring of investment managers to
ensure they have reasonable levals of market exposure relative to initial margin and positions are fully collateratised on a daily basis with secure cash
orgilts collateral,

The AAUK scheme had hedged around 50% of interest rate risk and around 75% of inflation risk (of the liabilities) as at 31 January 2017 and hedging had
been fairly constant at those levels for some years as part of a policy to reduce financial risks to the Scheme, The current longer term objective isto aim
to hedge around 75% of hoth the interest rate riskand inflation risk of the {abilities; this will heip to further reduce funding level volatility. More interest
rate hedging will be added in dua course as, and when, prevailing pricing is regarded as reasonable value in the circumstances, orif any other reasons
drive a policy change onrisk appetite.
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26 Impairment of Intangible assets

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to cash generating units (*CGUs”) oninitial recognition and for subsequent
impairment testing.

The carrying value of goodwillby CGU is as follows:

2017 2016

£m fm

Roadside Assistance 874 874
Insurance Services 240 240
Driving Schoots 26 26
DriveTech 33 33
Ireland - 26
1,173 1,199

The Group has performed impairment testing at 31 fanuary 2017 and 31 }anuary 2016. The impairment test compares the recoverable amount of the
CGUtoits carrying value, The Ireland segment was disposed of on 11 August 2016 (see note 3).

The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections from the Group's three year
plan upto 31 January 2020 and a reasonable expectation of growth in the subsequent two years. For the purposes of the impairment test, terminal
values have been calculated using the Gordon growth model and a nil growth assumption after year 5 which is lower than the expected tong term
average growth rate of the UK economy. Cash flows have been discounted at a pre-taxrate reflecting the time value of money and the risk specific

to these cash flows. This has been determined as a pre-tax rate of 9.0% (2016: 9.9%).

The value in use calculation used Is most sensitive to the assumptions used for growth and for the discount rate, Accordingly, stress testing has been
performed on these key assumptions as part of the impairment test to further inform the consideration of whether any impairment is evident. Further
to this, management believes that no reasonably foreseeable change in any of the key assumptions would cause the recoverable amount of the CGU
to be lower than its carrying amount, and consequently no impairment has been recognised.

27 Financialassetsand financial tiabilities

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and financial liabilities by class are as follows:;

Financialassets
2017 2016
Em £m
Loansand receivables
Cashand cashequivalents mn 166
Tradereceivables 14 146
Other receivables and accrued income 6 17
Totalfinancialassets 368 329
Financial liabilities
2017 2006
£m fm
Measured at fair value throughother comprehensive Income
Interest rate and fuel swaps used for hedging 20 27
Loansand borrowlngs
Trade payables 97 10
Other payables 56 66
Obligations under finance lease agreements 67 61
Borrowings 2,799 2,883

Total financial liabilities 3,039 3,157
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27 Financial assets and financial liabillties (continued)

Falrvalues
Financialinstruments held at fair value are valued using quoted market prices or other valuation technigues.

Valuation technigues include net present value and discounted cash flow models, and comparson to similarinstruments for which market observable
prices exist. Assumptions and market observable inputs used in valuation techniques include interest rates.

The objective of using valuation techniques isto arrive at a fair value that reflects the price of the financialinstrument at each year end at which the asset
or liability would have been exchanged by market participants acting at arm’s length.

Observableinputs are those that have been seen either from counterparties or from market pricing sources and are publicly available. The use of these
depends on the liquidity of the relevant market, When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable inputs asmuch as
possibile. Fair values are categorised into different levels m a fair value hierarchy based on theinputs used in the vatuation as follaws:

Level1- Quoted market prices inan actively traded market foridentical assets or liabilities. These are the most reliable.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included in Leve! 1that are observable for the assetsor liabilities. These include valuation models used to
calculate the present value of expected future cash flows and may be employed either when no active market exists or when there are quoted prices
available for similar instruments in active markets. The models incorporate various inputs, including interest rate curves and forward rate curves of the
underlying instrument.

Level 3 - inputs for assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data.

Ifthe inputs used to measure the fair values of an asset or a liability might be categorised in different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level as the lowest input thatis significant to the entire measurements.

The fair values are periodically reviewed by the Group Treasury function, The following tables provide the quantitative fair value hierarchy of the Group's
interest rate swaps and loan notes,

The carrying values of all other financial assets and liabilities {including the Senior Term Facility} are approximate to their fair vatues:

At 31 January 2017:
Falr value measurement using

Significant Significant
Quotedpricesin observable uncbservable
Carrying  active markets Inputs inputs
value (Levell) {Level D) {Level 3)
Em £m £m £m
Financial llabilities measured at falr value
Interest rate and fuel swaps (note 19) 20 - 20 -
Liabillties for which fair values are disclosed
Loan notes {note 20) 2,452 2,656 - -
At31January 2016:
Fairvalue measurement using
Significant Significant
Quoted prcesin observable uncbservable
Carrying  achve markets inputs inputs
value {Level1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
£m £m £m £m
Financialllabllitles measured at falr value
Interest rate and fuel swaps (note 19} 27 - 27 -
Liabiiities for which fair values are disclosed
Loan notes{note 20) 244 2,528 - -

There have been no transfers between the levels and no non-recurring fair value measurements of assets and liabilities during thetwo yearsto
31January 2017.
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28 Financialrisk management objectivesand pelicies

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings as well as trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial babilities
is to finance the Group's operations. The Group's principal financial assets include deposits with financial institutions, money market funds and
trade recervables.

The Group is exposed to market risk, creditrisk and liquidity nsk. The Group's senior management oversees the management of these risks, supported
by the Group Treasury function. The Group Treasury function ensures that the Group's financial risks are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives. All derivative
activities are for risk management purposes and are carried out by the Group Treasury function. ltis the Group’s policy not to trade in derivatives for
speculative purposes.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

Market risk

Market nisk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financialinstrument will fluctuate because of changes in prices set by the market.

The key market risk thatthe Group is exposed ta is interest rate risk, The Group has policies and limits approved by the Board for managing the interest
raterisk exposure, The Group’s policy is to fully hedge all of its exposure to variable interest rates. The Group has therefore taken out interest rate swaps
tothe value of its variable rate instruments.

The interest rate profile of the Group'sinterest-bearing financial Instruments is as follows:

2017 2016
£m £m
Fixed rate Instruments
Financial liabilities {2,518) (2,502)
Effect of interest rate swaps (348) (454)
Netexposure e fixed rateinstruments {2,866) (2,956)
Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilities {347 (452}
Effect of interest rate swaps 348 454
Net exposuretovariable rateinstruments 1 2

Sensitivity of fixed-rate Instruments

The Group does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and does not use derivative
instruments in fair value hedges. Consequently, having regard to fixed rate instruments, a change in market interest rates at the reporting date would
not affect profit or loss.

Sensitivity of variable rateinstruments

Anincrease of 50 basis points ininterest rates at 31 January 2017 would have increased equity by £2m (2016: £4m)and would have had no impact on
profit or cash, A decrease to interest rates of the same magnitude will have an equaland opposite effect on equity and profit. This calculation assumes
that the change accurred at the year end and had been applied to risk exposures existing at that date.

This analysis assumes that all other vaniables remain constant and considers the effect of financial instruments with variable interest rates and the fixed
rate element of interest rate swaps. The analysis is performed on the same basis for allcomparative periods.

Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financialinstrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.

The Group Is exposed to credit risk n relation to its financial assets, outstanding derivatives and trade and other receivables. The Group assessesits
counterparty exposure in relation to the investment of surplus cash and undrawn credit facilities, The Group primarily uses published credit ratings to
assess counterparty strength and therefore to define the credit limit for each counterparty, in accordance with approved treasury policies.

The credit risk for the Group is limited as payment from customers is generally required before services are provided.

Credit niskin relation to deposits and derivative counterparties is managed by the Group’s treasury function in accordance with the Group’s policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit imits assigned to each counterparty. The imits are set
tomitigate financial loss through any potential counterparty faiture.

The Group'’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position at each reporting date is the carryingamount
except for derivative financial instruments. The Group's maximurn exposure for financiat dervative instruments is noted under biquidity risk.
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28 Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

Pastdue hutnot impaired
Nelther
pastduenor
Total impaired <30days 30-60days 60+days
£m £m £m £m £m
2017 M 135 4 - 2
2016 146 136 2 2 5]
The movements in the provision for the collective impairment of receivables are as follows:
2017 2016
£m Em
At1February 2 2
Charge for the year 2 1
Utilised M -
Unused amounts reversed ] (1)
At 3t January 2 2
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group &ither does not have available sufficient financial resources to enable it to meet its obligations as they fall due, or
can secure them only at excessive cost. The Group's approach to managing liquidity risk is to evaluate current and expected lquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and headroom onits working capital facilities.

The table below analyses the maturity of the Group’s financial liabilities on a contractual undiscounted cash fiow basis and includes any associated debt
service costs. The analysis of non-derivative financial liabilities is based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date,

At 31January 2017;
Ondemand Lessthanlyear 1-2years 2-5years OverSyears TYotal
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Loans and borrowings - 126 64 1,536 1,195 3,498
Oblgation under finance leases - 51 13 8 - 72
Other payables and accruals - 56 - - - 56
Trade payables - 97 - - - 97
- 330 654 1,544 1,195 3,723
Interestrate swaps usedforhedging
Assets (inflow) - (14) (8) - - (22)
Liabilities - 23 18 - - Lil
- 9 10 - - 19
- 339 664 1,544 1,195 3,742
At3tjanuary 2016:
Ondemand  Lessthan1year 1-2years 2-Syears Quver Syears Total
Em £m £m £m £m £m
Loans and borrowings - 138 140 1,990 1,436 3,704
Obligation under finance leases - 43 14 8 - 65
Other payables and accruals - 66 - - - 66
Trade payables - 10 - - - 10
- 357 154 1,998 1,436 3,945
Interest rate swapsused for hedging
Assets (inflow) - ()] 3 - - (12)
Liahilities - 16 8 5 - 29
- 7 5 5 - 17
- 364 159 2,003 1,436 3,962
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28 Financlalrisk management objectives and policles (continued)

Capltalmanagement
Asnoted inthe financial review on pages 26 to 29, the Group considers its capital to be a combination of net debt and equity.

2m7 2Mé
Em £m
Total net debt 2,704 2,809
Equity {valued at close on 31 January 2017) 1,486 1,790
Total capital 4,190 4,599
The Group's objectives when managing capital are;
>to safequard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders;

>to further strengthen the AA as the pre-eminent Membership services organisationinthe UK;
Ytorevolutionise the customer experience through investing in and embracing new technologies;
>to reduce Group borrowings and associated interest costs; and
»to provide an adequate retumn to shareholders.
The relative priorities of these objectives are discussed on page 28 of the financial review.
The Group ronitors capital using net debt to Trading EBIT DA ratios. The key ratios are Senior Secured Debt to Trading EBITDA, and Net Debt to
Trading EBITDA as calcutated below:

2017 2016

£m £m

Senior Term Facility 348 454
ClassAnotes 1,930 1,725
Less: AA Intermediate Co Limited group cash and cash equivalents {136} 94)
Net Senior Secured Debt! 2,142 2,085
Class B2 notes 570 735
Finance lease obligations 67 61
Net WBS Debt? 2,779 2,881
Less: AA plc Group cash and cash equivalents® {7%) (72)
Total Net Debt 2,204 2,809
AA ple Trading EBITDA 403 402
AA Intermediate Trading EBITDA* 414 417
Net debt ratio® 6.7x 7.0x
Class B2 leverage ratio® 8. 7x 6.9x
Senior leverage ratio’ 5.2x 50x

1 Pnncipal ameunts of the Senior Term Facility and Class A notes less AA Intermediate Co Limited group cash and cash equivalents.

2 WBS debt represents the borrowings and cash balances within the WBS structure headed by AA Intermediate Co Limited. This includes the principal amounts of the Senior Term Facility,

Ciass A notes, Class B2 notes and finance leases less AA Intermediate Co Limited group cash and cash equivalents,
3 Total cash and cash equivalents for the Group excluding the value reparted as the AA Intermediate Co Limited group cash and cash equivalents.
4 AA Intermediate Ca Limited group Trading EBITDA Including discontinued operations and business held for sale as required by the debt documents.
5 Ratio of Total Net Debt to AA plc Trading EBITDA for the last 12 manths
6 Ratio of Net WBS Debt 10 AA Intermediate Tradmg EBITDA for the last12 months.
7 Rabio of Net Seniar Secured Debt to AA Intermediate Trading EBITDA forthe last 12 months

The Senior Term Facility, Class A notes and Class B2 notes have interest cover covenants attached to them. The Group was in compliance with all

covenants throughout the period and as at 31 January 2017,

The Group includes regulated companies which are required to hold sufficient capital to meet acceptable solvency levels based on the relevant

regulators’ requirements {see note 17), There are no other externally imposed capitalrequirements,

Further details on our policies and processes for managing capital, as well as the thresholds set for the covenants above are set out iInthe financial

review on pages 261029,
Further details of our objectives to reduce Group borrowings are set out in the strategic report on page 14.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

29 Commitments and contingencies

Operatinglease commitments
Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 January are as follows:

Land and buildings
2017 2016
£m £m
Leases expiring:
Within one year 1 -
Between one and five years 10 i
After five years ’ 23 28
34 39
Rentals receivable from operating sub-leases {4} (&)
Amounts ncluded in onerous lease provisions @) {6)
26 29

Where a property is no longer used by the Group for operational purpases, tenants are sought to reduce the Group's exposure to lease payments.
Where the future minimum lease payments are in excess of any expected rental income due, a provision 1s made.

Finance lease commitments
The Group has finance lease contracts for various items of plantand machinery. Future minimum lease payments under finance lease contracts,
together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments, are as follows:

2017 2016
Presentvalue Minimum Presentvalue Minimum
of payments payments of payments payments
£m Em £m £m
Within one year a4z 51 40 43
Between one and five years 20 2 1 22
Total minimum ease paymenits 67 72 Gl 65
Less amounts representing finance charge - {5) - (4)
Present value of minimum lease payments 67 67 61 61

Capital commitments
Amaunts contracted for but not provided in the financial statements amounted to £14m (2016: £15m).

30 Subsidiary undertakings
The subsidiary undertakings of AA plc, all of which are wholly owned except where stated, are listed innote 9 of the Company financial statements.

31 Auditor's remuneration

2017 2016
£m £m

Amounts recelvable by the Company’s auditor and its associatesinrespect of:
Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries of the Company 1 1
Coarporate finance services - 1

The fee for the audit of these financial statements was £0.2m (2016: £0.2m).

Corporate finance services mainly relate to reporting accountant work that would normally be undertaken by the auditor. The fee for this work was
£0.4m{2016: £1m),

32 Related party transactions

The following tabte provides the total value of transactions that have been entered into with asseciates during each financial year:

Transactions with assoclates:

2017 2016
Associate Nature of transaction £m £m
ACTASA. Call handling fees paid 2 2
ARC Europe SA. Registration fees paid 1 1

Nate that the Group's interest n ACTA SA was sold in the year, see note 14.
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33 Compensatlonofkey management personnel of the Group

Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and responsibitity for planning, directing and controlling the activities of
the Group.

Key management personnel consists of the Executive Chairman, the Chief Financial Officer, Non-Executive Directors and the Executive
Management Committee.

The amounts recognised as an expense during the financial year in respect of key management personnel are as follows:

2017 2016

£m £m

Short-term employee benefits 6 )

Share-based payments - MVP and LTBP shares (see note 34) 8 o

Totalcompensation of key management personnel 14 8
34 Share-based payments

2017 2016

£m £m

Share-based payments — MVP shares 8 2

Share-based payments - LTBP 2 2

Share-based payments - staff share incentive plan 2 |

12 5

Management value participation shares (MVP shares)

On 23 June 2014, the Company issued 24 million convertible, redeemable MVP shares to certain key members of senior management at £0.001 per
share. These shares were divided into three classes and are convertible into ordinary shares following satisfaction of a Total Shareholder Return (TSR}
performance condition of 12% (or above) per annum compound growth against the admission price of £2.50 whichis tested on the third, fourth and fifth
anniversaries of admission to the London Stock Exchange.

A further 36 million MVP shares were 1ssued at £0.001per share on 22 December 2015.

At 31January 2016,14.2% of the issued MVP shares were held in the Employee Benefit Trust (EBT). On 22 April 2016, awards were granted by the EBT
to further key members of senior management over ordinary shares which convert from the remaining 14.2% {amounting to 8,520,000) MVP shares.

The MVP share-based payments are equity settled. The following table illustrates the number and fair value of the MVP shares awarded:

2017 2016
Falrvalue Fair value
2017 2016 pershare per share
Vesting date No.ofshares No. of shares £ £
June 2014 awards:
Alshares 23 June 2017 8,000,000 8,000,000 0.25 0.25
Bishares 23June 2018 8,000,000 8,000,000 0.26 0.26
Clshares 23 June 2019 8,000,000 8,000,000 0.26 0.26
December 2015 awards:
A2 shares 23June 2017 9,160,000 9,160,000 0.38 0.38
B2 shares 23 June 2018 9,160,000 9,160,000 0.40 0.40
C2shares 23June 2019 9,160,000 9,160,000 0.40 0.40
April 2016 awards
A2 shares 23 June 2017 2,840,000 - 0.35 -
B2 shares 23 June 2018 2,840,000 - 0.35 -
C2shares 23 June 2019 2,840,000 - 0.35 -
Total 60,000,000 51,480,000

Unvested Aland A2 shares can also be converted on the fourth or fifth anniversary of admission and unvested B1and B2 shares can also be converted
on the fifth anniversary of admission.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

34 Share-based payments{continued)

) All MVP shares were valued using a Binomial model and 25% volatility assumption to calculate the fair value using the following nsk-free interest rates:

Veshng pericd

Jyear dyear Syear

% % %

Risk-free interest rate for Al, Bland C1MVP shares 0.88 1.35 1.82
Risk-free interest rate for A2, B2 and C2 MVP sharesissued December 2015 0.55 077 0.98
Risk-free interest rate for A2, B2 and C2 awards over MVP shares - April 2016 044 0.38 0.55

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends which may not necessarily be the actual
ouicome,

Long Term Bonus Plan{LTBP)
0On 13 August 2015, the Company's EBT issued 3 million conditional awards over market purchased ordinary shares to certain key members of senior
management at nitcost. A further I million conditionat ordinary shares were issued on 16 November 2015.

These shares were divided into three tranches, A, B and C, and vest following satisfaction of a Total Sharehoider Return{TSR) performance condition
of12% per annurm compound growth against the admission price of £2,50 which is Yested on the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of admission to
the London Stock Exchange and satisfaction of certain individual pertormance targets.

The LTBP share-based payments are equity settled. The following table illustrates the number and fair value of the LTBF shares:

2077 2016
Fairvalug Fairvalue
207 2016 pershare per share
Vesting date No, of shares No, of shares £ £
August 2015 awards
Ashares 26 June 2017 757,792 1,010,219 2.93 293
Bshares 26 June 2018 745,956 1,010,219 2.39 239
C shares 26 June 2019 740,236 1,010,219 1.88 1.88
November 2015 awards
Ashares 26 June 2017 247,104 247104 143 143
Bshares 26 June 2018 247,104 247104 112 112
Cshares 26 June 2019 247,04 247,04 0.83 0.83
Total 2,985,296 3.771,969

If the awards over A shares do not vest on the third anniversary of admission, then they are retested on the fourth and/or fifth anniversary. if the awards
over B shares do not vest on the fourth anniversary of admission, then they are retested on the fifith anniversary.

The number of ordinary shares over which awards are held has reduced by 786,673 due to the adjustment to the entitlement of leavers during the
financial year,

The awards over sharesissued in August 2015 were valued using a Monte Carlo simulation model and 20% volatility assumptionto calculate the
fair value using the following risk-free interest rates:

Vesting period
Jyear 4 year Syear
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.70 Q.72 100

The awards over shares issued in November 2015 were valued using a Monte Carlo simulation model and 24% volatility assumption to calculate the fair
value using the following risk-free interest rates:

Vesting period
3year 4 year Syear
Risk-free interest rate (%} 0.58 Q.78 0.99

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends which may not necessarily be the
actual outcome.
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34 Share-based payments (continued)

Staff share incentive plans
The Group has a numbser of alt employee Share Incentive Plans (SIP).

Under the SIP, employees are able to buy Partnership shares by making weekly or monthty payments into the SIP.
In addition, for every Partnership share an employee purchases the Comparny will match this ona 1)1 basis (Matching Shares).

The SIP share-based payments are equity settled, The following table illustrates the fair value and veshng period of the SIPs:

Chargefor Charge for
yearended  yearended
Risk-free Farrvalue 31January 31January

No.of shares Volatility  interestrate pershare 2017 2006

Sharetype Award date Vesting date 2017 % % £ Em £m
201551p

Partnership shares 29 August 2014 29 August2015 2,132,766 21 0.55 0.23 - -

Matching shares 29 August 2014 29 Augusi2018 2,132,766 il 0.55 2.58 ] 1
2016 51P

Matching shares January 2016 1t January 2012 1,366,211 25 Q76 293 1 -

5,631,743 2 1

The SIPs are valued using a Black Scholes model.
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatitity is indicative of future trends which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.
The 2016 SIP scheme began in January 2016 with the issue of 11,577 shares inthat month. Shares were then issued each month untit December 2016,

The 2017 SIP scheme began in February 2017, after the current year end.

35 Accounting standards, amendments and interpretations

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations adoptedinthe year

Inthe year ended 31.January 2017, the Group did not adopt any new standards or amendments issued by the IASB or interpretationsissued by the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) that have had a materialimpact on the consolidated financial statements. Other new standards, amendments and
interpretations adopted, that have not had a materialimpact on the amounts reported in these financial statements but may impact the accounting for
future transactions and arrangements, were:

Effective date
I1AS 1: Disclosure Initiative 1January 2016
Annuallmprovements to IFRS 2012-2014 1January 2016
IFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations 1January 2016

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations not yet adopted
A number of new standards, amendments and interpretations, which have not been applied in preparing these financial statements, have been issued
and are effective for annual reports beginning after 1 February 2016:

Effectivedate
1AS12: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses 1January 2017
1AS 7: Disclosure Initiative 1January 2017
IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1lanuary 2018
IFRS 9: Financial Instruments 1January 2018
IFRS 2: Classification and Measurement of Share Based Payment Transactions - Amendmentsto IFRS 2 1lanuary 2018
IFRS16: } eases 1January 2019

The Group has carried out animpact assessment to determine the impact of adopting IFRS 15. Based on this assessment, management has concluded
that there will be no material impact on revenue from adopting this standard.

The Groupis currently assessing whether the other standards above will have a materialimpact on the financial statements for the year ended
31)anuary 2018,

36 Events after the reporting period

On 20 March 2017, the Group commenced a consultation process with members of the UK defined benefit pension scheme affected by proposed
changes tothe scheme, See further details in note 25, These changes, ifimplemented, will be taken into account in the 2018 financial year.
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Company statement of
financial position

asat 31 January

2017 2016
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiaries 2 818 806
Investments injoint ventures 3 4 4
B22 B10
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 4 17 14
Cashatbankandinhand 5 60 59
77 73
Total assets 899 883
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 6 {8) 9
Non-current liabillities
Other payables 7 {1 V]
Total llabilities {9) (10}
Netassets 890 873
Equity
Called up share capital 8 1 1
Share premium 403 399
Own shares {26) (22}
Retained earnings 512 495
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 890 873

The profit for the financial year of the Company is £60m {2016: £51m).
As at 31 January 2017, the Company had distributable reserves of £512m (2016: £495m).
Signed for and on behalf of the Board on 27 March 2017 by:

iz

Executive Chairman

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this company statement of financial position.

A2

Martin Clarke
Chief Financial Officer
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Company statement of
changes in equity

123

asat 31January
Share Share Own Retained
capital premium shares earnings Total
£m £m £m fm £m
At1February 2015 1 200 - 458 659
Profit forthe year - - - 51 51
Dividends - - - (21) (21)
Issue of share capital - 199 - - 199
Purchase of own shares - - (22) - (22}
Share-based payments - - - 7 7
At 31January 2016 399 (22} 495 873
Profit for the year - - - 60 60
Dividends - - - {55) (55)
fssue of share capital - 4 - - 4
Purchase of own shares - - @ - (4
Share-based payments - - - 12 12
At 31January 2017 403 {26) 512 890

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this company statement of changes in equity.
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Notes to the Company
financial statements

1 Authorisationoffinancial statements and Company
. accounting policies

1.1 Authorisationoffinanclal statements

The parent company financial statements of AA ple (the “Company”) for
the year ended 31January 2017 were autherised for issue by the Board
of Directors on 27 March 2017 andthe balance sheet was signed onthe
Board's behalf by Bob Mackenzie and Martin Clarke, AA plcisa public
limited company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales. The
Company’s ordinary shares are traded on the London Stock Exchange,

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS101). The
financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention
and on a going concern basis.

No profit and loss account is presented by the Company as permitted by
Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006,

The accounting policies which follow set out those policies which apply
in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31January 2017,
The financial statements are prepared in sterling and are rounded to the
nearest million pounds (Em).

1.2 Basls of preparation
The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions
under FRS101:

> |AS 1 paragraph 10(d) (staternent of cash flows),

> 1AS 1paragraph 16 (statement of compliance with allIFRS),

>1AS 1paragraph 38A (requirement for minimum of two primary
staternents, including cash flow statements},

Y1AS 1 paragraphi 111 (cash flow statement information),

>1AS 1 paragraphs134-136 (capitalmanagement disclosures),

YIFRS 1paragraphs 6and 21,

>Paragraphs 45(b) and 46 to 52 of IFRS 2, ‘Share-based payment’,

Y1AS 7: ‘Staterment of cash flows’,

YIAS 8 paragraphs 3G and 31,

> Therequirementsin 1AS 24, ‘Related party disclosures’ to disclose
related party transactions entered into between two or more members
of agroup.

1.3 Accounting policles

a) Foreigncurrencies

Transactions in foreign currencies arerecorded at the rate ruling at the
date of the transaction or at the contracted rate if the transactionis
covered by a forward foreign currency contract. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date orif appropriate at the forward
contract rate. All differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

b) Investmentsin subsidiaries and joint ventures
Fixed asset investments are includedin the balance sheet at cost,
less any provisions for permanentimpairment.

Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are stated at the lower of
costand netrealisable value.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed for
impairment when events or changesin circumstancesindicate that
the carrying amount of the fixed asset may not be recoverable. Ifany
suchindication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
Animpairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an
asset or its income-generating unit exceedsits recoverable amount.
Impairment osses are recognised inthe profit and loss account unless
itarises on a previously revalued fixed asset.

Therecoverable amount of fixed assets is the greater of their net realisable
value and valuein use, In assessing value inuse, the expected future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the rate of return expected
onaninvestment of equal risk. For an assetthat does not generate largely
independent income streams, the recoverable amount is determined for
the income-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Jointventures are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement,

¢} Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates are evaluated continually and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group makes estimates
and assurmptions about the future, The resulting accounting estimates

will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The principal
estimates and assumptions that have a risk of causing an adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financiat
period are discussed below.

Management has exercised judgement in applying the Group’s accounting
policies and in making critical estimates. The underlyingassumptions on
which these judgements are based, are reviewed oh an ongeing basis and
include the assumptions for future growth of cash flows to support the
value-in-use calculations for the investment impairment review.

Investments

The Grouptests theinvestment balances for impairment annually. The
recoverable amounts of the investments have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations which require the use of estimates. Management
has prepared discounted cash flows based on the latest strategic plan.
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2 Investmentsinsubsidiaries

2017 2016

£m £m

At1February 806 799
Charge forthe share incentive schemes 12 7
At 31January 818 806

Inthe year ended 31 January 2017, there was an increase in investrent in subsidiaries of £12m {2016: £7m} relating to the fair value of share-based
payments granted. Details are provided in note 34 of the Group financial statements.

Noindicators of impairment in the value of subsidianes have been identified.

3 Investmentsin joint ventures

2017 2016

Em Em

At1February 4 -
Additions - 4
At 31January 4 4

0On 29 June 2015, the Company invested £4m in a 49% share of a joint venture with TVS Automobile Solutions, one of the largest playersin the Indian
automotive market.

4 Tradeandotherrecelvables

2017 2016
£m £m
Trade receivables from subsidiary undertakings 17 13
Group relief receivable - 1
17 14
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, have no repayment terms and bear no interest.
5 Cash
2017 2016
£m £m
Cash 60 59
60 59
6 Tradeandotherpayables
2017 2016
£m £m
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 8 B8
Accruals - 1
9

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, have no repayment terms and bear no interest.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
continued

7 Otherpayables

2017 2016
£m £m
Other payables 1 1
All amounts are due within five years.
8 Sharecapital
2017 2016
£m £m
Allotted, called up and fully paid
509,461,827 (2016 608,181,845} ordinary shares of E0.0 each 1 1
1 1

The voting rights of the holders of all ordinary shares are the same and all ordinary shares rank pari passu on a winding up. AA plc has no authorised

ordinary share capital.

The movement in the number of shares in the current year is in relation to the matching shares for the staff share incentive plans (see Group financial

statements — note 34 for further information on these shares).

The Company has 60 million MVP shares inissue (see Group financial statements - note 34 for further information on these shares).

9 Subsidiaryundertakings

All subsidiaries are wholly owned and incorporated and registered where stated below.

Alisubsidiaries are consolidated in the group financial statements.
The principal subsidiary undertakings of the Company at 31 January 2017 are:

Name Country
AA Acquisition Co Limited® United Kingdom
AA Bond Co Limited® Jersey
AA Corporation Limitea? United Kingdom
AAFinancial Services Limited? United Kingdom
AA Intermediate Co Limited® United Kingdom
AA Media Limited? United Kingdom
AAMid Co Limited"? United Kingdom
AA Reinsurance Company Limited' Guernsey
AA Senior Co Limited? United Kingdom
AA The Driving School Agency Limited? United Kingdom
AAUnderwriting Insurance Company Limited® Gibraltar
Automobiie Association Developments Limiteq® United Kingdom
Autormnobile Association Insurance Services Limited? United Kingdom
Drivetech (UK) Limited? United Kingdom
Intellgent Data Systems (UK) Limited? United Kingdom
VVCREurope BV.-® Netherlands

1 Directly owned by AA ple, all other subsidiaries areindirectly held

2 Company registered office: Fanum House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, RG214EA, England
3 Company registered office 22 Greenville Street, St Helier, JE4 8PX, Jersey

4 Company registered office: Heritage Halk, Le Marchant Street, St Peter Part, GY1 4JH, Guernsey

5 Company registered office: First Floor, Grand Gcean Plaza, Gcean Vilage, Gibraltar

6 Company registered office Markeloseweg 94, 7461 PB, 175, 746040, Rijssen, Nijverdal, Netherlands
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9 Subsidlary undertakings (continued}

The other subsidiary undertakings of the Company at 31 January 2017 are:

Name Country
A.A. Pensions Trustees Linited? United Kingdom
AA Assistance Limited? United Kingdom
AA Brand Management Limited® United Kingdom
AA Insurance Holdings Limited'? United Kingdom
AA Ireland Pension Trustees Limited? freland
AA Pension Funding GP Limited* United Kingdom
AA Pension Funding LP* United Kingdom
AA PIK Co Limited"® Jersey
AA Road Services Limited? United Kingdom
AA Technical Solutions Limited?® United Kingdom
AA Underwriting Limited? United Kingdom
Automobile Association Holdings Limited® United Kingdom
Automiobile Association Insurance Services Holdings Limited® United Kingdom
Automobile Association Pratection and Investment Planning Limited? United Kingdom
Automobile Association Services Limited? United Kingdom
Autormnobile Association Travel Services Limited? United Kingdom
Automobile Association Underwriting Services Limited? United Kingdom
Breakdown Assistance Services Limited® United Kingdom
Breakdown Hero Limited® United Kingdom
Drakefield Group Limited? United Kingdom
Drakefield Holdings Limited? United Kingdom
Drakefield Insurance Services Limited? United Kingdom
Drakefield Services Limited® United Kingdom
Longacre Claims Limiteg? United Kingdom
Nationwide 4 X 4 Ltd? United Kingdom
Peak Petformarnce Management Limited?® United Kingdom
Persarsal Insurance Mortgages and Savings Limited? United Kingdom
The Automabile Association Limited® Jersey
VVCR Europe Beroepsopleidingen BV, Netherlands
VVCR Furope Holding BV Netherlands

1 Directly owned by AA plc, all other subsidiaries are indirectly held

2 Compahy registered office: Fanum House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, RG21 4EA, England

3 Company registered office: 61a South William Straet, Dublin 2, Ireland

4 Company registered office: 50 Lothian Road, Festival Square, Edinburgh, EH38WJ, Scotland

§ Company registered office: 22 Greenville Street, StHeler, JE4 8PX, Jersey
6 Company registered office: 90 Long Acre, London, WC2E 9RA, England

7 Company registered office: Markeloseweg 94, 7461 PB, 175, 7460AD, Rissen, Nijverdal, Netherlands.

10 Auditor'sremuneration

The fee for the audit of these financial statements was £0.2m (2016: £0.2m),

11 Staffcosts

The Company had no employees or employee staff costs in the current or prior year. However, the Company has incurred costsin respect of the

Non-Executive Directors of £1m {2016: £1m).
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Shareholder information

AApic

Company number: 514911

Registered office

Fanum House
Basing View
Basingstoke
Hampshire
RG214EA

Tetephone: 0376544 8866

Share price information

The Company's ordinary shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange.
Share price information can be found on the website www.theaapic.com

ISIN Number: GBOOBMSKPI95
SEDOL Number: BMSKRPIS
Advisors

Cotporate Brokers

LCenkos Securities, 6.7.8 Tokenhouse Yard, London EC2R7AS
Liberum Capital, Ropemaker Place, Level 12, 25 Ropemaker Street,
London, EC2Y 9LY

Morgan Stanley & Co, 20 Bank Street, Canary Wharf, London Eid4 4AD

Solicitors
Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer LLP, 65 Fleet Street, London ECAY 1HS
Proskacer Rose (UK} LLP, 113 Bishopsgate, London EC2N4AY

Auditors
Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London SE12AF

Registrar

Capita Asset Services, 40 Dukes Place, London EC3A 7NH

Telephone: 0871 664 0300 {calls cost 10p per minute plus network
extras) Lines are open Monday - Friday, 9.00am ~ 5,30pm {from outside
the UK: +44 (0) 208 639 3399).

Please note that from 19 June 2017 Equiniti Limited will replace Capita
Asset Services as Registrarto AA plc. Your existing share certificate(s)
willremain valid and donot need to be replaced.

The contact details for Equiniti are as follows:

By post: Equiniti Limited, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing,
West Sussex BNS9 6DA.

By telephone: 0333 207 6538 (from outside the UK: +44 121415 0999).
Lines are open 8.30am to 5.30pm, Monday to Friday.

Online: www.shareview.couk.

Financial publicrelations
Headland Consultancy, Eldon House, 2-3 Eldan Street, London EC2M7LS

FinanclalCalendar
The Company’s Annual General Meeting will be held on 8 June 2017 at
Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer LLP, 65 Fleet Street, London EC4Y 1HS,

Warning to Shareholders

Share fraud includes scams where investors are called and offered shares
that often turn out to he worthless or non-existent, or aninflated price

for shares that they own. These calls often require you fo make aquick
decision and come from fraudsters operating in ‘Doiler rooms’ thatare
often based abroad, High pressure sales tactics can also come by email,
post, word of mouth or at a seminar. Scams are also advertisedin
newspapers, magazines or online and appear as if they are genuine
investment opportunities.

Inaddition, be aware of money recovery scams which can beinitiated

by someone claiming tobe from the police or a government agency,
Organisations’ names vary but can include the National Fraud Intellgence
Bureau and the US Securities & Exchange Commission. You should check
the latestinformation on the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) website at
www.fca.org.uk/consumers/scams/what-to-do-if-you-are-scammed for
more details of scams pretending to be the police ora government agency.

The FCA found that even experienced investors have been caught out
by share fraud and on average, around £200 millionis lostinthe UK
eachyear.

If you are offered unsolicited investment advice, discounted shares,
a premium price for shares you own, or free company or research
reports, you should take these steps before handing over any money:

1. Getthename of the person and organisation contacting you

2. Checkthe Financial Services Register (FSR)at
www.fea.org.uk/firms/systems-reporting/register
to ensure they are authorised

3. Usethe details on the FSR ta contact the firm

4. Ifyouarebasedinthe UK, call the FCA Consumner Helpline on
0800 111 6768 if there is no telephone number onthe FSR or youare
tolditis out of date

5. Searchthe FCA's list of known unauthorised firms and individuals to
avoid doing business with

6. Rememberthatlaw enforcement and other agencies willnot contact
mernbers of the public asking for their bank details or money

7. Remember:if it sounds oo good to be true, it probablyis

If you use an unauthorised firm to buy or sell shares or other investments,
you willnot have access to the Financial Ombudsman Service or Financial
Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS) if things go wrong. If you are
approached about a share scam you should tell the FCA using the share
fraud reporting form at www.fca,org.uk/consumers/scams, where you
can find out about the tatestinvestmaerit scams. If you are based in the UK,
you can also call the FCA Consumer Helpline on 0800 116768. If you have
already paid moneyto share fraudsters you should contact Action Fraud
anline at www.actionfraud.police.uk or, if you are based inthe LK,

by telephoneon 0300123 2040.

Shareholder queries and Information

Financialinformation about the company including the annual report,
regulatory announcements and corporate governance informationis
available on our website: www.theaaplc.com

Alternatively please contact us at investorrelations@theaa.com
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